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L EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Mitchell “Mitch” Whitehurst was an educator at Portland Public Schools
{referred to in ouf report as PPS or the Districfc) from 1982-2015, when he resigned
during an investigation into allegations of coworker sexual harassment. During his
career, Mr. Whitehurst allegedly engaged in sexual conduct with PPS students. He
left behind little documentation of his past conduct —in part because the conduct
was not detected by administrators in the first place, in part because the conduct
that was brought to administrators’ attention was not documented, and in part
because it was documented bu‘t then purged from Mr. Whitehurst's files over time,
per union contract requirements. As he moved from school to school, very little
institutional knowledge of his inappropriate behavior followed him. His pattern of
sexual conduct with students went mostly undetected. And when incidents were
reported, the District gave Mr. Whitehurst the benefit of the doubt.

During this investigation, we interviewed former students who described
sexual conduct by Mr. Whitehurst that took place at varying points in his 32-year
career. We have no reason to dishelieve what any student told us; the students

came across as honest and their recollections were credible. We received multiple
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accounts of similar behavior. We note that any time Mr. Whitehurst was ever
interviewed about his alleged sexual conduct with students, he denled it.

The most egregious allegations of misconduct involved off-campus sexual

conduct with female high school students_
— This conduct was not reported to any adult

at the time. In 2008, after learning that Mr. Whitehurst was still employed by the
District, one former student {Caprice') came forward to report the sexual conduct
that she || 2o excerienced 24 years earlier, while | N
_ at Franklin. The Human Resources {HR) Department at PPS received
notice of that complaint but failed to investigate it adequatejy and did not report it
to the Teacher Standards & Practices Commission (TSPC)I.‘

In 2012, after learning that Mr. Whitehurst remained employed by PPS
nhotwithstanding her report in 2008, the same former student again reported the
1984 incident of sexual conduct, this time to the principal of the school where Mr.
Whitehurst was a.-.l..- And again, PPS responded
with an inadequate investigation and no referral to the TSPC. At no time was Mr.
Whitehurst disciplined for this conduct, and it is even in dispute whether he has

ever been questioned about it.

! Caprice gave us permission to use her first name, which is also how she is identified in
Oregonian articles. We have withheld her last name upon her request.
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In 2001, a student from Marshall High School_ reported

unwanted sexual attention from Mr. Whitehurst [ | N | | S R R
I s complaint went through the proper

channels but due to an inadequate internal investigation, it was treated as a
“he-said/she-said” first-time offense in which faced with two conflicting accounts
both deemed credible, the investigator accepted Mr. Whitehurst's explanation
that his conduct had been simply misconstrued by the student.

The behavior reported by many female students in the Faubion ]
- in 2013 — that Mr. Whitehurst was staring at their chests and butts,
commenting on a student’s attractive figure, calling them “babe” or “baby,” and
other inappropriate behavior —was brought to the attention of the Faubion
administrators as well as the HR Department and in-house general counsel.
Inexplicably, an investigation that started out with multi-day student interviews
and typed notes reﬂecting first-hand accounts of students unwilling to participate
- because of the way Mr. Whitehurst looked at and acted around the girls
resulted in no discipline, no documentation of the conduct in Mr. Whitehurst’s
files, and no report to the TSPC. The current and former PPS employees involved
in the investigation have pointed fingers at each other to explain why Mr.

Whitehurst was not disciplined or terminated for the conduct.
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The student complaints made by Caprice, ||| | EGcNcNIEKzczNGNGGGN
_ have been thoroughly covered by the media. Our investigation

unearthed additional complaints about Mr, Whitehurst’s sexual conduct that were
also investigated by PPS — specifically, by the PPS police force that disbanded in
2001. Apparently no discipline came as a result of these investigations, either.
Although the reports were documented, when the PPS police force dishanded the
relevant records were archived and not incorporated into Mr. Whitehurst’s HR or
personnel files.

Another student complaint of ogling lodged early in Mr. Whitehurst’s career
while he was teaching PE at Sellwood Middle School was handled by the principal,
who was unaware of any past issues and attended to it with verbal counseling. The
incident was not documented.

In addition to these reports of sexual conduct, we heard from female
students at various schools where Mr. Whitehurst taught that he would “check
them out” in the school hallways and make comments about their appearance as
they went to their lockers or to class. His inappropriately flirtatious behavior made
students uncomfortable and many described him as “creepy.” School
administrators who supervised Mr. Whitehurst denied witnessing this type of

behavior. The harassing conduct was not reported, except for one time when Mr.
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Whitehurst made an offensive sexual comment to a Jefferson student. The student
told her mother, who in turn confronted Mr. Whitehurst and insisted the Jefferson
administrators address it. Mr. Whitehurst was verbally counseled but the incident
was not documented.

Mr. Whitehurst resigned from PPS in the spring of 2015 during an
. investigation into alleged sexual harassment of an adult male coworker at Faubion.
Through his union’s attorneys, he negotiated a resignation agreement that entitled
him to early retirement benefits and restricted the District’s ability to disclose
information regarding his employment other than basic employment information
(dates of employment, position, Ievél of compensation, resignation).

Over the course of his three-decade career, there was very little formal or
written documentation of Mr. Whitehurst’s inappropriate conduct. What little
documentation existed did not follow him as he moved from school to school.
Central files were similarly siloed. PPS police files were stored as of 2001, when the
District hired its first HR legal counsel. She, in turn, kept her own separate paper
files on Mr. Whitehurst, apparently unaware of any existing files other than his
personnel file. The District lacked any centralized system to trac‘k an educator’s
conduct, such that Mr. Whitehurst succeeded in denying his conduct and

administrators repeatedly treated his inappropriate conduct as a one-time lapse in
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judgment,

The decentralized systems at PPS, coupled with a lack of any viable
document management system or misconduct tracking system, contributed to Mr.
Whitehurst’s ability to evade discipline. Our investigation found that PPS
administrators were reluctant to issue formal discipline because it could be
challenged by the teachers’ union, Portland Association of Teachers (PAT). To
avoid the challenge by the union, administrators appeared to favor taking action
that was short of formal discipline — such as delivering a verbal warning in
response to_ complaint or taking the remedial step of placing a
Concordia student teacher in Mr. Whitehurst’s- at Faubion. These lesser
actions did not trigger union involvement. They also did not create a record of
disciplinary action such that repeat behavior of the same or similar inappropriate
conduct would ever result in termination of the offending educator.

The decentralized system also led to a collective failure by employees who
were involved in investigations of allegations regarding sexual conduct by
Mr. Whitehurst. Complaints were inadequately addressed in part because each
person involved assumed the other persons involved would handle the issue and
see it through to completion. Accountability for these investigations and their

outcome was [acking throughout Mr. Whitehurst’s career,
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The same reliance on other employees to carry out a proper investigation |

appears to have permeated the request from the 2016-17 PPS Board to its

high-level administrators to conduct a “lessons learned” internal review for the
Board of how the District failed to address Mr. Whitehurst’s misconduct. Our
investigation found that the Board’s directive went unheeded, but for the interim
superintendent Bob McKean conducting an internal audit of existing policies and
training materials regarding prevention and reporting of sexual conduct. The
numerous transitions among high-level administrators during and shortly after the
201.6-17 school year appear to be a significant factor in that work not being done.

Our investigation did not reveal that employees protected Mr, Whitehurst
throughout his employment or that he was moved from school to scHooI to avoid
discipline for sexual conduct or to placate concerns thereof. Although Mr.
Whitehurst was unassigned numerous times during his career at PPS, based on the
school records and our interviews with the administrators involved in the transfers
his moves appeared to be for legitimate reasons (e.g., budget cuts or staffing
needs).

Our report includes a separate section on Norman “Norm” Scott, a former
PPS educator whose 30-plus year employment was checkered with performance

issues and allegations of sexual conduct. We found commonalities between Mr.
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Scott and Mr. Whitehurst. Like Mr. Whitehurst, Mr. Scott had a reputation among
female students for being “creepy” and gave certain attractive female students
unwanted attention. Some female students complained that they were
uncomfortable around him and did not like the unwanted attention. Like Mr.
Whitehurst, many of the complaints about Mr. Scott’s inappropriate conduct were
handled with non-disciplinary verbal coaching rather than formal written discipline
that could follow him from one school to another during his lengthy teaching
career. The verbal coaching, while perhaps immediately effective, did not change
the educator’s long-term behavior.

And like Mr. Whitehurst, Mr. Scott left PPS with a resignation agreement
that restricted the District’s ability to disclose information regarding his
employment, even when contacted by other education providers pursuantto a
statute that requires a school district to disclose any substantiated reports of
sexual conduct by a former employee to an educational provider requesting this
information.

Contrary to the agreement, the District did disclose to a few educétional
providers that Mr. Scott had been the subject of a substantiated report of sexual
conduct. When he learned of one such disclosure, Mr. Scott threatened to sue PPS

for breaching his resignation agreement. The District quickly entered into a second
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agreement with him retracting its previous disclosure to that education provider.
Our investigation of Mr. Scott focused primarily on these post-employment

agreements.

In addition to investigating Mr. Whitehurst’s employment history, we were
tasked with making recommendations to the District. Our recommendations
attempt to address all of the shortcomings that led to the District’s failure to
recognize an educator’s sexual conduct with students, failure to investigate it
thoroughly, and failure to take action to ensure a safe educational environment by
remaving the offending educator. The recommendations address complaint
procedures, investigation procedures, training, the PAT union contract, document
management, and transparency in resignation agreements.

Specifically, we make the foHowing‘recommendations:

» Adopt the following procedures to investigate sexual conduct complaints
(see pages 130-142):

1. Train and require building administrators and HR Department staff
who receive complaints to document every complaint or concern of
sexual conduct and report them all to the Title IX coordinator or a
similar designee.

2. Have a specialized trained investigator with expertise in investigating
employee/student sexual conduct complaints investigate each
complaint thoroughly and fairly.
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3. Have a core group of multi-disciplinary administrators (the employee’s
supervisor, HR legal counsel, Title IX coordinator, and investigator if
different from the Title X coordinator) make credibility decisions and
agree regarding what level of discipline to impose, if any.

4. Implement a centralized tracking mechanism to document all
complaints, including their outcome.

» Work with PAT to change certain contract provisions in the District’s union
contract to adequately address sexual conduct complaints and ensure the
protection of students. Specific provisions of the PAT contract include Article
22 (Personnel Files), Article 19 (Professional Educator Rights and Just Cause),
and Article 21 (Complaint Procedure). (See pages 143-153.)

» Review and change the District’s other union contracts, as appropriate, to
adequately address sexual conduct complaints and to ensure the protection
of students. (See pages 153-154.)

» Improve the District’s sexual conduct training in the following ways (see
pages 160-167):

1.- Improve the sexual conduct prevention and identification training
provided to PPS employees.

2. Require sexual conduct prevention and identification training for PPS
volunteers and contractors.

3. Improve the sexual conduct prevention and identification training
provided to PPS students,

4. Correct and update the materials regarding sexual conduct on the PPS
website.
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Exercise transparency with employee separations and do not enter into
resignation agreements that restrict the disclosure of possible sexual
conduct (see pages 182-188).

Implement an adult/student boundaries policy (see pages 188-190).

Lobby for changes outside the District to make Oregon safer for students
(see pages 190-193).

Revise the administrative directive entitled “Prohibition Against Employee
Child Abuse and Sexual Conduct With Students” to clarify that the District
has cause to issue corrective action even if all four statutory elements of
sexual conduct are not met (see pages 194-195).

Require PPS employees to check with the HR Department before providing a
reference for a former PPS employee (see page 195).

Designate a liaison between the PPB and the District to monitor cases
involving allegations of sexual conduct by a PPS employee {see page 196).
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Il.  TERMINOLOGY IN THIS REPORT

“Sexual conduct” as defined by the TSPC is any conduct with a student which
includes but is not limited to:

(a)  The intentional touching of the breast or sexual or other
intimate parts of a student;

(b}  Causing, encouraging, or permitting a student to touch the
breasts or sexual or other intimate parts of a student:

(c)  Sexual advances or requests for sexual favors directed towards
a student;

(d)  Verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when directed
toward a student or when such conduct has the effect of
unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational
performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive
educational environment; or

(e} Verbal or physical conduct which has the effect of unreasonably
interfering with a student’s educational performance or creates
an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment.

OAR 584-020-0005(5). The TSPC deems any sexual conduct with a student by an

educator to be evidence of gross neglect of duty and grounds for TSPC disciplinary
action, including suspension or revocation of the educator’s license. See OAR 584~
020-0040(4)(f). The TSPC's standards apply to any licensed, registered or certified

person who is authorized to engage in an instructional program including teaching,
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counseling, school psychology, administering, and supervising. See OAR 584-020-
0005(3).

The meaning of “sexual conduct” as defined by ORS 339.370-.400, a
statutory scheme that triggers an obligation of disclosure among education
providers, became effective in 2010 and requires a higher threshold of damaging
conduct than the TSPC standard before the statute is triggered. ORS 339.370(9)
defines “sexual conduct” as any verbal or physical or other conduct by a school
employee that is sexual in nature; directed toward a kindergarten through grade
12 student; has the effect of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational
performance; and creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational
environméﬁt. All four elements must be met. The statutory definition for sexual
conduct does not include behavior that would be considered child abuse (and
hence, immediately reportable to local law enforcément).

The District has an administrative directive that tracks the requirements of
the statutory scheme. See AD 5.10.063-AD, “Prohibition Against Employeé Child
Abuse and Sexual Conduct with Students.” This AD uses the same four-part
definition that is contained in the statute.

The District also has a policy prohibiting staff-to-student sexual harassment.

The term “sexual harassment” includes conduct, verbal or nonverbal, which
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denigrates or shows hostility to a student or students by reason of their gender.
The term also includes “any attempt by action or words to establish with a student
an amorous, sexual, lascivious or lewd relationship, knowingly use lascivious or
lewd language or gestures in the presence of a student, or permitting a student to
continue acts or statements which can be réasonably perceived as attempting to
establish an amorous or sexual relationship with the staff member or volun.teer.”
See PPS Board Policy 5.10.062-P.

‘Inour report, we use the term “sexual conduct” to encompass a broad set
of comments and/or behaviors that are inappropriately sexual in nature, usually
direct toward a gtudent by an employee. Our use of the term follows the TSPC's
broad definition of inappropriately sexual behavior. We do not use the term as it is
defined in ORS 339.370, with all four requisite elements, except when we refer to
the statute in our report. The term “sexual conduct” is synonymous with “sexual

misconduct” for purposes of our report.
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. INVESTIGATION METHODOLOGY

On September 19, 2017, at a Special Meeting, the Portland Public School
Roard of Education {the Board) defined and approved the scope of this
independent investigation and subsequently formalized itin a letter to its counsel,
Amy Joseph Pedersen. The letter called on the investigation team to answer 21
precise questions focused on why Mr. Whitehurst's conduct had not been
adequately dealt with by PPS, the specific facts attendant to the conduct, and
recommendations for policy and procedural changes to prevent its recurrence by
another educator.

On February 2, 2018, the Board expanded the scope of the iﬁvestigation to
be informed by PPS’s response to allegations raised about inappropriate conduct
by forrﬁer educator Norm Scott, including post-employment actions by the District.

The investigation took over six months to complete. It consisted of over 100

witness interviews and the review of thousands of documents.

WITNESSES:

We found almost all of the past and current PPS employees that we
contacted to be cooperative and willing to participate in the investigation. The vast

majority of witnesses not only agreed to speak with us, they were entirely candid
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and offered thoughtful insights into the issues under investigation. Only a handful
of witnesses declined to speak with us. In addition to live and telephonic

interviews, we received and reviewed communications sent to a dedicated emall

address and confidential phone line.

Below are the individuals who were contacted or interviewed for the
investigation, as well as the witnesses who were relevant to a particular time
period but not interviewed for the reasons described:

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT MARSHALL HIGH SCHOOL, 1982-83:

Vince “Pesky” Paveskovich, vice principal {through a family member)
Larry Linne, school police officer

Did not interview:
Gust Kanas, principal {deceased)
Judith Lachenmeier (Valjean), vice principal {deceased)

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT FRANKLIN HIGH SCHOOL, 1983-84:

George Guthrie, principal

Audrey Hanes, vice principal

Cathy Schar, vice principal

Joyce Gago, front desk employee and cheerleader advisor
Larry Dashiell, teacher and speech coach

Anonymous former student #1 {allegation of sexual conduct)
‘Anonymous former student #2 (allegation of sexual conduct)
Caprice, former student (allegation of sexual conduct)

- former student (no allegation of sexual conduct)

- former student (no allegation of sexual conduct)

Il former student (no allegation of sexual conduct)
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Larry Linne, school police officer
Holly Vaughn-Edmunds, Beaumont Middle School counselor
Tammy Jackson, supervisor to Vaughn-Edmonds

Did not interview:
Frank Frangiapani, vice principal (deceased)
Jill Schroeder, direct supervisor to Whitehurst (deceased)

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT SELLWOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL, 1984-86:

John “Bill” Beck, Jr., principal

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL, 1986-1997:

Carol Matarazzo, principal

Toni Hunter, vice principal

Sandra Page, vice principal

Bruce Richards, vice principal

Bruce Plato, vice principal

John Cover, vice principal

Larry Dashiell, interim vice principal

Lowell Slick, athletic director
Anonymous ||| ] (2'\esation of sexval conduct]
- former student (allegation of sexual harassment)
- former student (no allegation of sexual conduct}

Did not interview:
Velma Johnson, principal {did not respond to multiple requests for interviews)

Judith Lachenmeier (Valjean), principal (deceased)
Chet Moran, vice principal (deceased)

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT SITTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 1991-92:

tames Brannon, principal
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RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT MARSHALL HIGH SCHOOL, 1997-2007:

Greg Wolleck, principal

Stevie Newcomer, vice principal

John Wilhelmi, vice principal

Fred Locke, principal of Renaissance Academy of the Arts
- former student {allegations of sexual harassment)
David Thoman, PPB police officer

Tom Perkins, PPB sergeant

Frank Klejmont, PPB lieutenant (2001), PPS Head of Security
Maureen Sloane, HR legal counsel

Did not interview:

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT EVENING SCHOLARS PROGRAIM, 2002-06, 2008-13:

Greg Neuman, Principal

Eryn Berg, administrator

Macarre Traynahm, administrator
Kristyn Westphal, administrator
Ginger Taylor, administrator

Lynn Buedefeldt, administrator

Did not interview:
Gary Earle, administrator {could not locate)

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT JEFFERSON HIGH SCHOOL, 2007-2012:

John Wilhelmi, principal

Cynthia Harris, principal

Margaret Calvert, principal

Ricky Allen, vice principal

Sheri Kammerzell, secretary to Cynthia Harris
Shannon Misner, secretary to Mitch Whitehurst
Aznegashe Yelma, coach
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lvona Whittmayer, employee in Nutritional Services Department
Cindy Shepard, employee in Custodial Department

Dennis Tune, PPS security services

Bobbie Regan, PPS Board member

pnonymous [

Parent of anonymous former student #4

Loretta Benjamin-Samuels, HR performance management director
Maureen Sloane, HR legal counsel

Richard Clarke, director of HR

RELATED TO TIME PERIOD AT FAUBION SCHOOL, 2012-2015:

Jen McCalley, vice principal

Andrea Martin, counselor

Antonio Lopez, regional administrator, lefferson and Franklin Clusters
Caprice, substitute teacher (last name withheld per her request as a former
student with allegation of sexual conduct)

o studen:

Frank Scotto, HR regional director

Jollee Patterson, general counsel

Jeff Fish, HR Iégal counse!

Siobhan Murphy, Legal Department staff

Sean Murray, chief HR officer .

Stephanie Harper, HR fegal counsel and interim general counsel (2016-17)
Jeanne Windham, Lega! Department paralegal

Mary Elizabeth Harper, HR senior manager

DeShawn Williams, PPB school resources officer

Mike Weinstein, PPB detective

Christina Mascal, Deputy District Attorney

Did not interview:

LaShawn Lee, principal (declined to be interviewed but did provide a written
statement through her attorney)

Harriet Adair, regional administrator (declined to be interviewed)
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Ken Berry, teacher {declined to be interviewed)

Rory Thompson, student management specialist {declined to be interviewed)
John Berkey, PAT Uniserv Consultant {Whitehurst's union representative)
(declined to be interviewed but provided written input)

NOT RELATED TO A PARTICULAR SCHOOL:

Vicki Phillips, superintendent {2004-07)

Carole Smith, superintendent {2007-16)

Bob McKean, interim superintendent (2016-17)

John Payne, manager of Security Operations

Amanda Whalen, chief of staff

Sascha Perrins, interim chief of staff

Various current PPS employees (not directly related to Whitehurst
employment but interviewed for purpose of making recommendations)
Mike Rosen, PPS Board member

Pam Knowles, PPS Board member

Amy Kohnstamm, PPS Board member

Scott Bailey, PPS Board member

Tom Koehler, PPS Board member and 2016-17 chair

Julia Brim-Edwards, PPS Board member and 2017-18 chair

Kim Sordyl, parent of current PPS students

Michael Porter, Miller Nash Graham & Dunn LLP attorney
Naomi Haslitt, Miller Nash Graham & Dunn LLP attorney

Christina Edgar, TSPC investigator
Trent Danowski, TSPC deputy director
Raul Ramirez, DOJ counsel (representing TSPC)

San Francisco Unified School District HR and Legal Department staff

Did not interview:
Mitchell “Mitch” Whitehurst (declined to be interviewed)
Suzanne Cohen, PAT president (declined to be interviewed)
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RELATED TO NORM SCOTT:

Frank Scotto, Sellwood principal and HR regional director
Jeff Fish, HR legal counsel
“Curtis Wilson, Grant High School vice principal

Michael Porter, Miller Nash Graham & Dunn LLP attorney

Clackamas Fducation Service District staff
Oregon City Schoo! District HR Department staff

DOCUMENTS;

The District provided or aftempted to provide all documents requested. We
made successful public records requests for documents fro’m the Teacher
Stahdards & Practices Commission {TSPC) and the Portland Police Bureau (PPB).
The District’s outside law firm, Miller Nash. Graham & Dunn LLP (“Miller Nash”),
also provided all the documents we requested.

Altogether we received énd reviewed the following materials:

e PPS emails and attachments: 367.42 GB {378,008 files) (strategically
searched and reviewed);

e PPS documents, not including the email searches: 459 MB (49 files);

e Documents from Miller Nash: 2 GB (2,635 files);

e Other: over 850 MB {231 files) — including documents responsive to
public records requests to the TSPC, PPB, and Clackamas County DA’s
Office; documents provided by interested members of the
community; and other miscellaneously sourced documents,
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LIMITATIONS TO QUR INVESTIGATION:

This investigation was not w;thout its challenges. We attempted to look back
36 years and investigate Mr. Whitehurst’s employment at PPS starting in 1982.
Given the length of time that has passed, some witnesses had passed away. Some
witnesses’” memories of specific events had faded. Other witnesses expressed the
possibility of memory fallibility and were not sure about what they actually recalled
and what they had recently read in the media about the Whitehurst matter.

We did not have the power to compel any witnessés to speak with us (through a
subpoena, grand jury, or other mechanism). Thus, we did not have the opportunity
to interview any witnesses who told us they did not want to be interviewed or who
did not respond to our requests for an interview.

The District’s document management system (or lack trhereof) made it
difficult to gather all of the documents we would have wanted to review. For
example, PPS did not have a database that could access emails created prior to
mid-2011. The only pre-mid-2011 emails that we reviewed were those that had
been printed out in hard copy and saved by the recipient. We also were
unsuccessful finding other relevant documents that had been archived in a manner
that they could not be found, such as the PPS police files that were presumably

archived in November 2001, when the PPS police force was disbanded and the PPB
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took over policing the schools. Documents rﬁaintained in the Blanchard Education
Service Center (BESC) did not reside in one centralized location orin a centralized
electronic database and our requests often required extensive searching by District
personnel.

Lastly, the District’s contracts with the teacher’s union, Portland Association
of Teachers (PAT), over the years from 1982-2016 contained terms that required
the District to remove materials from Mr. Whitehurst's personnel file and building
files. This routine practice of purging documents made it impossible to access
some critical evidence of inappropriate conduct by Mr. Whitehurst that most likely
had been placed in these files contemporaneously with the behavior. We could not
ascertain what documentation, if any, was ever placed in Mr. Whitehurst's files.
When we received a copy of Mr. Whitehurst's 360-page personnel record, it was

void of any discipline or other documentation of inappropriate behavior.
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V. WHITEHURST CHRONOLOGY

Green Allegations of Sexual Conduct
Gold Notice to PPS of Sexual Conduct
(red font = summary of notice and response)

Blue TSPC Activity Involving Whitehurst

DATE EVENT

1981 Mitch Whitehurst obtains a BA degree.

1/19/1982 | Whitehurst is licensed by the TSPC.

1582-83 Whitehurst is hired @ Marshall High School.
Whitehurst is hired as a temporary substitute teacher. Shortly
thereafter, he is hired as a temporary Student Integration Services
(SIS) coordinator, a position with responsibilities that include
providing counseling to students of color and at-risk students and
generally acting as their advocate. He switches from temp to 1%
year probationary teacher in November 1982.
He is unassigned at the end of the school year because his
assignment at Marshall was only temporary, He leaves with a
positive evaluation from vice principal Judy Lachenmeier.
Gust Kanas, principal; Judy Lachenmeier and Vince “Pesky”
Paveskovich, vice principals.

\

Sometime | Marshall vice principal Paveskovich reports to PPS officer Larry

in the Linne that he has general concerns that Whitehurst is engaging in

1982-83 borderline inappropriate behavior with students. This was an “EYI”

school year | of sorts and was not a specific complaint from or about any

particular student.
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There is no specific complaint, therefore the PPS police do not
conduct an investigation.

1983-84 Whitehurst works @ Franklin High School.

Whitehurst moves to Franklin High School where he works again
as an SIS coordinator.

He is unassigned at the end of the school year because his
assignment at Franklin was only temporary (he had been filling in
for a staff member on sabbatical leave who planned to return in the

fall of 1984). He leaves with a positive evaluation from his direct
supervisor, Jill Schroeder.

George Guthrie, principal; Frank Frangiapani, Audrey Hanes, Cathy
Schar, vice principals.

1983 Whitehurst allegedly pays extra attention to and flirts in the school

halls with a

The student does not report the misconduct to an adult, nor is she
aware of any PPS employees who witnessed anything inappropriate.

1984 In late May or early June, Whitehurst allegedly invites

(Caprice
18 years old, Class of ‘84) to his apartment.

Per Caprice:

In the school halls, Whitehurst confirms and then
invites- to his apartment to swim, drink beer, and attend
a party with other students. Caprice

. Caprice has a beer,
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While Whitehurst was working at Franklin High School, he lived
nearby at an apartment complex that had a swimming pool.

goes swimming at the apartment complex’s pool and then
returns to the apartment
. She walks in on Whitehurst
making out in his apartment. He then tells her,

, then you
Caprice says no,
, and
then runs home. She does not tell any adult at the time.

can,
checks in with

After this incident, Whitehurst makes rude comments to
Caprice in the halls (“l want some of that [her last name]
meat!”) and appears emboldened around her to make sexual
comments. When she attempts to get her transcript the week
after the bad experience at his apartment, he brings her into his
office, shuts the door, and tells her she will have to suck his dick
under his desk to get it. She runs from his office. Caprice later
hears he was fired a year later for hitting on female students,
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Neither student reports the misconduct at the time to any adult, nor
- aware of any PPS employees who witnessed inappropriate
conduct.

As noted later in this chronology, Caprice reports the conduct to
multiple PPS employees in 2008 and again in 2012.

Sometime
in the
1983-84
school year

While Whitehurst is working at Franklin High School, vice principal
Frank Frangiapani reports to PPS officer Larry Linne that he received
a call from a concerned mother: her daughter told her that within
the last month, Whitehurst was entertaining female students at his
residence and engaging in inappropriate conduct-;
“sexual conduct” was not specifically mentioned.

Linne interviews Whitehurst with a union rep present (maybe Dean
Mauchley). Whitehurst denies having any students over to his
residence. Linne writes up his report and puts it on the PPS police
record system. It appears no formal disciplinary action was taken.

A report is made by the Franklin vice principal to the school police
officer. The school police officer investigates and makes a written
record of the investigation.

[This written report could not be found and is believed to have
been lost or destroyed when the PPS police force was disbanded in
late 2001. The report may still exist in the PPS or PPB archives.
Repeated attempts by the investigation team to locate the report
were unsuccessful.]

1984-86

Whitehurst works @ Sellwood Middle School.

Whitehurst moves to Sellwood Middle School and works as a PE
instructor from 1984-1986. He is originally hired as a temp for a Pt
teacher who is on sabbatical; then that teacher transfers schools
and Whitehurst keeps the slot.

He sees an opportunity to work and coach at Lincoln High School
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(where he is already coaching part-time), and is encouraged to
pursue the opportunity by the Sellwood principal, who recognizes
Whitehurst’s eagerness to coach high school teams. Whitehurst is
given an excellent review and recommendation by Bill Beck to work
at Lincoln High School. He is an administrative transfer to Lincoln.

John “Bill” Beck, principal.

Sometime
in the
1984-5 or
1985-86
school year

Three female students complain that Whitehurst is looking at their
chests. Principal Bill Beck has the Sellwood Middle School student
management specialist (Dale Smith) interview the three girls. Smith
determines that one girl in particular had felt uncomfortable that
Whitehurst was looking at her chest and told the other two.

Beck verbally counsels Whitehurst not to look at the girls’ chests.
Whitehurst is professional when questioned about the complaint.
He offers an explanation along the lines of having looked at
something on the girl’s t-shirt, and does not really deny the
conduct. It appears to Beck as though Whitehurst is open to the
coaching and won’t repeat the conduct. Beck does not get any
other complaints and at the time, does not think this one complaint
Is serious enough to report to the TSPC or the District.

The Sellwood principal verbally counsels Whitehurst about sexual
conduct (ogling) but makes no written record of it.

1984-85

Whitehurst coaches @ Franklin High School.

Boys JV Basketball Coach and Freshman Boys Baseball Coach

1985-86

Whitehurst coaches @ Franklin High School.
Head Girls Varsity Tennis Coach

Whitehurst coaches @ Benson High School.
Boys IV Basketball Coach

1986-97

Whitehurst works @ Lincoln High School.
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As the result of an administrative transfer, Whitehurst moves from
Sellwood Middle School to Lincoln High School and becomes an SIS
coordinator.

He works at Lincoln only for .5 FTE in 1991-92; he also teaches at
Sitton Elementary School as .5 FTE that year.

He also teaches Personal Finance at Lincoln in 1995.

Head Boys Varsity Basketball Coach 1986-96 (this preceded the
transfer)
Head Girls Varsity Tennis Coach 1986-97

Judy Lachenmeier ('86-89), Carol Matarazzo ('89-91), and Velma
Johnson ('92-97), principals; Bruce Richards (‘87-90), lohn Cover
(‘87-88), Chet Moran (‘87-90), Sandra Page (‘89-96), Toni Hunter
(‘91-94), and Bruce Plato (“91-94), vice principals; Lowell Slick,
athletic director (1986-94).

199192 Whitehurst also works @ Sitton Elementary School.
PE Teacher (.5 temporary).

James H. Brannon, principal.

Whitehurst allegedly engages in inappropriate conduct with a
Lincoln Class of

1991-94
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se. She avoids him as much as

possible after this experience.

The student does not report the misconduct to any adult, nor is she
aware of any PPS employees who witnessed any inappropriate
conduct.

School year
1995-96
(at least)

Whitehurst allegedly harasses female students in the halls of
Lincoln by commenting on their appearance, looking them up and
down, and acting in an overfriendly manner.

The harassment is apparently not reported to any adult.

7/1997

Whitehurst is notified by principal Velma Johnson that he is
unassigned. There is no evidence that Whitehurst is unassigned
because of any inappropriate behavior around female students.

Whitehurst's May 1997 evaluation refers to a

He applies but is not selected for a position at Humboldt, He is

selected for a position at Marshall High School.
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1997-2006

Whitehurst works @ Marshall High School.

After being unassigned, Whitehurst lands at Marshall as an SI5
coordinator, 1997-2004 (hired in summer ‘97 on a temporary basis
to fill in for Karl Newsome, .5 SIS +.5 truancy grant). He is also a
dean of students, 1997-2005, as well as a PE/Health teacher in 2004
and apparently during later years.

Boys Varsity Basketball Coach (removed due to complaints
unrelated to sexual conduct)

Boys Varsity Tennis Coach

Boys Soccer Coach

Greg Wolleck, principal; Gary Earle, John Wilhelmi and Stevie
Newcomer, vice principals.

When Marshall breaks into smaller schools, Whitehurst teaches at
Renaissance Arts Academy as a dean from 2004-05 and a PE/Health
teacher from 2004-06. Whitehurst is unassigned in ‘06 due to
budget cuts.

Fred Locke, principal.

7/1/00

Maureen Sloane and Jollee Patterson begin working at PPS in the
Legal Department. Prior to Maureen Sloane, there was no HR legal
counsel at PPS.

Sometime
during
school
years 1997-
2000

PPS officer George Weatheroy is dispatched to Marshall to
interview a student complained that Whitehurst made

inappropriate comments . Weatheroy takes the initial report
and writes it up, but does not recall interviewing Whitehurst.

School police respond to a student complaint and interview the
student. The school police officer makes a written record of the
investigation.
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12/2000

2/2001 -
11/2001

[The written report could not be found and is believed to have
been lost or destroyed when the PPS police force was disbanded in
late 2001. The report may still exist in the PPS or PPB archives.
Repeated attempts by the investigation team to locate the report
were unsuccessful.]
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11/1/01 School police funding is eliminated, and the PPS police force is
replaced by the PPB. Apparently little institutional knowledge is
carried forward. Cases are only maintained in the PPB system if the
alleged conduct is potentially criminal.

Prior to this transition, the PPS police conducted personnel
investigations. The PPB did not conduct personnel investigations for
the District. If the conduct under investigation was deemed by the
PPB to be a personnel issue and rather than criminal allegations, the
PPB handed the investigation back to PPS to complete.

11/2/01

11/2/01
exHig 1: [ WRUTEN STATEMENT

11/2/01— | PPS places Whitehurst on paid leave.

11/7/01

11/5/01
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EXHIBIT 2: POLICE REPORT

11/7/01
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EXHIBIT 3: MEMO TO WHITEHURST FROM WOLLECK

Per the union contract in effect at the time, disciplinary materials
were not to be removed from personnel files. However, this memo
does not appear to have ever been added to his personnel file. There
is no “cc: personnel file” or “cc: PAT rep” at the bottom of the
memo, as would be expected of a memo to be placed in the
personnel file. We did not find any evidence that the union was
involved in the investigation.

Whitehurst had the right, pursuant to the union contract, to request
and have granted that non-disciplinary materials (including a letter
of warning or a reprimand) be removed from the personnel and
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building files if after three years of being written no subsequent
similar entries had been made in his building or personnel file. By
2005, with no further documented sexual conduct on record,
Whitehurst apparently had the right to have the memo removed
from his files.

The union contract also called for removal of materials in the
building files when either the teacher or the supervisor is
transferred. Therefore, when Greg Wolleck left Jefferson in July
2002, the contract required that Whitehurst’s building file be purged
and the memo removed from the file due to the change in
supervisors. When Whitehurst moved to Renaissance Academy in
2004, he had a new supervisor (Fred Locke) and materials would
have again been removed from his building file. When he moved
from Marshall to Jefferson in 2006, all materials would have been
purged and the memo (if it still remained) removed from his building
file to be in compliance with the union contract.

11/8/01 Whitehurst is returned to work.

12/07/01 | PPS reports the student complaint to the TSPC.

5/17/02 TSPC dismisses the case and takes no action against Whitehurst,

2002-06 Whitehurst works @ Portland Evening Scholars High Schaol
In the evenings, Whitehurst works as a PE teacher.

Gary Earle ("02-04), Macarre Traynham {'04-06), administrators.

2003-06 Whitehurst coaches @ District Athletics

Whitehurst coaches PIL HS sports, Boys Tennis Coach

2004-06 Whitehurst works @ Renaissance Arts Academy on Marshall Campus

When Marshall divides into smaller schools, Whitehurst works at
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Renaissance Arts Academy (SIS/PE/Health positions).

Fred Locke, supervisor,

School year | Whitehurst allegedly ogles and comments on the appearance of
2004-05 female students in the halls of Renaissance.

(at least)
The harassment is apparently not reported to any adult.

2006-12 Whitehurst works @ Jefferson High School

PE Teacher 2006-12

SIS Coordinator 2006-08

Dean of Students 2007-09

Student Management Specialist 2007-08 {1.0); 2008-09 {.5)
Athletic Director 2008-11 {.5); 2011-12 (.3)

Head Girls Volleyball Coach 2006-08

Head Boys Tennis Coach 2006-08

Whitehurst is unassigned at Marshall and was brought to Jefferson
by John Wilhelmi, who as an interim principal at Jefferson selects
him over another PE teacher at lefferson as a Round 2 pick. There is
no evidence Whitehurst was unassigned at Marshall due to any
inappropriate behavior with female students. Wilhelmi assumed
Whitehurst was in the selection pool due to budget cuts at
Marshall.

John Wilhelmi {"06-07); Cynthia Harris ("07-10); Toni Hunter {"10-
11); Margaret Calvert ("11-12), principals; Ricky Allen, vice principal.

1/25/08 Caprice (Franklin student, Class of ‘84) either talks to her aunt who
works at Jefferson or reads an article in the paper about Whitehurst
and learns he is a dean at Jefferson. She confers briefly with Joyce
Gago (her Franklin cheerleader advisor) and Holly Vaughn-Edmunds
about whether she
should report his prior sexual conduct, then goes to the HR
Department, where she reports the incident to Loretta
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Benjamin-Samuels in the HR Department and then meets with legal
counsel Maureen Sloane. She describes for Sloane the 1984
incident involving her,

- and Whitehurst at Whitehurst’s apartment including his
demands for oral sex. Caprice recalls Sloane took notes and then
asked her, “So what do you want?”

1/25/08

HR legal counsel Sloane writes up the complaint and describes her
investigation in a memo she places in her own files but not in
Whitehurst’s personnel or building files.

Sloane confirms that Caprice was a student at Franklin High School
when Whitehurst was working there as an Integration Specialist.
She confirms from her own files that there was a previous similar
complaint from a Marshall student in 2001 that
Whitehurst

She notes that she wrote a reprimand at
that time and then reported the complaint to the TSPC, which took
no action. "There are no other indications of any inappropriate
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further actions on this matter.” At the bottom of the memo, in

handwriting, she notes, “Richard Clarke [HR Director] agreed.”
EXHIBIT 4: MEMO TO FILE FROM SLOANE
EXHIBIT 5: INVESTIGATION NOTES BY SLOANE

Sloane does not COF?I'G{TE’_ and she
does not investigate the matter further (such as contacting the
administration at Jefferson to find out if Whitehurst was exhibiting
behavioral issues or had engaged in any undocumented
inappropriate conduct). She does not interview Whitehurst about

the dated allegations.

_ INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 38



During our investigation, Sloane explained that Clarke took a narrow
approach to reporting to the TSPC and did not usually want Sloane
to report a teacher to the TSPC unless PPS was quite confident that
misconduct had actually occurred. Clarke denied that he or his office
was overly cautious in reporting to the TSPC and said they always
reported to the TSPC when it was appropriate to do so. He found
Maureen Sloane to be a capable and competent investigator.

HR legal counsel receives a complaint and takes no action other
than documenting her intent not to take action in her own files (with
HR director approval noted). No record is placed in Whitehurst’s
building or personnel files. The TSPC is not notified.

1/28 or
29/08

Skeptical that Sloane would take any action, Caprice speaks to
Cynthia Harris, the principal at lefferson. She is allegedly rebuffed
by Harris. According to Caprice, Harris tells her that if HR is working
on the issue, then the school does not need to do anything. She
asks Caprice why she wants to “bring a good black man down” and
tells her she is sure that Whitehurst’s demand for oral sex was a
cultural misunderstanding. 2

In our investigation, Harris denied Caprice’s allegations. Harris did
not recall ever speaking with Caprice. She did recall that her
secretary (Sheri Kamrmerzell) once took a call from someone who
said they had read about Whitehurst in the paper and had
“information about Mitch Whitehurst.” Harris said she directed the
secretary to tell the caller to contact the District’s Legal Department,
and at no time learned the substance of the caller’s information.
After the call, Harris said she checked Whitehurst’s personnel file but
did not see anything that caused concern. Harris’s secretary does
not remember any call from someone with information about
Whitehurst.

After notifying or confirming notice to HR Legal Department, the
principal takes no action in response to a report from a student of
sexual conduct and/or abuse in 1984. (Note the principal in
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question denies this allegation.)

8/2008 Whitehurst becomes the Jefferson athletic director (extended
responsibility).

Sometime | Whitehurst allegedly makes a comment that is sexual in nature to a

in school Jefferson student about the manner in which she is eating grapes at

year 2008- | a secretary’s desk outside his office — something about the shape of

09 the grapes, the way she is eating them, and how they are going into
her mouth. His lewd comment disgusts her, especially because he
ogles her female friends and is known to be “creepy.”
The student complains to her mother, who comes to lefferson to
confront Whitehurst. He gives an explanation that makes no sense
to her. She tells him never to speak to her daughters again. The
parent also complains to the administration. (The mother thinks she
may have spoken to principal Harris. Harris denies any knowledge of
this complaint and does not believe it came to her attention.}
Parent reports sexual comment to building administrator, possibly
principal.

Shortly Vice principal Ricky Allen verbally counsels Whitehurst about his

afterwards | inappropriate comment to the student. Allen {(who recalls

in school Whitehurst’s comment related to what the student was wearing)

year 2008- | did not believe the incident warranted discipline and did not

09 document the conversation.
Vice principal verbally counsels Whitehurst about a sexually
harassing comment to a student but makes no written record of it.

2008-13 Whitehurst returns to work @ Portland Evening Scholars

PE Teacher

Gregory Neuman (‘08-10), principal; Lynn Buedefeldt ('10-11), Eryn
Berg ("11-12), Kristyn Westphal (‘12-13), and Ginger Taylor ('11-13),

INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 40




administrators who loosely supervise Whitehurst.

2009 Sloane retires. Jeff Fish becomes HR legal counsel.

2009 House Bill 2062 (HB 2062) passes. Oregon law (ORS 339.400,
effective July 1, 2010) requires training on identification and
prevention of sexual conduct, as well as reporting obligations, for all
school district employees. The law includes a four-part definition of
“sexual conduct.”

10/07/10 Assistant girls volleyball coach Aznegashe (“AZ”) Yelma finds a cell
phone_ with texts from/to “Mitch”

sent at late hours in the night. She reports this to the police based
on her belief it is Whitehurst who is inappropriately texting with the
student. PPB investigates and concludes that the person texting the
student is not Mitch Whitehurst.

EXHIBIT 6: POLICE REPORTS

[We have no reason to dispute the outcome of the PPB’s
investigation.]

12/29/10 - | Someone puts up flyers outside of Jefferson High School with a
1/2/11 photo of Whitehurst’s face and the words “Alleged Molester!”
above it. The flyer contains a phone number for the Portland Police
Bureau and alleges Whitehurst “has been violating young girls for
over 20 years in his many positions as a teacher, coach, [and]
administrator for Portland Schools. Please don’t let it continue.”
Whitehurst is notified by the custodial department of the situation.
He files a report with the PPB and insists the flyers were created
and posted by a disgruntled parent (whom he identifies by name).
Whitehurst claims that the parent was dating his former girlfriend
and was motivated to harm Whitehurst’s reputation.

EXHIBIT 7: “ALLEGED MOLESTER!” FLYER

EXHIBIT 8: POLICE REPORT
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12/29/10

TSPC receives a copy of the flyer as an anonymous patron
complaint. PPS provides what limited information it has regarding
the flyers to the TSPC and does not conduct an investigation of its
own because the flyer was anonymous. PPS is unaware of anyone
who responded to the flyer by calling the phone number listed on it
to report sexual misconduct by Whitehurst.

EXHIBIT 9: MATERIALS PROVIDED TO THE TSPC BY PPS

3/6/11

Due to program changes, Whitehurst's FTE as athletic director is
reduced from .5 to .3 for the 2011-2012 school year.

5/1/11

Vice principal Allen evaluates Whitehurst, calling him an “asset to
Jefferson High School.”

5/13/11

TSPC dismisses the anonymous flyer complaint, taking no action
against Whitehurst.

2011-2012

Whitehurst has performance issues as the athletic director. None of
the issues is related to sexual conduct with students.

Whitehurst receives a memo informing him that he is not going to
continue to have extended responsibility as the athletic director as
of June 15. The issues cited in the memorandum do not involve
inappropriate conduct with female students.

Whitehurst is offered a 1.0 FTE position as a lefferson PE teacher.

4/10/12

Whitehurst contacts principal LaShawn Lee regarding his interest in
filling the opening for a PE teacher at Faubion School.

6/2012

Apparently no meeting takes place.
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2012-15 Whitehurst works @ Faubion School (K-8).

As a result of an administrative transfer, Whitehurst moves to
Faubion School to teach PE. There is no evidence that Whitehurst
was transferred due to sexual conduct or other inappropriate
behavior with female students.

Whitehurst makes approximately $15k less as a PE teacher than as
the Jefferson athletic director. However, Whitehurst makes the
same salary as a PE teacher at Faubion as he would have made as a
PE teacher at Jefferson.

LaShawn Lee, principal; Jen McCalley, vice principal.

12/12/12 On bus duty after school, two educational assistants (EAs) complain
or to a substitute teacher (Caprice, the Franklin "84 student who
12/13/12 complained in 2008 about Whitehurst) that Whitehurst calls them
“Baby” and “Girl.” They tell her that they don’t want to report him
to principal Lee because she appears to be friendly with him.

Caprice tells principal Lee that she is concerned Whitehurst is
teaching at Faubion. She informs Lee of her experience with
Whitehurst in 1984. Lee at first defends Whitehurst and insists he
would not do anything inappropriate with any Faubion girls,
especially since they are nat high school age. Caprice remains
concerned that Whitehurst should not be teaching.

Former Eranklin student works as a substitute teacher at Faubion.
She realizes Whitehurst is still employed at PPS and reports the 1984
sexual conduct by Whitehurst to the principal.

12/14/12 | After speaking to Caprice, Lee contacts Harriet Adair, who was a
regional administrator and her supervisor prior to Antonio Lopez
becoming the regional administrator.

Adair calls Jeff Fish (HR legal counsel), and asks him to call Lee. He
does so and
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ﬁ—

Fish then emails chief HR officer Sean Murray, general counsel
Jollee Patterson, and HR paralegal Siobhan Murphy to catch them
up on his conversation, since he is about to resign from PPS the
following day. The email states:

EXHIBIT 10: EMAIL FROM FISH TO PATTERSON AND MURPHY, CC
TO MURRAY

Murphy checks the various HR files and finds Sloane’s memos
regarding the complaints byl in 2001 and Caprice in 2008.
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Murray and Patterson
agree,

EXHIBIT 11: EMAIL EXCHANGE BETWEEN MURPHY, MURRAY AND
PATTERSON

Principal notifies her regional director of a delayed report of sexual
conduct from a student who graduated in 1984 and is a current
substitute teacher. She also reports potential verbal harassment of
adult education assistants (EAs). Regional director then notifies HR
legal counsel. HR legal counsel then

It is not clear whether any action is taken to address the re-surfaced
complaint of sexual conduct from 1984 or the ongoing harassment
of the EAs. There is no documentation of any investigation or
interview with Whitehurst about these concerns by anyone, and no
evidence of follow up with Caprice.

12/14/12

Caprice receives a call from Officer DeShawn Williams, Faubion SRO.
They speak for 15 minutes about her allegations.

Caprice again speaks to principal Lee about concerns for the
students as well as her concern of retaliation by Whitehurst. She
follows up with an email sent shortly after her call from Williams,
reiterating her concerns. She asks Lee to use discretion and only
disclose her story on a need-to-know basis.

12/14/2012
(approx.)

A PPB GirlsStreng
McCalley that

th program representative reports to vice principal
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12/2012 or | Vice principal Jen McCalley possibly speaks to Whitehurst about not
1/2013 using terms like “baby” and “girl” to refer to the EAs. (McCalley
recalls having what she described as a “soft conversation.” She did
not document jt.)

Principal Lee possibly speaks to Whitehurst about not using terms
like “baby” and “girl” to refer to the EAs. (Lee recalls having a
conversation in which she told him to stop using these terms. She
did not document it.)

12/15/12 — | Winter break.
1/1/13 (12/24/12-1/1/13 is a furlough and District offices are closed.)

1/4/2013 Faubion counselor Andrea Martin speaks with

, and although there is a rumor
that Whitehurst is a pedophile and he looks at the gix‘is—
- she has not witnessed it.

Martin takes notes of her interviews — She

becomes concerned Whitehurst may be engaging in grooming
behavior and other inappropriate behavior. She brings her concerns
to McCalley and Lee, who agree there is an issue.

Students tell their school counselor about their concerns of
Whitehurst’s inappropriate behavior - The counselor
shares the concerns with the vice principal and principal.

1/4/13 McCalley and Lee contact general counsel Jollee Patterson
regarding the_ concerns about Whitehurst, They tell
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Patterson

Lee calls HR regional director Frank Scotto on or about this same
day, also seeking his advice.

Lee emails Scotto and Patterson (cc to McCalley)

EXHIBIT 12: MARTIN’S INTERVIEWS NOTES

All involved agree that a prompt investigation should proceed.
Patterson

Building administrators contact HR/Legal Departments for support.
An immediate investigation is planned as the next step.

1/4/13 Whitehurst emails a personal on-line photo album to LaShawn Lee.
The album contains photos of Whitehurst’s son playing sports as a
child.

We were unable to determine if Whitehurst's personal
communication te Lee was merely coincidental, or an attempt by
Whitehurst—who did not have official notice yet of any
investigation—to influence Lee.

1/5/13 Lee emails Harriet Adair and Ken Berry (a long-time PPS
administrator and educator, then a teacher at Faubion) a copy of

the intewiews-.-

1/6/13 Lee speaks with Harriet Adair, Ken Berry, Jefferson principal
Margaret Calvert, and possibly others about Whitehurst's
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employment history and learns of persistent rumors that he has
engaged in sexual conduct with female students at other schools in
the District,

She emails Faubion student management specialist Rory Thompson,
who is also concerned about Whitehurst’s behavior '
“After speaking with Harriet, Ken Berry and others...this has been
happening for decades! I'm so worried!”

Lee sends an email to Patterson, Scotto, regional administrator
Antonio Lopez, and paralegal Siobhan Murphy (cc to len McCalley
and bcc to Harriet Adair and Ken Berry) to tell them she is
“extremely conflicted about the decision to allow [Whitehurst] to
remain on campus during our investigation.”

Patterson calls her and talks to her, then responds in an email to
everyone on the original email:

Patterson forwards the email exchange ta Murray as an FYI (he is
not on the original string).

EXHIBIT 13: EMAIL EXCHANGE BETWEEN LEE AND PATTERSON
(SENT TO OTHERS AS WELL)

1/4 -
1/10/13

Vice principal McCalley and counselor Martin interview 23 _gi{isi‘
The majority are uncomfortable
around him and report concerns that echo what Martin’s initial
interviews revealed.
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McCalley asks the same questions to all students and types their
responses to her questions. The students (approximately ages
11-14) tell her of first-hand and second-hand accounts of
inappropriate behavior:

» , Whitehurst

Not all students report that they have seen inappropriate behavior;
some tell McCalley they have heard about it from other girls but not
seen it themselves.

EXHIBIT 14: McCALLEY’S INTERVIEW NOTES

1/7/13 Lee and McCalley provide written notice (drafted 1/5 by Scotto) to
Whitehurst that he is being investigated for inappropriate conduct
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that is not identified. The notice cc’s Loretta Benjamin-Samuels,
Frank Scotto, and the Building File.

EXHIBIT 15: INVESTIGATORY NOTICE TO WHITEHURST

1/10/13 McCalley makes notes in her personal notebook for follow-up steps
‘(note this precedes any investigatory interview with Whitehurst):

e 6-week student teacher — female

e resolving rumors

1/11/13 Lee and McCalley provide written notice to Whitehurst and his
union representative, John Berkey, of an investigatory meeting
scheduled to take place on 1/15.

EXHIBIT 16: MEETING NOTICE TO WHITEHURST

1/14/13 Berkey informs Lee and McCalley that he is unavailable 1/15-18 and
requests that they reschedule the investigatory meeting the
following week, 1/22-25.

1/15/13 McCalley emails Scotto:

“Hi Frank, Since there wasn’t a huge finding on Mitch, do | still need
to make a matrix? | have all the answers from the kids. Thanks, Jen”

Scotto responds to McCalley: “No need for matrix, Frank”

McCalley replies to Scotto: “Great!”

EXHIBIT 17: EMAIL EXCHANGE BETWEEN McCALLEY AND SCOTTO

A “matrix” refers to a chart that HR recommended for multi-student
interviews, the matrix could show a pattern (if any) of the students’
answers to the same questions.

Scotto’s and McCalley’s respective recollections of their involvement
in the investigation conflict. Lee and McCalley both contend that HR
(meaning Scotto) made the determination that there was not

e INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 50



enough evidence to move forward with discipline. Scotto denies
making any determination about whether there was enough
evidence to.support discipline. He recalls that he did not see the
results of McCalley’s. _ interviews and relied on
McCalley’s judgment not to create a matrix since she was in the
interviews and typed up the students’ responses. There is no
documented evidence that shows Scotto received a copy of the.
-jnterw'ews typed by McCalley; he may have only received the
initial four interviews conducted by Martin that led to the initiation
of that investigation.

1/18/13 Lee meets spontaneously with Whitehurst when he appears in her
office after school. The meeting is brief (less than 10 minutes) and
not documented.

We were unable to determine the precise content of this discussion.
Lee contends in a statement written in November or December 2017
that she discussed with Whitehurst only the allegations related to

They had denied any inappropriate behavior by
Whitehurst and told Lee the
| ee denies that her conversation with Whitehurst
was intended to be the investigatory interview.

and it also
conflicts with what she told Scotto about the meeting in an email
written only a few days after the meeting took place (see entry for
1/20, below). We were unable to determine who else, if anyone,
attended this meeting besides Lee and Whitehurst.

1/18/13 Scotto emails Lee and McCalley to ask if the “meeting with Mitch”
has been rescheduled yet, still expecting to be included in an
investigatory meeting.

1/20/13 Lee emails Scotto:

“Jen and | met with Mitch on Friday about this situation. He
approached me about wanting to meet as soon as possible. Based
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on the information that we were able to gather, this was probably a
middle school rumor. In the meantime, we are going to keep a sharp
eye on him. Jen will type up the notes and send to you and Mitch
when we return from the extended weekend.”

Lee's email goes on to discuss personnel issues involving three
other Faubion employees,

EXHIBIT 18: EMAIL EXCHANGE BETWEEN LEE AND SCOTTO, CCTO
McCALLEY

In our investigation, McCalley denied attending the meeting and has

no notes of the meeting. However, McCalley has a strong memory of
Lee at some point telling Whitehurst to keep his eyes above the girls’
shoulders.

1/21/13

Scotto responds to Lee: “That’s good news about Mitch.” His email
also responds to the personnel issues involving three other Faubion
employees. Scotto defers to Lee’s conclusion (per her email) that
the concerns were a middle school rumor and therefore did not
warrant discipline.

There is no further documentation of follow-up by Scotto, Lee,
McCalley, Patterson, or anyone else. There are no notes of the
meeting. Nothing is placed in Whitehurst's files. There is no report
made to TSPC.

After the vice principal interviews the — the
principal meets briefly with Whitehurst. The investigation ends
shortly afterwards with the principal’s conclusion that “this was
probably a middle school rumor,” although the typed interview
notes indicate otherwise. There is no formal investigatory meeting
with the union representative and the HR regional director, as
originally planned. There is no documentation to support the
principal’s conclusion that this was a rumor and not substantiated
concerns of sexual conduct. There is no discipline issued and no
documentation of the sexual conduct in Whitehurst’s files. No one
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makes a report to the TSPC.

1/23/13

Whitehurst emails union representative John Berkey to request that
he set up a grievance meeting to

Berkey responds and offers to set up a meeting with Ricky Allen to
revive the grievance. In his email to Whitehurst, he asks, “What has
happened with the crazy kid complaint?” Whitehurst apparently
does not email back.

(Berkey declined to be interviewed as part of our investigation and
further declined to provide a written explanation for the reference to
“the crazy kid complaint,” citing confidentiality concerns.)

3/2013

Stephanie Harper joins PPS as HR legal counsel, filling a 3-month
vacancy.

4/2013

Vice principal McCalley evaluates Whitehurst for the school year
2012-2013. She rates him

5/6/13

Students report Whitehurst is using his personal cell phone to take
pictures . McCalley emails him
not to take photos because "taking photos with students is a liability
issue.” Whitehurst agrees not to take any more pictures and
explains the pictures taken are merely to

- and he routinely deletes them.

2/25/14

The PPS Facilities Department is notified of someone illegally using
the Faubion dumpsters to dispose of personal residential debris.
They identify the person misusing the dumpster as Whitehurst.
They contact principal Lee, who does not do anything about it. The
Facilities Department then contacts Scotto, who tells Lee that she
needs to do something about it because if it is true he is using
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Faubion’s dumpster, it is theft of services and it is illegal. Lee
appears reticent to follow up with Whitehurst,

3/5/14

Whitehurst attends an investigatory meeting regarding the
dumpsters with his union rep (Berkey), Scotto and Lee,

8/6/14

Whitehurst contacts the vice principal of Roosevelt High School
regarding an open position for the Dean of Students and Athletic
Director. He expresses a desire to interview for the position.
Apparently he is not offered the job.

8/26/14

First day back at school for Faubion staff. Whitehurst hits a
coworker on his bottom and is verbally reprimanded by Lee. Lee
reports this incident to HR senior manager Mary Elizabeth Harper,
but Lee does not discipline Whitehurst or document the incident in
his file with a non-disciplinary letter of expectation or other
documentation.

9/25/14

Whitehurst strikes Faubion coworker Rory Thompson on the seat of
his pants, possibly penetrating the area of his anus.

9/26/14

Thompson complains to principal Lee and vice principal McCalley
that Whitehurst made unwelcome physical contact. Whitehurst is
put on paid administrative leave.

9/27/14

PPB detective Weinstein interviews McCalley and is told of past
allegations of sexual conduct {Faubion-based and her second-hand
understanding of events that pre-date Whitehurst’s employment at
Faubion). Weinstein also interviews Lee, who mentions Caprice’s
report to her in 2012 about Whitehurst’s sexual conduct in 1984
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but does not mention the 2013 concerns of inappropriate conduct
with the Faubion - He writes up a 62-page report that
includes references to the allegations of sexual conduct.

11/21/14 | PPS reports the adult sexual harassment by Whitehurst to the TSPC.

12/22/14 | Whitehurst pleads guilty to class B misdemeanor harassment.
Conditions are 18 months’ probation, no offensive contact with the
victim, and a fine of $500. Whitehurst is not restricted from
teaching or being around students (the DA does not focus on the
allegations of sexual conduct in PPB detective Weinstein’s report).

1/2015- Whitehurst does not submit to a PPS investigative interview.
2/2015 Instead, his union attorney negotiates his resignation with PPS.

In the resignation agreement, PPS agrees to give a neutral reference
if contacted by prospective employers. PPS also agrees that all
documents related to the harassment investigation will be removed
from Whitehurst's personnel file and kept in a confidential HR file.

EXHIBIT 19; WHITEHURST'S RESIGNATION AGREEMENT

2/12/15 Whitehurst submits his resignation papers to PPS (resignation
effective 3/20). :

5/8/15 Whitehurst asks John Wilhelmi, an administrator who worked with
Whitehurst at Marshall and Jefferson, for a letter of
recommendation to use in applying for positions in other school
districts. He does not disclose the circumstances of his resignation
or the fact that he is being investigated by the TSPC. Wilhelmi
provides a positive letter, unaware of any reason not to do so.

5/12/15 Whitehurst also asks Ginger Taylor, an administrator who worked
with him at the Evening Scholars Program, for a reference. Aware
that he had been on paid administrative leave in the fall of 2014
and could not work as a PE teacher at Portland Evening Scholars but
unaware of the outcome of any disciplinary action, Taylor checks
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with the HR Department and is told all inquiries need to go to HR.
She informs Whitehurst of this and declines to provide a
recommendation.

6/3/15

Whitehurst applies for a position as a substitute teacher in the
NWRESD in Hillsboro.

HR legal counsel Stephanie Harper and general counsel Jollee
Patterson confer regarding

Neither attorney clearly recalls what they decided to do in response
to this inquiry.

PPS has no record of a respanse to NWRESD's inquiry. BESC
maintains all the responses to these inquiries, but has no record of a
response to a request for information about Whitehurst.

8/10/15

After reading Detective Weinstein's report and noting allegations of

student sexual conduct in his interviews, the TSPC initiates a
separate investigation into the allegations of Whitehurst engaging
in sexual conduct with. Franklin High Schoo[- in 1984,

8/27/15

Rory Thompson sues PPS for battery, intentional infliction of
emotional distress, and sexual harassment.
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9/12/15 Whitehurst agrees to surrender his license. He is not interviewed by
the TSPC.

1/26/16 TSPC orders Whitehurst’s license to be surrendered and
permanently revoked.

EXHIBIT 20: TSPC STIPULATION OF FACTS AND FINAL ORDER OF
SURRENDER AND REVOCATION OF LICENSURE

9/19/16 The 2016-17 PPS Board approves settlement of Thompson v. PPS on
a vote of 4-3. The Board agrees that the District (specifically, interim
superintendent Bob McKean) should look into whether PPS has
appropriate safeguards to protect students and staff, including
effective procedures for complaints. This work is to be overseen by
the Audit Committee.

9/2016 Interim superintendent Bob McKean discusses PPS's current policies
with chief HR officer Sean Murray, confirms there is training given
to all employees at the start of the school year regarding child
abuse — including educator sexual conduct and abuse — and sexual
harassment, and reviews the investigatory process for complaints.
He concludes the current systems in place are effective for
identifying and reporting future sexual conduct. He does not report
his follow-up to the Board, and the Board apparently does not ask
him about it again.

During his year as interim superintendent, McKean also works with
Amanda Whalen, chief of staff, on a review of the complaint policy
and the District’s process for handling complaints.

4/10/17 The 2016-17 PPS Board Committee of Business and Operations
requests District staff to provide “lessons learned on the Whitehurst
situation” before the Board approves the revised sexual harassment
policy. Very little substantive follow up occurs.

9/19/17 The 2017-18 PPS Board (newly formed as of July 1) commissions an
independent investigation into Whitehurst's history of sexual
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conduct with students as a PPS employee.,
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V.

~ RESPONSES TO THE BOARD'S QUESTIONS:
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
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What notice of posssble concerns about Mr. Whltehurst dld the DIS’trICt recelve?

Who recelved those notlces from whom drd they receive them and when d:d they
receive them? SR :

What response did the Dlstrlct make to each notice it recelved and what was the
timeline for that response? ' : o .

Was each of the responses adequate and if not, why not?

What pollcies directives and procedures were in place at that time that would have
been applicable to the complaints or concerns that were raised?

The District received notice of concerns about Mitch Whitehurst’s
inappropriate behavior with female students on at least eight separate occasions:

1. 1983-84: POSSIBLE COMPLAINT FROM PARENT TO FRANKLIN VICE
PRINCIPAL?

During the 1983-84 school year, Franklin High School vice principal Frank

Frangiapani fielded a complaint from a_. Specifically,l
I formed . Frangiapan: I

that within the previous month, Mr. Whitehurst was entertaining female students
at his residence and engaging in inappropriate conduct-.
Mr. Frangiapani notified the PPS police, which was the correct procedure at

the time (the PPS police conducted the District’s personnel investigations until

? Note that this concern was recalled by former PPS Officer Larry Linne and we have not been

able to find additional evidence to corroborate it. Mr. Frangiapani is deceased. The PPS police
records have either been destroyed or archived in such a manner that they cannot be located,
despite repeated attempts.
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November 2001). PPS police officer Larry Linne interviewed Mr. Whitehurst with a
union rep present. Mr. Whitehurst denied having any students at his residence.
Officer Linne wrote up his report and placed it in the PPS police record system.
There is no evidence that any disciplinary action was taken, and there is no
record of this concern in Whitehurst’s existing personnel records. Without more
evidence, we cannot assess the timeline for the response or assess whether the

response was adequate.

2. 1984-86: COMPLAINT FROM STUDENT TO SELLWOOD PRINCIPAL

During either the 1984—85 or 1985-86 school year, three students came to
Sellwood Middle School principal John “Bill” Beck Jr. to complain that
Mr. Whitehurst was looking at girls’ ch-est-s during PE class.

Mr. Beck directed the Sellwood Middle School student management
specialist (Dale Smith) to interview the three girls. Mr. Smith determined that one
girl in particular felt uncomfortable that Whitehurst was looking at girls’ chests and
told the other two.

Mr. Beck verbally counseled Mr. Whitehurst not to look at girls” chests in PE
class. Mr. Whitehurst was very professional when he was counseled. He offered an

explanation along the lines of having looked at something on a girl’s t-shirt and did
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not deny the conduct. Mr. Beck did not think this one complaint was serious
enough to document or to report to the TSPC or the District. After this complaint,
Mr. Beck did not receive any other complaints about Mr, Whitehurst's behavior,
At the time, this response appeared to be adequate. In hindsight, it would
have been better had Mr. Beck documented the concern and reported it to the
PPS police {(which conducted personnel investigations at the time) or to the HR
Department so the District had a record of the concern. We are unaware of any
policy, directive or procedure that obligated Mr. Beck to report the concern up the
chain — and out of the building — rather than handle it internally. Administrators

were free to exercise their own discretion regarding concerns of this kind.

3. 1997-2000: POSSIBLE COMPLAINT FROM MARSHALL STUDENT
Sometime between school years 1997-98 and 1999-2000, PPS officer

George Weatheroy responded to a complaint from a Marshall student about

inappropriate comments by Mr. Whitehurst. ||| | G

Officer Weatheroy took the initial complaint, wrote up his report and placed it in

the PPS police record system.’

? Officer Weatheroy does not believe he interviewed Mr. Whitehurst, although another officer
may have, and he now cannot recall the outcome of the investigation. We have not been able to
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There is no evidence that any disciplinary action was taken, and there is no
record of this concern in Whitehurst’s existing personnel records. Without more
evidence, we cannot assess the timeline for the response or assess whether the

response was adequate.

4. NOVEMBER 2001: COMPLAINT FROM STUDENT TO MARSHALL
ADMINISTRATORS

in Noverber 2001,

The PPB had very recently replaced the PPS police force and, unlike

their predecessors, did not have the responsibility of conducting personnel

find additional evidence to corroborate Officer Weatheroy's recollection or learn additional
details of the incident. The PPS police records have either been destroyed or archived in such a
manner that they cannot be located, despite repeated attempts.
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ivestigations. PP Oficers N - -

determined that the complaint should be handled as a personnel matter because it
did not constitute criminal behavior. Ms. Newcomer providecijj || | | | | NN
- to principal Greg Wolleck and HR legal counsel Maureen Sloane for
further investigation.

Ms. Sloane inlterviewed Mr. Whitehurst, who denied the allegations. He
offered various explanations for his conduct, explaining to her that his actions
were misinterpreted [ l] Ms. Sloane reviewed Mr. Whitehurst’s personnel
file, which had no documentation of any past inappropriate conduct.

Mr, Wolleck recalls being told by Ms. Sloane that the most they could do is

put a memo in the file describing the situation— since
Mr. Whitehurst's record was clean of past misconduct and_

T e —

something in writing in the file, lest this conduct ever re-occur.

Ms, Sloane and Mr. Wolleck delivered a memo to Whitehurst. The memo

stated, in part:

Both N oc your denial are credible. The District
has interviewed | NG oo reviewed your entire

employment record at [PPS]. Other than the complaint itself, there
was no additional evidence that you engaged in any inappropriate

behavior toward—. ... L know that the
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complaint disturbed you greatly and believe that in the future you will
be extremely cautious and will try to avoid any similar situations. If |
can be of any additional assistance, please fet me know.

_ but this is not reflected in the memo.—

_.4 This is also not reflected in the memo.

Ms. Sloane reported the possible inappropriate behavior to the TSPCon
December 7, some 30 days after Mr, Whitehurst's interview. The TSPC closed the
case five months later without taking action.

This investigation from start to finish was completed in seven calendar days.
November 1, and Mr. Whitehurst was more or less cleared and returned to work
on November 8.

“The response to JJ ] complaint was not adequate. Ms. Sloane
apparently did not review the school police records on Mr. Whitehurst. Ms. Sloane
did not concuct or
Mr. Whitehurst’s explanations that confradicted her written statement. Ms. Sloane

did not consult Ms. Newcomer, who was left out of the investigation after ||

4 This is Ms. Newcomer’s recollection. We were not able to corroborate this with additional
evidence.
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N - ooiice. Ms. Newcomer could have refuted some of

Mr. Whitehurst’s explanations and could have vouched fo_
B - s no evidence anyone interviewed

Mr. Whitehurst's ||| | | | | . thoush it is possible that did happen.

Ms. Sloane is certain she did not, and Mr. Wolleck and Ms. Newcomer have no
memory of doing so; however, Ms. Sloane does not believe this would be included
in the memo unless interviews had taken place.” No one interviewed the
counseling secretary whose desk faced Mr. Whitehurst's office to see if she had
any information or could confirm or refute Mr. Whitehurst’s explanations. In short,
it appears the investigation ended after Ms. Sloane’s interview of Mr. Whitehurst

and her review of his personnel file.

addivonaty, I

As Ms. Sloane acknowledged during our investigation, she could have done
more to investigate this complaint and, provided she found more evidence,
document the concerns as formal discipline that would have gone into and

remained in the personnel file. When interviewed, she could not remember this

 Had anyone intervieweo [
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complaint in any detail, and she had no explanation for not diligently investigating
it. To her credit, in our interview Ms. Sloane took full responsibility for the
shortcomings of the investigation and was quite candid and apologetic about her
role.

The District followed the correct process for a complaint when the Marshall
administrators notified the police as well as HR legal counsel about the concerns
brought to their attention by a student. Board Policy 5.10.062-P, “Sexual
Harassment — Staff to Student,” in place since 1994, states in part:

Staff or volunteers becoming aware of a violation of this section shall
report the information to the principal. Principals shall immediately
report to the school police for investigation fsic] every such incident,
which comes to their attention. If staff or volunteers by action or
words have gttempted to establish with a student an amorous, sexual,
lascivious or lewd relationship or permitted a student to continue to
pursue such a relationship, it shall be clear grounds for dismissal, and
a copy of the school police report documenting the circumstances shall
be referred to the [TSPC] and the Personnel Office for appropriate
action.

Unfortunately, after the PPB determined that the complaint did not rise to
the level of criminal behavior (incorrectly, we believe; see pages 110-12) and
passed it on as a personnel matter, the complaint was not pursued in a manner
that ferreted out enough evidence to find that misconduct had occurred.

Ms. Sloane determined that she did not have sufficient evidence to proceed with
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formal discipline beyond writing a memorandum putting Mr. Whitehurst on notice
that his explanation had been credible and that it was possible that the student
had misconstrued his intent. Had the investigation established additional evidence
of misconduct, there may have been clear grounds to dismiss Mr. Whitehurst in

2001.

5. JANUARY 2008: BELATED COMPLAINT FROM FRANKLIN ‘84 STUDENT TO
HR/LEGAL DEPARTMENTS

In January 2008, a Franklin graduate of the Class of ‘84 named Caprice (last
name withheld upon her request) was surprised to learn that Mr. Whitehurst was
still employed by PPS and working at Jefferson. She thought he had been
terminated in the 1980’s for inappropriate behavior with female students. She
consulted a couple of PPS employees (counselor Holly Vaughn-Edmunds and
Franklin cheerleader advisor Joyce Gago) aboutﬂher offensive and frightening
experience with Mr. Whitehurst. Ms. Gago told her it was not too late to report the
conduct and encouraged her to contact the District. Ms. Vaughn-Edmunds relayed

the report to her supervisor {Tammy Jackson), who took the report and shortly
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afterwards told Ms. Vaughn-Edmunds that thé matter was being handled by
HR/LegaI.6

Caprice went to the District HR Office, where she first spoke briefly to
Loretta Benjamin-Samuels, the HR performance manager for the Jefferson cluster.

Ms. Benjamin-Samuels referred her to HR legal counsel Maureen Sloane. Caprice

told Ms. Sloane that Mr. Whitehurst demanded oral sex from_

Ms. Sloane then confirmed that Caprice was a student at Franklin High
School in 1983-84, the school year Mr. Whitehurst worked there. She also checked

her files and found that Mr. Whitehurst had been accused in 2001 of-

Ms. Sloane wrote a memo to her own file which documented her meeting

with Caprice, her limited research, and the decision that she would take no further

§ Ms. Jackson did not recall her involvement in Caprice’s report in 2008, but she has no reason to
dispute Ms. Vaughn-Edmunds’s recollection.
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action. At the bottom of the typed memo, in handwriting, she noted, “/HR
Director] Richard Clarke agreed.”

This response was not adequate. At the time she learned of this complaint,

Ms. Sloane was aware of the ||| R R
Ms. Sloane did not contact—
-
and she did not do any additional fact-finding. She did not contact any prior
administrators at Franklin or any current administrators at lefferson, or even
interview Mr. Whitehurst to see if he denied the allegations and if so, whether he
was credible. Ms. Sloane did not report the conduct to the TSPC, and did not
follow up with Caprice to apprise her of her investigation, By her own admission in
our interview, Ms. Sloane could have done more to respond to this complaint.
Skeptical that Ms. Sloane would take any action, Caprice also spoke to
- Cynthia Harris, the principal at Jefferson. She was allegedly rebuffed by Dr. Harris,
who told her that if the HR Department was already informed of the issue, then
the school did not need to do anything more about it. Dr. Harris denies that she
ever had a conversation with Caprice. However, she does recall that her secretary
.once took a call from someone who said they had “information regarding Mitch

Whitehurst.” Dr. Harris directed the secretary to tell that caller to contact the
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District’s Legal Department, and did not ever learn the substance of the caller’s
information.

If Caprice did speak with Dr. Harris, Dr. Harris’s response was also
inadequate. She may have followed proper procedure to ensure that the matter
was reported to the HR/Legal Department, but she was not receptive and

supportive of the complaint that was brought to her attention and she too did not

~ follow up with Caprice.

6.  2008-09: COMPLAINT BY PARENT TO JEFFERSON ADMINISTRATOR

Sometime during the 2008-09 school year, a Jefferson High School parent
complained tha;c Mr. Whitehurst had said something inappropriate to her daughter
that was sexual in nature. The student had been eating grapes outside
Mr. Whitehurst's office, and he made a lewd comment about how sh.e was eating
them. The parent first confronted Mr. Whitehurst and then reported him to the
Jefferson administration, possibly principal Cynthia Harris.

Vice principal Ricky Allen verbally counseled Mr. Whitehurst about the

harassing conduct. Mr. Allen did not think this complaint was serious enough to
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document or report to the District.” He did not field any complaints regarding
Mr. Whitehurst’s behavior with female students other than this one complaint,
Without more information, we cannot assess the timeline of the response.

At the time, this response appeared to be adequate. In hindsight, it would
have been better had Mr. Allen documented the concern and reported it to the HR
Department so the District had a record of the concern and had enough
information to discern a pattern of inappropriate behavior. We are unaware of any
policy, directive or procedure that obligated Mr. Allen to report the concern up the
chain - and out of the building ~ rather tlhan handle it internally. Administrators

were free to exercise their own discretion regarding concerns of this kind.

7.  DECEMBER 2012: RENEWED COMPLAINT BY FRANKLIN ‘84 STUDENT

On December 12, 2012, Caprice (the Franklin ‘84 graduate) worked as a
substitute teacher at the Faubion School. Upon learning that Mr. Whitehurst was
teaching there, she went immediately to principal LaShawn Lee to tell her of his
inappropriate sexual conduct when she_ in
1984. She also told Ms. Lee that certain Faubion education assistants (EAs) felt they

were being sexually harassed by Whitehurst. Ms. Lee conferred with her former

7 Mr. Allen’s recollection is that Mr. Whitehurst's comment related to something the student

was wearing.
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supervisor and regional administrator, Harriet Adair, who then contacted HR legal

counsel Jeff Fish and asked him to speak with Ms. Lee.

Mr. Fish called Ms. Lee.

Officer Williams contacted Caprice, and they spoke for 15 minutes. She was upset
by their conversation and became concerned about retaliation by Whitehurst if he
learned she had spoken up about him.2 She followed up with Ms, Lee shortly
thereafter about this concern.

Mr. Fish also

& 5fficer Williams does not recall the substance of his conversation with Caprice but believes he
would have followed his normal protocols. He did not document the substance of the call or

engage in any official follow-up that he now recalls.
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X
_ Winter break was just starting and
Ms. Patterson was about to take a pre-planned vacation; she offered to call into a
meeting the following day or to meet in person as soon as she returned in January.
The issue was dormant over the break. In early January, however, a different
complaint about Mr. Whitehurst —reports of him ogling Faubion girls and
engaging in other inappropriate behavior- —appeared to stall a
thorough response by HR/Legal to the December concerns raised by Caprice.

The initial response to this complaint was prompt and started as an effective

response to a serious complaint. Contacting the SRO fulfilled the District’s

reporting obligations ifany. Because [
—, the District did not have an obligation to contact

Child Protective Services (CPS} and make a mandatory report. Apprising the chief
HR officer and general counsel of the concerns in a detailed email was appropriate
for the HR legal counsel who was leaving PPS and would not be able to investigate
the concerns himself. Ms. Murphy’s response to dig into Mr. Whitehurst’s past and
pull up files from off-site storage was also a step towards handling this complaint

in a responsible manner.
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But after the winter break, apparently nothing happened; the District’s
response simply stopped. We could not determine why the complaint was not
pursued, and surmise it was because of the new information that the Faubion
administration brought to HR/Legal’s attention the first week of January that took
any investigation of Mr. Whitehurst’s conduct in a new direction.

Whatever the reason, the response was not adequate. No one contacted the
TSPC to report the allegations from 1984. It is possible that either principal Lee or
vice principal McCalley spoke to Mr. Whitehurst about using the terms “Baby” and
“Girl” when speaking to the EAs (at various points in time, they have each claimed
to have spoken to him about this issue), but neither administrator documented
this conversation. There is no evidence that anyone ever questioned
Mr. Whitehurst in 2012 or 2013 about his past conduct in 1984, although it is
possible that Ms. Lee had an undocumented conversation in which she asked him
about the allegations and he denied them.? And there is no evidence that the HR

or Legal Departments followed up to confirm that the concerns raised in December

° When interviewed by Miller Nash attorneys in September 2015,_
In a statement written in late 2017,

however, Ms. Lee makes no mention of any such conversation and states, “In regards to the
investigation of Mr. Whitehurst about the substitute teacher and the pedophile posters, | do not
have any information from the district on how these matters were resolved.” Ms. Lee also notes
in her statement that she contacted CPS, though she does not say what she reported. CPS would
not confirm or deny this contact due to confidentiality rules.
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2012 had been adequately addressed.

Finally, no one followed up with Caprice, formally or informally, to let her
know the outcome of the investigation, as one was never completed. By this time,
the District had an administrative directive (5.10.063-AD) entitled, “Prohibition
Against Employee Child Abuse and Sexual Conduct With Students.” This AD fulfills
the policy requirements of HB 2062, the educator sexual conduct statutory scheme
passed in 2009. The AD provides, “The Human Resources’ Legal counsel must
provide notification to the person who made the report about the actions taken by
the district based on the report.” As of December 15, 2012, there was no HR legal
counsel at the District who could follow up with Caprice and provide notification
about the actions taken —or more accurately, not taken — by the District. The HR
legal counsel position was vacant from December 15, 2012 until March 2013. It
appears during the vacancy the District did not have a stopgap in place to provide

notice to a reporter of sexual conduct, per the AD.

8. JANUARY 2013: COMPLAINTS BY FEMALE STUDENTS IN FAUBION |

in early January 2013, |l spoke to Faubion counselor Andrea
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Martin about Mr. Whitehurst's condugt_.10 Ms. Martin informed

vice principal Jen McCalley and principal LaShawn Lee. Ms. McCalley and Ms. Lee in
turn contacted general counsel Jollee Patterson and HR regional director Frank
Scotto, who had not been involved in the December 2012 complaint from Caprice

regarding Mr. Whitehurst. The Faubion administrators sent Ms. Patterson and

Mr. Scotto the hand-written notes of the interviews_. -

Ms. Patterson and Mr. Scotto, and perhaps other HR/Legal staff,-

Ms. Lee sent

Ms. Patterson an email asking her to revisit the decision not to put Mr. Whitehurst

19 |1 our interviews with Ms. McCalley, she recalled Mr. Whitehurst brought the issue ||| || Il
to her attention, and this was what kicked off the interviews. She did not

mention the complaint brought to her attention—. Based

on notes of Ms. McCalley's interview with Miller Nash attorneys in 2015, however, | ||| | | S IR

ilr m
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on leave, comparing the situation to the Penn State scandal,”—

. Mr. Scotto assisted the Faubion administrators with

preparing the interview questions, but everyone agreed that given the sensitive
nature of the questions, the girls should be interviewed by Ms. McCalley, not
Mr. Scotto, with Ms. Martin also in attendance. The interviews were conducted
within one week of receiving the initial concerns,

What happened next in the investigation is not clear. The withesses have

given conflicting accounts:

Frank Scotto’s account:

Mr. Scotto told us that after the initial consultation with HR and general

counsel, he deferred to Ms, McCalley and Ms. Lee to conduct the investigation and

' The Penn State scandal refers to a child sex abuse scandal in which Jerry Sandusky, an
assistant coach for the Penn State football team, engaged in sexual abuse of children over a
period of at least 15 years between 1994 and 2009. Sandusky had located and groomed victims
through his charity organization. Sandusky was convicted of sex abuse. High-level administrators
at Penn State pled guilty to endangering the welfare of children by covering up for Mr. Sandusky
and failing to notify law enforcement after learning of some of the incidents.
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consult with him as needed. He received a general account—

interviews via email with Ms. McCalley, who asked him by email on January 15
whether she still had to create a matrix since there was “no huge finding” from her
interviews, (A matrix was a chart of the students’ answers that would have shown
the information in a graphical form, making it easy to compare the students’
various responses to the a!le;gations and detect a pattern.) Relying on
Ms. McCalley’s characterization of the interviews, he told her there was no need
for a matrix.™

He expected to be involved in the upcoming investigatory interview of
Mr. Whitehurst. The interview was scheduled for January 15 but then cancelled on
January 14 because the union rep could not attend.

Mr. Scotto emailed Ms. Lee on January 18 to ask if the meeting had been
rescheduled. On January 20, Ms. Lee emailed Mr. Scotto and told him she and
Ms. McCalley had met with Mr. Whitehurst on January 18 and based on the

information they had gathered, “this was probably a middie school ruror.” ™

2 Mr. Scotto reviewed Ms. McCalley's typed interview notes at our interview, denied ever seeing
them before, and indicated that a matrix would have been helpful and appropriate.

.
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Mr. Scotto deferred to Ms. Lee’s judgment and assumed the investigation was over
and there was no need for him to do anything further. Mr. Scotto considered

Ms. McCalley and Ms. Lee capable administrators who knew how to conduct an
investigation, and he had no reason to question their judgment. He did not follow
up and ask for the notes of the meeting mentioned in Ms. Lee’s January 20 email.
Nor did he review the typed responses Ms. McCalley prepared from her interviews

of students_.

Jen McCalley’s account:

Ms. McCalley gave us inconsistent accounts about the investigation. We
interviewed Ms. McCalley early on in our investigation, before we had the benefit
of reviewing any PPS emails. (She had been eager to meet with us, and we |
explained that we might need to re-interview her later after we reviewed relevant

documents.}** At this early interview, she told us that she and Ms. Lee had wanted

to get Mr. Whitehurst out of Faubion but—

% 0On September 21, 2017, two days after the Board voted to commission the investigation,
Ms. McCalley emailed, “I would like to be interviewed regarding this case as soon as possible.”
We therefore accommodated her request.
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She recalled for us an investigatory interview she attended with Ms. Lee,
Mr. Scotto, Mr. Whitehurst, and Mr. Whitehurst’s union representative, John
Berkey. She recalled that she and Ms. Lee were frustrated during that meeting that
the union representative characterized the complaints as rumors. Because of this,
they could not move forward with discipline or get Mr. Whitehurst out of the
building. She told us they were disappointed that the most they could do at that
meeting was tell Mr. Whitehurst to keep his eyes above the girls” shoulders, which
seemed ridiculous to Ms. McCalley given the seriousness of the complaints.

We received and reviewed PPS emails a short time after Ms. McCalley's
interview. We found her story to be inconsistent with multiple email
communications sent or received by Ms. McCalley and Ms. Lee at the time of the
investigation. These emails were not included in the large binder of documents
that Ms. McCalley brought to her first inferview. We therefore requested that she
return for another interview."

At the second interview, we presented Ms. McCalley with the emails that
contradicted her previous account — specifically, the January 15 “matrix” email

exchange with Mr. Scotto and the January 20 email from Ms. Lee to Mr. Scotto

15 Were it not for Ms. McCalley’s representations in her first half-day interview, we would not
have needed to re-interview her. However, we wanted to give Ms. McCalley an opportunity to
read the emails that plainly contradicted her original account and see if the emails affected her

recollection, which they did.
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informing him she and Ms. McCalley had met with Mr. Whitehurst (wit\hout
Mr. Scotto or the union rep) and characterizing the complaints as “probably a
middle school rumor.”

Ms. McCalley acknowledged she must have been mistaken about her
previous recollections and acknowledged that the conclusion that the complaints
were based on a “rumor” must have come from Ms. Lee, not HR/Legal. (We did
not find any email communication from Mr. Scotto or Ms. Patterson that ever
characterized the complaints as “rumors.”) Furthermore, she acknowledged there
must not have been an investigatory meeting with Mr, Scotto or Mr. Whitehurst’s
union representative in attendance. One had only been scheduled and then
cancelled. When shown Ms. Lee’s January 20 email about the meeting with
Mr. Whitehurst which Ms. McCalley purportedly attended with her, Ms. McCalley
could not recall attending any meeting on January 18 with Ms. Lee and
Mr. Whitehurst, nor did she recall taking notes at any such meeting. At and after
our interview, she searched her laptop and notebooks and did not find any notes
of the meeting. Ms. McCalley’s consistent practice is to take notes if she attends a
meeting such as this one.

By the end of her second interview, Ms, McCalley was confident that she

had not been in any such meeting, but she could not explain why Ms. Lee had

I INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 82




incorrectly informed Mr. Scotto that she attended the meeting and took notes if
this had not actually happened. She maintained that she still had a recollection of
Ms. Lee telling Mr. Whitehurst to keep his eyes above the girls’ shoulders.
However, she was no longer sure where or when Ms. Lee gave that directive.

LaShawn Lee’s account:

Ms. Lee declined to be interviewed for this investigation. Through her
attorney, we received a written statement she created in November or December
2017. In this statement, Ms. Lee criticized HR/Legal for not putting Mr. Whitehurst
on paid leave during the investigation and for not authorizing her to discipline

Mr. Whitehurst. She contended that HR/Legal told her that || GGG

16 she also contended that her brief meeting with

Mr. Whitehurst on January 18, 2013, was not intended to be an investigatory
interview and was merely a side conversation about one student in particular with

whom she was concerned of grooming behavior by Mr. Whitehurst.
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She did not mention to the Miller Nash attorneys, however, that the District

ever prevented her from disciplining Mr, Whitehurst.

!

[y

§ O O O]
I - vhitehurst also did not agree to be interviewed

or answer written questions about this time period at Faubion, so we were unable to get his
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email she sent to Mr. Scotto on January 20, 2013, letting him know that she and
Ms. McCalley had already met with Mr. Whitehurst {implying there was no need to
reschedule a meeting with Mr. Scotto in attendance) and it was “orobably a middle
school rumor” but they would “keep a sharp eye on him.”

Because Ms. Lee would not speak with us, we were unable to ask her about
the inconsistencies in her various statements about her meeting with
Mr. Whitehurst.

Regardless of the inconsistent versions of the meeting between Ms. Lee,
Mr. Whitehurst, and possibly Ms. McCalley on January 18, and regardiess of
Mr. Scotto’s involvement or lack thereof, one thing is clear: the investigation
ended on or about January 18. No one took formal action and nothing was ever
documented in Mr. Whitehurst's files.

Ms, Lee aﬁd Ms. McCalley recall that they took non-disciplinary steps at

Faubion to prevent harm to the female students, including hiring a student teacher

from Concorcis I I

18 \We were unable to confirm that a Concordia University student teacher was placed | Il

I - rocords did not disclose one way or the other whether there

was a student teacher in the class and if so for how long, so we could not confirm this remedial
action occurred. We did not seek records from Concordia University.
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- away from Mr. Whitehurst's office, and dropping in on his classes on
random occasions. They also asked Ms. Martin and Mr, Thompson to keep an eye
on Mr. Whitehurst and let them know if they saw anything inappropriate. These
steps may have been helpful to stop further inappropriate behavior. Faubion did
not receive any additional complaints about Mr. Whitehurst’s inappropriaté
conduct with students.

Overall, the response to the complaints was inadequate. To the extent
Caprice’s allegations were goiﬁg to be wrapped into an investigatory interview with
the allegations_, this never happened. In fact, according to
Ms. Lee’s recent written statement, no investigatory interview ever happened, and
she expected one to be re-set {although her email to Mr. Scotto on January 20,
2013, implied that the matter had been handled and there was no need for any
follow-up with Mr. Whitehurst}. At no time did Ms. Lee or Ms. McCalley follow-up
with Mr. Scotto to re-set the investigatory interview,

Meanwhile, Mr. Scotto did not follow-up to ask why he had not received the
notes Ms. Lee told him Ms. McCalley would send him in her January 20 email; he
simply considered the matter closed.

Ms. Patterson never checked back in with Ms, Lee or Ms. McCalley, although

shetold them on January 7 th: [
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I stc2d. Ms. Patterson deferred to Mr. Scotto to offer any

support the Faubion administrators needed. She believed it was her function as
general counsel to see the matter was handled by the HR Department, not to
attempt to manage it herself. The District’s Legal Department did not have an HR
legal counsel in January 2013, and Ms. Patterson did not assume that role during
the vacancy. In fact, she had very little labor and employment law experience.

Ms. Patterson believed these administrators were capable of investigating
the conduct, and Mr. Scotto was on deck to help them. It was not unusual for
building administrators to run their own investigationland ﬁhec-k in with HR/Legal
on an as-needed basis. Both Ms. McCalley and Ms. Lee had excellent reputations
as capable administrators who advocated for their school and who were adept at
doing their own investigations. In hindsight, the deference given them by the HR
and Legal Departments was a poor decision, and both departments should have
done more to stay involved in the investigation.

The investigation fell shortin large part because Mr. Whitehurst was not
interviewed fully and comprehensively about the various allegations of
inappropriate behavior. Consequently, he did not have an opportunity to be
confronted with the evidence and given a chance to respond. And the District, in

turn, did not follow through and issue the discipline that the evidence appeared to
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warrant.

Ms. McCalley’s typed interview notes of the 23 separate interviews is a
voluminous stack of responses with first-hand accounts of inappropriate behavior
by Mr. Whitehurst. This information was apparently not shared with the HR or
Legal Departments.™ Ms, McCalley believes she did share it with Mr. Scotto,
perhaps in person when he visited Faubion. However, Mr. Scotto is confident he
never saw the responses. The email exchange between Ms. McCalley and
Mr. Scotto about whether she has to do a matrix (“I have all the answers from the
kids”} supports Mr. Scotto’s recollection that he never saw the responses.””

Without giving Mr. Whitehurst an opportunity to respond to specific
allegations, there was little chance to formally reprimand him. Had a proper
investigatory interview been conducted, in which Mr. Whitehurst was questioned
in detail about the allegations, preferably with Mr. Scotto and Mr. Whitehurst's
union representative present, then formal discipline would have been an option,

presuming the evidence continued to support a formal reprimand.

9 Ms. Patterson reviewed Ms. McCalley’s typed interview notes at our interview and credibly
denied ever seeing them before.

2 Three other employees from the HR/Legal Departments — Stephanie Harper, Jeanne Windham,
and Mary Elizabeth Harper —recall that they were surprised to learn in 2014-15 that there were
documents regarding Mr. Whitehurst at Faubion that were not in the HR files, They recall the
typed interview notes were among those documents. -
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Alternatively, if there was not enough evidence for a formal reprimand, Ms.
Lee or Ms. McCalley could have written a non-disciplinary letter of expectation
setting forth the District’s standards for appropriate behavior. In either case, there
wbuld have been documentation of the issue in Mr. Whitehurst’s file. No such
documentation was ever prepared. The response was additionally inadequate in

that apparently no one followed up with the students who had complained to let

them know the outcome of the investigation.
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Were there system fallures and/or employee performance fallures and |f so what
were those failures? ' . :

Were the_re_per_‘_form_ance:_feilures by external agents or re’presentative_s_ of_ PP_S?I

System failures and employee performance failures alike occurred in the
history of Mr. Whitehurst's employment. System failures contributed to the
perpetuation of Mr. Whitehurst's employment far more than any one employee’s
performance failure. Multiple systemic factors also most likely contributed to the

employees’ performance failures. The failures appear to be intertwined.

SYSTEM FAILURES:

1.  Incomplete documentetion of all aliegaﬁons of sexual conduct

PPS is a relatively decentralized school system. One witness compared PPS
to a fleet of some 80 ships, one for each school: in September, they all head out to
sea and in June, they return home to dry dock. This image is helpful to point outa
weakness in any decentralized system like this one; when the administrators at
each school are expected to exercise their professional judgment regarding
personnel issues involving the educators in their building, there is no way for the
District to track an educator’s inappropriate behavior. The District cannot detect a

pattern, especially when the educator moves from school to school over the
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course of that educator’s career, as Mr. Whitehurst did. In other words, the District
cannot connect all the dots.

During Mr. Whitehurst's employment, school administrators were fe1ative|y
free to handle issues brought to their attention in the manner they deemed
abpropriate, with a few caveats. If an administrator wanted to put the employee
on leave, they needed HR approval. If an administrator wanted to pursue a formal
reprimand, they typically partnered with HR to do that. But if an administrator
believed a matter was not worthy of formal reprimand and could be handled
internally, they simply went ahead and handled it. This s not necessarily a flawed
process.

However, this process results in significantly less discipline and less
documentation than is warranted — espécially for a school district seeking to
prevent harm to students and remove educators who engage in sexual conduct.
The only documentation of an incident handled internally, if any, is often in the
building file, which is currently a transient file that does not get passed on to
subsequent supervisors. When building administrators repeatedly assume that a
harassing comment or inappropriate ogling of students’ bodiesis a first—time
offense and hence does not warrant written documentation or formal discipline,

the District is unable to track prior inappropriate behavior and detect a pattern of
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repeated sexual conduct. In short, the District misses an opportunity to protect its

students from future harm.

2. Under-reporting of misconduct, chiefly to avoid union involvement

A related systemic failure is the chronic under-reporting of sexual conduct.
Many witnesses share.d with us that there is a clear discomfort by many building
adm.inistrators when it comes to managing any type of misconduct, but especially
sexual conduct. This discomfort leads to avoidance or lack of follow-through.
Specifically, the administrators try to manage the behavior in a way that does not
result in a formal reprimand, which would require them to “go the union route,” as
one administrator put it. Not wanting to deal with the union (PAT) appears to be a
major factor in the under-reporting of miscoﬁduct.

Administrators appear to be wary of engaging in formal discipline when it
means facing down the teachers’ union. Some administrators expressed a fear of
retaliation by the union and its members. Other administrators voiced fatigue
from trying to manage an educator using the formal disciplinary process only
historically to have HR, in-house legal counsel,‘or the Board push back on the
reprimand and contend the offending behavior should not result in discipline or

termination. Building administrators also expressed the feeling they were
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disheartened to see the discipline grieved and reversed in a settlement or
arbitration decision.

Meanwhile, individuals in the HR Department voiced concern that building
administrators were not always willing to go through with discipline from the
beginning to the end (usually involving a hearing) and they get worn down and give
up the fight part—wéy through the grievance p‘rocess due to the drain on their time
and resources. In order to avoid union griévances in their resource-strained
environment, administrators may simply be avoiding the formal discipline process.

Mr. Whitehurst's rights as a union member, and the anticipation that the
union would fight any discipline, may have inﬂuenced the response to concerns
about Mr.' Whitehurst's conduct. Repeatedly, we found evidence of the District
approaching an issue with Mr. Whitehurst from the view of what they couldn’t do
with Mr. Whitehurst rather tﬁan what they could dd to prevent him from
continuing to engage in inappropriate conduct that pﬁt the safety and weli-being
of students at risk,

We understand that the Linion has an important responsibility to protect
teachers from false or baseless accusations, exercise the rights that teachers have,
and otherwise ensure that the District foliows the terms of the union contract.

Likewise, the building administrators have important responsibilities as well —
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among them, to protect students from educator misconduct, exercise
management rights, and otherwise ensure that the District has qualified educators
helping children learn in a safe educational environment. These are not mutually
exclusive roles, especially in this new era of cooperation heralded by the District’s
administration and the PAT, Keeping schools safe for children is a shared
commitment. We recognize that the vast majority of educatérs in the District are
ethical, act appropriately around students, and want to see unethical educators
who engage in sexual conduct removed from the system. The District and the
teachers’ union should be able to work together to keep schools safe and eliminate

any obstacles to promptly removing the unethical educators.

3. Decentralized response to sexual conduct complaints, with no accountability
Another system failufe detected by this investigation is the manner in which
reports of sexual conduct went to various different PPS resources, all of which
were appropriate avenues to report sexual conduct at the time of the complaints,
but none of which consistently coordinated its information. The end result was the
PPS police knew of some allegations regarding Mr. Whitehurst, the HR/Legal
Departments knew of other allegations, certain school administrators who had

managed Mr. Whitehurst’s behavior on their own knew of still other allegations,
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and the PPB knew of yet more allegations.

The District’s decentralized system makes it too easy for an investigation to
fall short of a comprehensive examination of the evidence because no one is held
accountable for ensuring the process is followed to a full and fair resolution. We
heard from building administrators thét the HR and Legal Departments are in
charge of complaints, investigations and discipline decisions, and the building
administrators are powérless to get bad educators out of their schools. At the
same time, we heard from the staff of the HR and Legal Departments that building
administrators have a healthy amount of autonomy and are responsible for
following through on investigations and making the decision about an appropriate
level of discipline. HR is there for support if the building administrators need them.
While PPS employees fell short of finger pointing, they demonstrated the problem
at hand: during Mr. Whitehurst's employment, there was no clearly designated
position or department responsible and accountable for an invesﬁgation into an
employee’s sexual conduct.

In the high-volume, high-traffic world that is PPS, it is too easy for a
complaint to be inadequately addressed because everyone involved believes the
other persons involved are in charge. And when a complaint is not responded to

appropriately, it is not always evident where the failure occurred, since no
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department or position is clearly designated to manage the complaint through its
life cycle. There is either a genéral confusion about who is in charge of disciplinary
decisions or a disowning of responsibility. What we never heard from anyone —
other than perhaps former HR Legal Counsel Maureen Sloane, loosely

paraphrasing —was “this was my fault and | take responsibility for it.”

4, No viable document management system

For most of the years in which Mr. Whitehurst was employed, the District
lacked an electronic database or other means to track an individual employee’s
behavior issues over time. The lack of technological infrastructure resulted in a
reliance on paper files and manual processes to track issues attehdant to
Mr. Whitehurst's 32-year career.

The hard-copy documentation that existed for Mr. Whitehurst was not
maintained in a central location. Depending on who created the documentation, it
found its way to different repositories. The paper PPS police files were archived
{we think); Maureen Sloane maintained her own paper files in a file cabinet in her
office, and after she ieft these were moved and eventually put into storage; and
the building files were maintained in the school that Mr. Whitehurst was working

in at the time, until they were purged due to his transfer or that of his supervisor.
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This decentralized system created gaps in knowledge about Mr. Whitehurst’s
employment history and led various PPS employees to believe his record was clean
when in fact, he had been counseled or investigated repeatedly about
inappropriate behavior with female students.

When the PPS police force was disbanded in late 2001, the hand-off
apparently led to the PPS police records being archived rather than incorporating
documentation of personnel investigations into HR files.

The current transience of building files {as required under the terms of the
PAT union contract) contributes to yet another gap in information, leaving each
subsequent administrator to believe that Mr. Whitehurst’s record was cleaner than
it actually was.

Similarly, to the extent Mr. Whitehurst’s personnel file was pu.rged of
documentation (such as the 2001 memo, if it was placed in the personnel file), this
too worked in favor of Mr. Whitehurst. Each time he faced a reprimand, he could
deny all allegations knowing there was no permanent record of past misconduct
that would render his denials less credible.

Spotty record-keeping contributed to Mr. Whitehurst avoiding formal

reprimand on multiple occasions:
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e Marshall administrators and Maureen Sloane did not review the PPS
police records when they gave Mr. Whitehurst the benefit of the doubt

There is a reference in the memo he received of the District’s review of

his “entire employment record” and there being no additional evidence
of inappropriate behavior.

e lefferson administrators did not know of the 2001 memo_

R < Ricky Allen verbally counseled Mr. Whitehurst in

2008-09 about his harassing comment to the student eating grapes.

* Maureen Sloane did not have the benefit of the PPS police report in the
1983-84 school year regarding Mr. Whitehurst’s inappropriate conduct

—. She and Richard Clarke decided to take no action

to pursue the belated complaint. She references his employment record
in her memo, noting that the only pertinent record is the 2001
complaint: “There are no indications of any inappropriate behavior since
then.”

* Faubion administrators did not know of the 2001 memo regarding-

I < they attempted to address Caprice’s complaint

and the concerns about Mr. Whitehurst’s behavior in PE class.

e The HR and Legal Departments were unaware of the extent of the
concerns noted in the Faubion- interviews at the time Mr. Scotto
deferred to the Faubion administrators’ judgment that the issue “was
probably a middle school rumor.”

Better record-keeping could have led to shared knowledge about Mr. Whitehurst’s

career, and perhaps a different outcome,
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5. Lack of accountability of executive-level leadership due to lack of systems to
address sexual conduct issues

Decentralization coupled with a lack of systems led to a lack of
accountability at the top. Historically, the District’s executive leadership took a
hands-off approach and let the school administrators have significant autonomy.
Without systems in place to ensure that poiir;ies were being followed and
investigations were being conducted fully and fairly, this autonomy created a silo
effect whereby employees focused on their own duties in isolation. Without
proper systems in place to elevate sexual conduct complaints to a central tracking '
system or otherwise enéure that such concerns Wére being adequately addressed,
the District failed to keep the schools safe, while Mr. Whitehurst was repeatedly
given the benefit of the doubt.

There was no top-down involvement to ensure systems accountability. No
one ensured that everyone else was doing their job, no one ensured that this
decentralized process achieved the expected results. Apparently no upper-level
leadership has been held accountable for system failures or the lack of adequate
systems.

The District needs to have accountability all the way to the top. When the

internal investigation process repeatedly failed to hold Mr. Whitehurst
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accountable for sexual conduct with students, no one above the Legal Department
was apparently aware of it. The superintendent, for example, was not apprised of
any issues regarding Mr. Whitehurst, nor was there an expectation that she would
be briefed on any employment issue that did not rise to a level of potential
dismissal, non-renewal or litigation.

At the very top of the District, the Board must be accountable. Fifst, th’e
Board should hold the superintendent accountable for the staff and operations of
the District. The Board also has the power to approve involuntary terminations of
educators. When the evidence supports removing an educator from the District
due to his or her unethical sexual conduct with students, the Board should support

the recommendation to terminate,

PERFORMANCE FAILURES BY EMPLOYEES;

As discussed in earlier sections of this report, we found that HR legal counsel

Maureen Sloane conducted insufficient investigations in 2001 |||
I - ¢ 2008 (Caprice’s complaint). She also did not report the 2008
complaint to the TSPC, which we believe would have been an appropriate

response.
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As discussed in earlier sections of this report, Jefferson principal Cynthia
Harris may have failed to take appropriate action in 2008 if indeed she was put on
notice by Caprice of inappropriate sexual behavior by Mr, Whitehurst (s_ornething
she denies).

As discussed in earlier sections of this report, Faubion principal LaShawn Lee
appears to have failed to take appropriate action in late 2012 and early 2013 to
respond to the complaint from Caprice and the complaints_.

According to Caprice, she spent over an hour in Ms. Lee’s office in December
2012 attempting to convince her that Mr. Whitehurst had:lengage-d in sexual
misconduct when she was a high school senior and that the students at Faubion
may not be safe. Ms. Lee expressed disbelief and told Caprice that “everyone loves
him!” She was incredulous that he would ever harm a Faubion student. It was clear
to Caprice that Ms. Lee did not want to recognize that there was a problem.”" If
Ms. Lee spoke to Mr. Whitehurst about Caprice’s complaint or the EAs’ concerns, it
was not documented.

fn ea‘rIyJanuary 2013, for no apparent work-related purpose, Mr.

Whitehurst emailed Ms. Lee a photo album with pictures of his son || | R

T

2l Because no one else at the District interviewed Caprice in 2012-13, Ms. Lee’s possible bias did

not come to light.

I INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 101



suggests a close personal history with Mr. Whitehurst which, if true, should have
required Ms. Lee to recuse herself or at a minimum to disclose that issue to the HR
and Legal Departments.

Ms. Lee apparently did not interview Mr. Whitehurst about the specific
allegations arising from the_ She did not conduct a standard
investigatory interview with Mr. Whitehurst on January 18, 2013, and instead had
a brief conversation with him which did not apprise him of all of her concerns. This
was a meeting for which there are no notes and no documented follow-up with
Mr. Whitehurst (e.g., a memorandum of the discussion placed in the building or
personnel files). Ms. Lee also failed to document the basis for her conclusion that
“this was probably a middle school rumor” such that anyone else involved in the
investigation could review and challenge or confirm her findings.

As discussed in earlier sections of this report, Faubion vice principal Jen
MecCalley appears to have also failed to take appropriate action to respond to the

complaints || R Ve do not know why Ms. McCalley conciuded there

was “no huge finding” after interviewing almost two dozen students and hearing

rrsehand oo
-}

first-year vice principal at Faubion, where the community strongly supported its
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principal, Ms. McCalley may have felt pressured to follow Ms. Lee’s lead in taking
remedial measures without conducting a satisfactory investigatory interview and
pursuing formal discipline.

Lastly, we have concerns that the District’s long-time general counsel, Jollee
Patterson, did not do enough when she became involved in the Faubion issués in
December 2012 and January 2013. By the time she was contacted by Faubion’s

administrators regarding concerns voiced by female students in Mr. Whitehurst's

I V's. Patterson was already on notice of the 2001 complaint of ||

I ¢ e 2008 complint by Caprice
of egregious sextal conduct i 1924 [

I cither of these reports

concluded that the student was not credible or that the complaint was unfounded.
To this Ms. Lee added reports of her conversations with Mr. Whitehurst’s previous
supervisor who described his behavior as overly friendly and told her about the
flyers that had been pdsted at Jefferson.

Although Ms. Patterson defends her decisi\on to rely on HR as the proper
channel for the PE class investigation, it is regrettable that the District’s general
counsel was satisfied with the follow-up she received from Mr. Scotto, who she

was aware had not attended the interviews or any investigatory meeting.
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She did not ask Mr. Scotto (who was not included on the December emails
about Caprice’s complaint and the HR files found by Ms. Murphy, and who may
have been unaware of the other complaints of sexual conduct) to report the facts
upon which the Faubion administrators suddenly dismissed the_ as
probable rumors. Nor did she insist on an investigation of Caprice’s complaint.

We appreciate that Ms. Patterson is not an employment attorney and did
not step into the shoes of HR legal counsel during that position’s vacancy. Before
Stephanie Harper’s arrival in the District in March 2013, the HR legal counsel did
not even report to the general counsel; she or he reported to the head of the HR
Department.

However, we note that during the same time period that Ms. Patterson was

involved in the Faubion matters, she sought advice from Miller Nash regarding |

I . - 1cr50n did

not consult Miller Nash about Mr. Whitehurst’s employment issues. Given her
leadership role at the District, coupled with her knowledge of repeated allegations
of sexual conduct by Mr. Whitehurst, Ms. Patterson should have done more to

ensure that the District thoroughly investigated the Faubion allegations or
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requested outside counsel with expertise in this area to do that work or support
those who were doing it.

Of these employees, only Jen McCalley, now the principal of Faubion,
rgmains at PPS.

There are other employees not named here who may have contributed to
the failure to detect, report, investigate, and discipline Mr. Whitehurst. His history
appears to be a collective failure rather than the failure of any one individual or
groﬁp of individuals. We note that although students reported his overly flirtatious, |
harassing behavior as a common sight in the halls, where he would sometimes
comment about their appearance when he was standing with a group of other
male adults, no other staff or educators reported that conduct to the District.

Mr. Whitehurst had a reputation as a smooth talker and a fadies’ man with female
staff and students alike, yet apparently no employee felt it was their job to report
this behavior.

In our interviews, we heard from many, many witnesses that they felt they
had followed all of the District’s policies, done that part of the process that was
their responsibility, and then relied on others involved in the process to do their
jobs. We did not find District employees went beyond their job responsibilities or

assigned roles to make sure the investigation into Mr. Whitehurst's conduct had
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been robust and complete, and that everyone had, in fact, done their jobs in a
comprehensive manner.
As a case study, take the Faubion complaints:

¢ General counsel Jollee Patterson contends that her function as general
counsel was to get concerns about Mr. Whitehurst to the proper
department to support the Faubion building administrators. She made
sure chief HR officer Sean Murray and HR regional director Frank Scotto
were involved, and asserts that by doing so, she completed her job
function. As general counsel, she had little expertise in employment or
labor law and believed that handing this over to HR to manage was
appropriate in her role as general counsel. She expected HR and the
building administrators to investigate and, if warranted, formally |
reprimand or terminate Mr. Whitehurst. She recalls that she later learned
from Mr. Scotto that Ms. Lee had dismissed the complaints as rumors, and
she did not believe further review was necessary.

e Chief HR officer Seén Murray, cc’d on correspohdence from HR legal
counsel Jeff Fish in December 2012 as well as correspondence
acknowledged only as an “FYI” from Jollee Patterson in January 2013,
recalled that the Legal Department was involved in these complaints. He
thought that department was taking the lead. He also saw that Frank
Scotto was involved on behalf of the HR Department, so he did not believe
he needed to take a lead role on this particular matter. {Note that Mr,
Murray had just joined the District in November 2012.)

o HRregional director Frank Scotto insists that he gave support to the
building administrators in the form of helping them draft the investigatory
meeting notice and the interview questions for Ms. McCalley to use in her
interviews, He would have reviewed a matrix showing any pattern of
allegations in preparation for the investigatory interview, but Ms. McCalley
indicated there was no “huge finding” and implied one was not necessary.
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He was also prepared to attend an investigatory meeting had one been
rescheduled, but Ms. Lee told him she had already met with Mr.
Whitehurst and that the issue was “probably a middle school rumor.” In
reliance on the judgment of these two administrators whom Mr. Scotto
considered capable of conducting investigations, he did not follow up
further.

e Regional administrator Antonio Lopez was one of the individuals who
received Ms. Lee’s “Penn State scandal” email asking the District to
re-think the decision not to place Mr. Whitehurst on leave during the
investigation. He did not take any action other than emailing back to thank
Ms. Lee for “doing the hard work.” He believed the matter was in others’
capable hand and his involvement was not required.

e Paralegal Siobhan Murphy also

e The two Faubion building administrators, LaShawn Lee and Jen McCalley,

contend that the HR and Legal Departments_

They took some non-disciplinary remedial steps in an effort to protect the
Faubion students.

In hindsight, it is easy to criticize each of these individuals in some way or
another. At the time, most apparently believed their efforts were satisfactory to
address that portion of the process that required their attention. Had other

individuals been more diligent, this assumption might have been correct.
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EXTERNAL AGENTS:

Miller Nash Graham & Dunn LLP. The only external agent or representative
of PPS that we consider to be involved in Mr. Whitehurst’s employm‘ent isthe law
firm of Miller Nash Graham & Dunn LLP, and we did not find any performance
failures by this firm in regard to the allegations of student sexual conduct by
Mr. Whitehurst. Miller Nash was not asked for employment advice specifically
pertaining to Mr. Whitehurst’s conduct at any time he was employed by PPS.
Michael Porter, the attorney in charge of PPS matters, recalls having no knowledge
of Mr. Whitehurst up until the time he learned that a new tawsuit had been filed
against PPS. This was the sexual harassment lawsuit filed by former employee Rory
Thompson in August 2015, which Miller Nash defended on behalf of PPS. By the
time of the lawsuit, Mr. Whitehurst had resigned. The District negotiated his
resignation agreement in January and February 2015 without assistance from
outside counsel.

Miller Nash provided copious documents i'n response to our requests. We
found no evidence that the firm was ever involved in Whitehurst-related legal
matters untit the Thompson lawsuit was filed, at which point Mr. Whitehurst was

no longer employed by PPS.
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As for other third parties that were not PPS agents but that may have
affected Mr. Whitehurst’s trajectory as a PPS employee, we make the following

observations:

Oregon Teacher Standards and Practices Commission {TSPC}. The one time
the TSPC received notice from PPS of possible sexual conduct with students by Mr.
Whitehurst was in 2001, when Maureen Sloane reported ||| | | NGTGTcIcNcNGEGR-~
The TSPC received- written statement, Mr. Wolleck’s memao, and Ms.
Sloane’s notes of her interview of Mr. Whitehurst, as well as other documents
(whatever was in Mr, Whitehurst's personnel file, the school building file, and Ms.
Sloane’s working file). The TSPC closed its invegtigation five months later without
taking any action against Mr. Whitehurst. Clo;ed cases are confidential, so we do
not know whether the TSPC relied on Ms. Sloane’s investigation or conducted a

thorough and independent investigation of the student’s complaint).”®

22 On December 29, 2010, the TSPC received a letter of complaint from an anonymous patron in
the Portland School District regarding Mr. Whitehurst. Someone apparently sent the TSPC a copy
of the flyer that was posted at Jefferson. PPS responded to a TSPC subpoena for documents
related to the flyer. The TSPC found insufficient cause to justify a hearing and took no action
against Mr. Whitehurst.

23 \We are unaware of any interviews conducted by the TSPC in response to this report.
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Law Enforcement Agencies. Special comment deserves to be made about
two instances in which Mr. Whitehurst’s conduct came to the attention of outside
law enforcement agencies. In both instances opportunities to put an end to his
behavior and remove him from employment by PPS were missed. On each
occasion, the reasons for this failure were multiple. We discuss each incident
separately below.

Firstin 2001, the Portland Police Bureau (PPB) was informed of-
. - fortunately this occurred during a very short
transition period when the school police were being absorbed into the PPB. During
that transition (we were told it was two or three weeks), individual school police
officers were paired with individual incoming PPB officers who were unfamiliar
with school police duties and history. After the transition period, o/l former school
police officers were immediately reassigned to other parts of the PPB unrelated to
PPS. The consequence of this transition was that most institutional knowledge of
the first line law enforcement agents at PPS disappeared from the district.

Prior to this restructuring, the school police had conducted at least one and
probably two investigations of Whitehurst regarding allegations of sexual conduct
with female students, We were unable to locate written reports for any such

investigations. It is unclear if there was ever a system in place to make such
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reports avaiiable to incoming members of the PPB who became responsible for
school policing duties. What is clear is that the officers who ultimately responded
to— had no knowledge of the prior investigations.

Moreover, the former school police had had responsibility for conducting
both personnel and criminal investigations for PPS. At the time of the transition
period in approximately November 2001, no provision had been made for what
entity would conduct future personnel investigations. What was clear was that the
PPB was not going to do it and its members were resistant to participating in
anything that seemed to be a personnel investigation. This resistance and the .
faiILlre to designate any entity to conduct personnel investigations may have been

factors in the failed response to || | | | GcNNz:N

A team consisting of one PPB officer and one school police officer responded

to—. The officers involved and the sergeant

who reviewed the case felt that || Nl were not criminal in nature. Our
investigation determined they were mistaken. However, it would have taken a
person who specialized in child abuse investigations to have discerned that
potential criminal charges existed. To be fair to the officers involved, they had no

such training and they did take the step of coding || | ;NN i~ 2 manner

they thought would compel them to be forwarded to the District Attorney’s Office
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for more specialized review of their perception that no criminal charges existed
and no further criminal investigation was warranted.

Our investigation disclosed that for unknown reasons the reports were
either not forwarded (there is no record of them being received by the District
Attorney’s Office) or, if they were forwarded, proper records were not made and
the reports were never reviewed by the appropriate deputy district attorney.

We spoke with the deputy district attorney responsible for these reviews at
the time. Had he reviewed the reports the potential for criminal charges would
have been noted and, at the very least, a criminal investigation would have taken
place. As it was, no further criminal investigation occurred and Mr. Whitehurst
was not even interviewed by criminal investigators regarding the allegations. The
message PPS received from the PPB was that ||| G cic not
constitute a crime.

Last October, when our investigation of the case revealed there may have
been a basis for further criminat investigation and possible criminal charges, we
immediately brought the matter to the attention of the Multnomah County District
Attorney's Office. The case was reviewed by the DA's Office and a determination
made that any potential criminal charges would, at this time, be barred by the

statute of limitations.
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The second encounter with outside law enforcement agencies occurred 13
years later in 2014. By that time Mr. Whitehurst had moved to Faubion School.
This second case involved allegations that Mr. Whitehurst had struck another
teacher on the buttocks apparently with a foreign object penetrating the teacher’s
anus through his clothing. There had been other similar although less serious
incidents in the past by Mr. Whitehurst against this teacher and one other.,

The case was investigated by a member of the PPB’s Sex Crimes Unit. For
reasons we were unable to determine with certainty, the detective did not
discover the 2001 PPB reports regarding ||| | | | GGG o the other
school police investigations from years prior, when checking into Mr. Whitehurst’s
background. When he interviewed Faubion administrators, however, the detective
did learn second-hand ofthé details of more recent PPS internal allegations against
Mr, Whitehurst, including the allegations by Capriﬁe of sexual conduct in 1984.

The detective produced a 62-page report highlighting many concerns about
miscanduct by Mr. Whitehurst stretching back over decades. 'fhe detective did not
suspend his investigation, but sent the report to the sex crime unit of the
Multnomah County District Attorney’s Office for prosecutorial consideration.,

Unfortunately the deputy district attorney assigned to the case appears to

have treated the allegations almost dismissively. In her description of the caseon a
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CRIMES Fact Sheet, she characterized the incident as one in which Mr. Whitehurst
“likes to smack co-workers on the butt” and the victim teacher was “fed up” the
third time this happened and now wants the case prosecuted.

District Attorney’s Office policy at the time required that the highest levels 7
of the office be notified when a case was presented against a member of a
profession or occupation that is licensed by a state regulatory agency, including a
licensed educator like Mr. Whitehurst. The deputy district attorney’s standard
practice was to follow this policy-/. However, it appears not only did this not occur,
but the deputy district attorney’s immediate supervisor was in all probability not
notified. Had such notifications occurred our investigation concluded that the
matter would have been handled in a much more serious fashion.

As it was, the detective was informed by the deputy district attorney that
the case was going to be resolved on pre-indictment basis and he ended his
investigation into Mr. Whitehurst's history of misconduct allegations. The case was
handled without being presented to a grand jury with a plea to a Class B
misdemeanor charge of harassment. The result was a probationary sentence that
did not require Mr. Whitehurst to surrender his license.

Each Qf these two incidents where accusations against a PPS educator were

presented to law enforcement agencies, though widely separated in time,
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convinced us that a change is necessary to ensure that organization policies are
followed, that information is more fully shared between PPS and law enforcement

agencies, and that best practices are followed.
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Did any PPS employee(s) fall to comply with mandatory reporting requirements or
violate any policies, laws or ethics rules? If so, who and when? '

Were there any consequences for those failures?

Did ahy'of those failur_és_ have Iic_e_rigure implicationS? |

Our investigation did not reveal any failure to comply with mandatory

reporting obligations. The sexual abuse reported to the District — specifically,

Caprice’s report of sexual conduct when she and_
— — allegedly involved 18 year old students. Oregon’s mandatory

child abuse reporting laws and the District’s policy require PPS employees to report
suspected abuse or neglect of a child, meaning a person under 18 years of age. See
ORS 419B.005(2), -.010, and -.0.15. Therefore, no report to Child Protective
Services (CPS) was required, nor would the agency have taken the report.

In 2012, principal LaShawn Lee reported Caprice’s allegations to the PPB -

specifically, Officer Williams, the Faubion school resource officer (SRO). | |}
The failure to report Caprice’s allegations to the TSPC in 2008 and again in

2012 was not a failure to comply with mandatory reporting requirements, per se,

but arguably ran afoul of OAR 584-020-0041(3), a TSPC standard that provides:
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A chief administrator will report to the Executive Director [of the TSPC]
within thirty (30) days the name of any {licensed educator], when the
chief administrator reasonably believes the person may have
committed any act which may constitute any of the designated acts of
gross neglect of duty under OAR 584-020-0040(4) . . ..

OAR 584-020-0040(4) includes sexual conduct with a student. Thus, if a chief
administrator at the District reasonably believed at any time that Mr. Whitehurst
may have engaged in sexual conduct with one ||| in 1984 this
concern should have been reported to the TSPC. It was not.

The TSPC only became aware of the allegations of sexual conduct when it
investigated the District’s report to the TSPC of Mr. Whitehurst's adult-to-adult
unwanted physical cohtact with Mr, Thompson in the fal[ of 2014, During that
investigation, the TSPC investigator learned from the P-PB report written by
Detective Weinstein about second-hand accounts of Mr. Whitehurst's sexual
conduct with students. The TSPC opened up a second investigation into this
conduct on its own initiative in 2015.

The TSPC recommends that a school district conduct at least a preliminary
investigation into an allegation prior to reporting it in order to substantiate a
reasonable belief that an educator has engaged in sexual conduct. Because.
Caprice’s complaint was never investigated adquately by the District, we believe

the issue never developed to the stage where it would typically be brought to the
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attention of the TSPC (such as after discipline is imposed or a thorough
investigation has been conducted). The TSPC standards state that failure of a chief
administrator to report a violation of TSPC standards is itself possibly grounds for
“gross neglect of duty,” but we have no reason to find the then-chief administrator
(meaning Carole Smith, the superintendent) was even aware of any allegations
about Mr. Whitehurst. Ms. Smith does not recall ever being informed of any
allegations of student sexual abuse by Mr. Whitehurst. The allegations of sexual
conduct were apparently not brought to the superintendent’s attention or to that
of any designee whose job duty was to report to the TSPC on behalf of the District.
PPS records show that the District’s HR legal counsel was the person who
typically made a report to the TSPC when there was a reasonable belief of a
violation of the TSPC standards. From mid-December 2012 until March 2013, a
critical period in the chronology, the District did not have anyone in that role. The
general counsel (Ms. Patterson) had never before made a report to the TSPC and
did not consider this duty to fall to her during the three-month vécancy. We were
unable to determine who would have been responsible for reporting to the TSPC

during this HR legal counsel vacancy.
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Is there any evidence that any person or group of people protected Mr. Whitehurst?
Who lnltlated and approved Mr. Whrtehurst's transfers? |

Is there any mdlcatlon that Distrlct personnel used transfers as a way to avord taklng
disciplinary action?

Our investigation did not uncover evidence that any person or group of
people protected Mr. Whitehurst, beyond what we have already presented in the
earlier discussion of employee performance failures. We did not find evidence of
an intent to protect Mr. Whitehurst, though we did find there were employees
(e.g., the_edministrators at Faubion) who appeared unwilling to confront
Mr. Whitehurst about his inappropriate behavior and document the issue for
reasons that are not clear.*

We did not find evidence that District employees used transfers as a way of
avoiding disciplinary action against Mr. Whitehurst. Many of the principals and vice
principals interviewed indicated that they saw nothing inappropriate about
Mr. Whitehurst’s behavior and received no complaints about him. These
administrators trusted him, believed he was a good person, and were shocked and

disturbed to learn of the allegations of sexual conduct detailed in The Cregonian.

24 Of the handful of witnesses who declined to be interviewed for this investigation, almost all of
them were involved in the 2012-13 issues involving Mr. Whitehurst at Faubion: LaShawn Lee,
Rory Thompson, Harriet Adair, and Ken Berry.
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As detailed in the chronology at the beginning of this reﬁort, Mr. Whitehurst
transferred six times during his 32-year career at PPS {not including his brief stint
as a .5 FTE at Sitton Elementary School):

From Marshall in 1983: Mr. Whitehurst was unassigned because his original
assignment was a one-year temporéry position. From Marshall, he moved to
Franklin High School.

From Franklin in 1984: Mr. Whitehurst was unassigned because his
assignment was a one-year temporary position filling in for an educator on
sabbatical. From Franklin, he moved to Sellwood Middle School.

From Sellwood in 1986: Mr. Whitehurst was an administrative transfer to
Lincoln High School, where he could coach and teach at the same school. He left
Sellwood with an excellent review from principal John “Bill” Beck, who supported
the move because of Mr. Whitehurst's interest in coaching at a high school level.

From Linceln in 1997: Mr. Whitehurst was unassigned in July 1997 by
principal Velma Johnson, who did not respond to numerous attempts to contact
her during our investigation. There is no evidence that the unassignment was due
to inappropriate conduct with female students and not due to budget cuts.

Mr. Whitehurst was put on a plan for improvement at the start of the 1996-97

school year. During our investigation, we were told of unreported sexual abuse and
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sexual harassment by Mr. Whitehurst while he was working at Lincoln, so itis
certainly possible that his unassignment was used as a way to pass on a problem
employee and avoid taking disciplinary action, but we have no evidence of this.
From Lincoln, Mr. Whitehurst moved to Marshall.

From Marshall in 2006: Mr. Whitehurst was unassigned during a period of
flux and upheaval at Marshall. Records indicate the unassignment by Renaissance
Academy principal Fred Locke was due to budget cuts. From Marshall, Mr.
Whitehurst moved to Jefferson.

From Jefferson in 2012: Mr. Whitehurst was an administrative transfer to
Faubion. He lost his extended responsibility as athletic director at the end of the
2011-2012 school year for performance reasons unrelated to sexual conduct, but
was offered a 1.0 position as a PE teacher at Jefferson such that he could have
stayed on at Jefferson had he wanted to. Rather than accept the position, he
coﬁtacted principal LaShawn Lee at Faubion and indicated his interest ina 1.0 FTE
I osition at Faubion. She and Jefferson principal Margaret Calvert
agreed to the transfer,

Based on our review of Mr. Whitehurst's personnel files and other PPS
records, as well as our interviews with almost all of Mr. Whitehurst’s

administrators, we found no evidence he was unassigned or transferred from
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school to school to avoid being reprimanded for his sexual conduct with female
students. We further found no evidence that he was ever transferred to a school
like Sellwood or Faubion to get him away from high school girls, as has been
suggested by the media. In conclusion, we did not find evidence that any school
intentionally allowed or encouraged Mr. Whitehurst to move to another school in
the District in order to conceal an ongoing concern regarding his inappropriate

hehavior.
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Was there any follow up by the administration following settlement of the Rory
Thompson matter as directed by the Board and, if not, why not?

We found there was some follow-up by high-level District administrators,
but not to the extent the 2016-17 Board expected. The 2016-17 board consisted
of Chair Tom Koehler, Vice Chair Amy Carlsen Kohnstamm, and Directors Mike
Rosen, Pam Knowles, Paul Anthony, Steve Buel and Julie Esparza Brown.

At a special PPS Board meeting held on September 19, 2016, the Board
approved settlement of Rory Thompson v. PPS by a 4 to 3 vote. During the Board’s
discussion before the vote, Director Anthony expressed his .disapproval of the
settlement because he believed it piaced the small financial risk and the risk to
reputations over the risk to children. Director Kohnstamm countered by noting
that there were two issues: (1} resolution of the Thompson matter, and (2) the
District’s own process of assessing how the District allowed Mr. Whitehurst’s
conduct to persist throughout the period of his employment, and what the District
needed to do now to be sure it had a process that first and foremost protected the
District’s students and staff. Directors Koehler and Esparza Brown agreed with
Director Kohnstamm’s comments. Director Buel pointed out that this was one of
the things that had come under the Board’s purview and noted for the record that

the Board had asked the interim superintendent, Bob McKean, to “take a look at all
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of these procedures having to do with complaints with children, with employees
and so forth” and this would also be spearheaded by the Board’s Audit
Committee. Chair Koehler then thanked Mr. McKean, who attended the meeting,
“for taking this on” and also thanked Director Rosen {chair of the Audit Committee)
“for taking this on.”

Foliowing this meeting, Mr. McKean met with chief HR officer Sean Murray
to discuss the District’s policies and procedures regarding student sexual conduct.
He confirmed there was annual training given to all employees at the start of the
school year regarding child abuse, including educator sexual conduct and abuse.
There was also sexual harassm-ent training (this was relatively new). Mr. McKean
and Mr. Murray reviewed the investigatory process for complaints. They found the
investigatory methods to be thorough.

Mr. McKean concluded that the systems in place offered effective methods
to prevent, idéntify and report future sexual conduct or abuse. Mr. McKean did not
think he needed to report back to the Board on his efforts, since he found the
systems in place to be satisfactory. He does not recall anyone on the Board ever

asking him about what he did in response to their request.

% Director Buel went on to note that he personally thought the Board should investigate “how
this whole thing came down,” but that appeared to be his own view and not the Board’s official
directive to the interim superintendent.
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During his year as interim superintendent, Mr. McKean also worked with his

chief of staff Amanda Whalen on a review of the complaint policy and how the
- complaint process worked. The complaint process review was much broader than

a Whitehurst-focused review, but included reviewing the complaint process
regarding sexual harassment and educator sexual conduct or abuse.

The next time the Whitehurst matter was broached by the 2016-17 Board
was at the Board’s Business and Operations (B&0) Committee meeting on April 10,
2017. The informal minutes of the Board’s reflect the following discussion:

Jeff Fish presented a revision to the District’s Anti-Harassment policy
and shared there would be one version for students and one version
for staff. . . . Chair Knowles asked how this policy would relate to the
child abuse reporting requirements. Jeff Fish stated they go hand in
hand and provided an overview of the policy. Director Rosen asked
who would investigate complaints raised and what does the District do

- until an investigation is complete. Jeff Fish stated it would be the Title
IX coordinator and shared various scenarios. ...

Director Kohnstamm asked if the Whitehurst situation was a result of
the policy or how it was implemented. Director Tom Koehler stated
that he would like to see a lessons learned from the Whitehurst
situation. Yousef Awwad stated that these were things the Title IX
coordinator could look at, The committee thought it should go to the
Board for a first reading. Director Koehler stated he wanted to make
sure there was lessons learned on Whitehurst before this goes to the
Board. He then moved and Director Rosen seconded to recommend
the policy go to the full Board for a first reading. The committee
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unanimously agreed to move the policy to the full Board for a first
reading.

This committee meeting was attended by the following District staff: Jeff Fish (HR
legal counsel),”® Yousef Awwad (cHief executive officer), Sascha Perrins (interim
chief of staff), and Rosanne Powell (Board manager).

On May 23, 2017, Ms. Powell followed up with an email to interim general
counsel Stephanie Harper and Mr. Perrins, cc to Mr. McKean and Mr. Awwad:

Dear Stephanie and Sascha,

I was reviewing the B&QO notes where the committee heard Jeff’s
overview of the revised Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment
policy. The committee requested a “lessons learned” from the
Whitehurst case before going to the Board. Since the second reading
and vote will be happening on June 13" this will need to happen
before then.

Stephanie, I'm not sure if this would be something that would be done
best in a memo or if it even qualifies for an executive session?

Thanks.
Ms. Harper promptly responded to Ms. Powell and Mr. Perrins, cc to Mr. McKean

and Mr. Awwad:

Well, Jeff and | talked about Whitehurst and he worked to incorporate
that into the work he already did, and answered questions individually
from board members. | can do a short “lessons learned” in writing (i

? Jeff Fish left the District in mid-December 2012 and then returned in May 2016.
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don’t have time to do o full scale analysis of the case) or talk with the
board in executive session. . . .

As far as we can tell, there was no written follow-up. Board members do not

recall Ms. Harper addressing them about this issue in executive session.

During the spring and summer of 2017, there were many changes among

the District’s high-level administrative personnel:*’

Chief of staff Amanda Whalen resigned February 10, 2017/.
HR lfegal counsel Jeff Fish resigned May 11, 2017.

Chief HR officer Sean Murray resigned June 3, 2017.

Jim Harris was hired as general counsel June 15, 2017.

Interim general counse! Stephanie Harper became senior legal counsel on
June 16, 2017,

interim superintendent Bob McKean ended his one-year contractJuly 1,
2017.

CEO Yousef Awwad was promoted to interim superintendent July 1, 2017,

Interim chief of staff Sascha Perrins resigned on or about August 31, 2017.

This was a time of immense change among the District’s high-level personnel, and

the volatility may explain why the presentation of “lessons learned” from the

Whitehurst case was never fully delivered to the Board. Of the three

administrators present for the April B&O committee meeting (Mr. Awwad, Mr.

77| addition to changes in District personnel, three newly-elected Board members joined the
Board in July 2017. ‘
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Perrins, and Mr. Fish), one {Mr. Fish) had resigned before Ms, Powell sent her May
23" reminder email. The four administrators who received her May 23™ email
were either in the process of leaving the District or moving to different positions at
the time of the June committee meeting. As it happened, the June meeting did not
result in a second reading of the anti-harassment policy, nor was there one read in
subsequent meetings.

After The Oregonian ran its Whitehurst exposé in August 2017, newly-
elected 2017-18 PPS Board Chair Brim-Edwards notified the rest of the 2017-18
Board that she and the superintendent, as well as she and Vice Chairs Esparza
Brown and Moore, had discussed hiring an outside firm to investigate the matter
and provide recommendations. The new board was composed of Chair Julia
Brim-Edwards, Vice Chairs Julie Esparza Brown and Rita Moore, Scott Bailey, Amy
Carlsen Kohnstamm, Mike Rosen and Paul Anthony.,

Board leadership and outside counsel identified the investigation team and
the Board unanimously approved the hiring of the team at a Special Board Meeting
on September 19, 2017. Brim-Edwards notified then-interim superintendent
Yousef Awwad of the Board’s plan to hire an outside firm to investigate the
Whitehurst matter to “provide [him] with visibility to this.” Mr. Awwad responded

in an email to Director Brim-Edwards: “f appreciate the visibility on this. { was
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planning to assign staff to do this work but it is my understanding that you have
already reached out to staff and started the work on this. Thank you.”

It is not clear what work the interim superintendent had planned to assign
to staff, or why he did not take action earlier. Mr. Awwad had attended the B&0O
committee meeting in April 2017, at which Chair Koehler requested a “lessons
learned” briefing in the near future, and he had been on an email exchange
regarding this topic in late May 2017, in which Ms. Powell stated that the “lessons
learned” would need to be delivered to the committee by mid-June.

We note that the Title IX coordinator position —the person Mr, Awwad had
originally indicated.could do the “lessons learned” analysis — was vacant during the
period of his leadership. A job description for the Title [X coordinator was finally
posted after the District hired a new superintendent in the fall of 2017. The lack of

a Title IX coordinator in 2016-17 may parti.aI!y explain the lack of follow-through.
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What complaint and investigation procedtjrésfshduld the District adopt to ensure
that complaints regarding personnel and agents working on behalf of PPS are
recelved and acted upon promptly and approprlately? L '

Do the Dlstrlct's recordkeeplng or other procedures allow for con5|derat|on of all
prior complaints related to employee’ misconduct mvolvmg students such that the
Districl: can |dent|fy any patterns of related issues? '

If not what should be done to change that?

The District’s current record—keeping procedures do not allow for
consideration‘ of all prior complaints related to employee misconduct involving
students. Consequently, the District is hampered in its ability to identify patterns of
related issues. To change that, the District will need to negotiate to change the
PAT union contract (see the next section), as well as any other union contracts that
require document destruction or removal from employee files. The District will also
need to modify its procedures for tracking sexual conduct complaints.

We Iirrtit our recommendatioas to complaints and investigation procedures
specific to employee sexual conduct with students. We recommend the District
adopt the following procedures:

1. Train and require building administrators and HR Department staff
who receive complaints to document every complaint or concern of
sexual conduct and report them all to the Title IX coordinator or a
similar designee.
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2. Have a specialized, trained investigator with expertise in
employee/student sexual conduct investigate each complaint
thoroughly and fairly, '

3. Have a core group of multi-disciplinary administrators (the employee’s
supervisor, in-house legal counsel, Title IX coordinator, and
investigator, if different from the Title IX coordinator) make core
credibility decisions and agree regarding what level of discipline to
impose, if any.

4, Implement a centralized tracking mechanism to document all
complaints, including their outcome.

We explain our recommendations in more detail below.

As a preliminary matter, we heard from many witnesses that there is no

clear protocol for reporting a sexual conduct complaint. The District should
publicize clear protocols conveying the simple directive that anyone with a
complaint or concern or a reasonable suspicion that an employee is engaged in
sexual conduct should immediately report it to either the principal of their building

or to the Title IX coordinator.
Building administrators and relevant central office staff should be trained to

document sexual conduct concerns brought to their attention. Then they should
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report those concerns immediately to the Title IX coordinator,? a position that
must be clearly tasked with the job responsibility of receiving and handling all
sexual conduct complaints in the District, and one that is held accountable for
doing so properly.

If the District deems it more appropriate to assign these duties to a position
other than the Title IX coordinator, we defer to the District. The Title IX coordinator
is not a “magic” title. Any other position with authority and expertise could receive
and handle all sexual conduct complaints in the District. What is important is that
this role be clearly designated and publicized to the schools, and that this positioﬁ
be held accountable for properly handling all sexual conduct complaints.

To track complaints and concerns, the District could create a Confidential
Staff-to-Student Sexual Harassment and Misconduct Reporting Form for building
administrators to use when reporting complaints or concerns to the Title IX
coordinator or other designee. The form should identify the school’s name, the
name of the person who received the report, the date, and the allegations or a
| summary of the incident. It should require a narrative of events as reported by the

student/witness, including the student’s exact words, phrases or descriptions to

#If the District prefers to establish an HR intake process that requires administrators to contact
HR, and HR in turn then routes sexual conduct complaints to the Title [X coordinator, we defer to
the District. The important thing is that everyone in the chain is held accountable and there are
not so many parts in the chain that it breaks down.
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the building administrator. The log should be treated as confidential and shared
only with appropriate school personnel {e.g., the Title [X coordinator, HR legal
counsel, any PPS investigator), law enforcement authorities, and as otherwise

required by law.

Currently, building administrators may and often do conduct the
investigations of sexual conduct complaints. We do not recommend that building
_administrators lead these investigations. Building administrators are highly skilled,
hard-working, dedicated educational leaders but few are trained in or have
extensive experience in investigating sexual conduct. Moreover, building
administrators should not be expected to investigate sexual conduct complaints
given the complexities and the seriousness of the allegations if proven (e.g.,
termination, revocation of teaching ‘license, criminal liability, placerhent on sexual
offender list}.

There is also the possibility of administrator bias toward the educator being
accused of misconduct, who could be a colleague and may have a c[ose working
relationship with the administrator. Building administrators may face a complaint

of sexual conduct about a beloved educator with a sense of disbelief, avoidance,
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and reluctance to confront the educator, or a reticence to follow-up with a formal
investigation or grieve-able reprimand. Furthermore, it is possible that the
administrator’s conduct could be called into question in the event the
administrator has covered up or ignored past inappropriate behavior.

We recommend that the District remove all sexual conduct investigations
from the purview of the buildiﬁg administrators and have them conducted by a
qualified, experienced investigator trained to identify employee/student sexual
conduct (including obviously inappropriate behavior as well as grooming behavior
and adult/student boundary violations). The process should be centralized and
assigned to a dedicated individual who will be expected to do a full and fair
investigation. Consultation with the building administrator may be appropriate,
but we recommend that the administrator not be in charge of the investigation.

The investigator should approach the complaint as one that warrants
heightened scrutiny, not as a low-level disciplinary matter. The investigation of
sexual conduct needs to be a thorough, detailed inquiry into the factual allegations
of a report of suspected sexual conduct that is based on interviews with the

complainant, witnesses and school employee who is the subject of the report. The
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investigation must meet any negotiated standards of any applicable union

contract.”
A thorough investigation will include any or all of the following steps:

v |dentification of the allegation or complaint {who, what, when, where,
frequency, plus any context to the comment or conduct).

v' |dentification of standards of behavior (policies, ADs, job descriptio'n,
TSPC standards, union contract, statutes).

v’ Identification of the issues.

v" Notification up the chain and to outside parties, as appropriate —
HR/Legal, PPB, CPS, TSPC.

v" Placement of the educator on leave, if appropriate (in consultation with
HR, review the union contract and educator sexual conduct statute).

v Interview of the complainant. Include exact words, phrases or details
used by the student. (A student reporting an incident of sexual violence
or other traumatic sexual conduct should not necessarily be asked to
submit a written report detailing the incident, as this may re-traumatize
the stud'ent.)

v’ Notification to the parent(s) or legal guardian(s} of the student making
the complaint, unless notification will create a substantial risk to the

student’s health, safety or welfare.

v Collection and review of documents or other evidence.

29 This heightened investigation is expected to have taken place before a district reports
substantiated conduct to another district seeking Information about a former PPS employee. See
ORS 339.370(4) and (10). Therefore, it should be the standard for ali investigations of reports of

sexual conduct.
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v Interview of all witnesses, one at a time. For students, use prepared
scripts with open-ended questions that do not suggest the answer
(consider recording or transcribing responses).

v" Interview of the employee accused of inappropriate behavior.

v’ Re-interview of withesses or collection of additional evidence when facts
are in dispute.

To determine whether the inappropriate conduct rises to the statutory
definition of “substantiated sexual conduct,” as prescribed by Oregon law {which
could trigger the District’s obligation to provide additional procedures to the
employee per ORS 339.388 and to disclose the conduct to other education
providers per ORS 339.378), the District needs to determine whether the student’s
educational performance was impacted in any way. This is probably not a question
that is routinely asked in the interview process, but it is part of the showing of
“substantiated sexual conduct” under the reporting statute, so the District may
want to ask questions relating to the effect of the conduct on the student’s
educational performance. The District should try to determine whether the
conduct unreasonably interfered with the student’s educational performance, and
if so, how. The District should also attempt to ascertain whether the conduct

created an intimidating or hostile or offensive environment for the student, and
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again, if so, how. When these guestions are asked, they should not be leading

questions that suggest the answer.

The District’s Guidelines for Internal Personnel Complaint Investigations

should be incorporated, as appropriate, with these recommendations.

After the investigation has been completed, a multi-disciplinary tearﬁ that
includes but does not have to be limited to the employee’s supervisor, the Title IX
coordinator, in-house legal counsel, and the investigator (if the investigator is not
the Title IX coordinator) shlould review the investigation’s findings and the
employee’s employment history, including the full history of concerns relating to
the subject of the complaint, to decide what level of discipline, if any, is
appropriate.®® This centralized approach is important for consistent responses at
schools across the District. It is also advisable that the District have a team of

accountable employees led by the Title IX coordinator make the determination

* |t is not unprecedented for a school district to review the full history of concerns. In the San
Francisco Unified School District, for example, whenever that district receives a report
concerning a possible boundary violation, the site supervisor and assigned talent management
director conduct an investigation that includes a review of the full history of concerns
(substantiated and unsubstantiated) relating to the educator who is the subject of the
concern/complaint. See SFUSD Professional Adult/Student Boundaries Policy 4019.1.
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about whether to believe a student’s version of an incident of sexual conduct or
abuse over a teacher’s account of the incident. The individual who interviewed the
student should be part of the team that makes any credibility decisions. The team
should document its reasoning in support of its credibility determinations.

For purposes of substantiated sexual conduct, investigations must also
determine whether the conduct has met all four elements of the statutory
definition of “sexual conduct” under ORS 339,370(9). ORS 339.370(9) defines
“sexual conduct” as “any verbal or physical conduct by a school employee that
(A) Is sexual in nature; (B) Is directed towards a kindergarten through grade 12
student; (C) Has the effect of unreasonably interfering with a student’s education
performance; and (D) Creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational
environment.” All four parts of the definition must be met before this law’s
procedural requirements for disclosing the conduct to other education providers
are triggered,

However, finding that an employee did not engage in “substantiated sexual
conduct” under the Oregon statute does not excuse the employee’s inappropriate
conduct and breach of professionalism. if the team concludes that the evidence
does not support all four elements of the definition of “sexual conduct” under ORS

339.370(9), the team should assess whether the evidence demonstrates that there
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was inappropriate conduct of a sexual nature directed towards a student. If so, it
should be reported to the TSPC if the employee is a licensed educator.

The TSPC definition does not require all four elements of the state statute to
be met to establish sexual conduct that is reportable to the TSPC. See QAR 584-
020—0005(5)(d) (definition of “sexual conduct” includes, inter alia ... “Verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature when directed towards a student or when sm;ch
conduct has the effect of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational
performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational
environment. . ..”) femphasis added). Note that the TSPC has an expanded
definition of “sexual conduct” that also includes “verbal or physical conduct which
has the effect of unreasonably interfering with a student’s educational
performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational
environment.” OAR 584-020-0005(5){e). The conduct does not need to be directed
at a student to be considered sexual conduct under the TSPC’s definition; it is
enough for it merely to have a deleterious effect on the student.

Thus, even when the District’s proof does not meet the four-part statutory
definition of sexual conduct, the District may still find that an educator has

engaged in sexual conduct that should result in discipline or dismissal and a report
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to the TSPC. *! In-house legal counsel should notify TSPC of a possible violation of
standards within 30 days of the complaint, as appropriate. If in doubt whether to
report to the TSPC, in-house legal counsel should contact the TSPC to discuss the
cdncern.

But even when the conduct does not meet the statutory four-part test for
“sexual conduct” or the TSPC's definition of “sexual conduct,” verbal or physical or
other inappropriate conduct by a school employee that is sexual in nature or
inappropriately personal or boundary-crossing with students can be sufficient
cause to warrant disciplinary action.

Any discipline arising from the complaint or concern should be documented
in the building file and the personnel file. Any concern that is well-founded, even
when it does not rise to formal discipline, should always be documented in the
building file.

Regardless of the investigation’s outcome, all information relating to the
complaint should be logged by the Title IX coordinator or its designee (see section

4, below) and saved in a database.

** The Beaverton School District’s policy entitled “Reporting Reguirements Regarding Sexual
Conduct With Students” clearly states in its second sentence: “The first two elements of the
following definition will be considered sufficient cause for taking disciplinary action.” PPS should
consider adding this line to its policies, as well.
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Finally, either the Title IX coordinator or its designee should notify the

complainant about the outcome of the investigation,

After the investigation concludes, the Title IX coordinator or its designee
should document the outcome of the investigation and the follow-up that
occurred with the employee (e.g,, no action, verbal counseling by supervisor,
non-disciplinary letter of expectation, formal reprimand, dismissal}.

Maintaining a record of all reported incidents of sexual conduct will enable
the District to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive inappropriate behavior that
may otherwise go undetected. To identify a pattern of séxua! conduct, the District
should maintain a full history of all concerns, whether they are (a) substantiated
per the Oregon statute, {(b) well-founded but not meeting the four-part test of the
statute, (c}) unsubstantiated because the evidence was inconclusive, or
(d) unfounded (meaning there was no basis for the concern)®? - for each employee

who is the subject of any sexual conduct complaint.

3 A complaint that is found to be meritless is still worth tracking because it may reveal a pattern
of some other issue that the District might want to address. Tracking unfounded complaints will
also assist the District is showing that its investigations are fair and result in varied outcomes,
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The complaint, investigatory files, and any discipline or other follow-up with
the employee should all be maintained in a confidential database so the
employee’s full history of concerns is accessible to in-house legal counsel, the Title
IX coordinator, the designee, and anyone else with an authorized need to know.
Given that the District will inevitably have a different slate of employees working in
the Legal and HR Departments over the course of an investigated employee’s
career with the District, it is critical that the information be documented and
maintained on a database to ensure there is a written record of all institutional

knowledge about an employee.
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Are there provisions in the union contract that impact the District's ability to
adequately address complaints?

Yes. We assume the “union contract” this question refers to is the recently
ratified 2016-2019 collective bargaining agreement between School District No. 1,
Multnomah County, Oregon, and the Portland Association of Teachers (PAT).

1.  ARTICLE 22.B, PERSONNEL FILES:

“With the exception of items which are duplicates of those in the
District [personnel] file, evaluation materials. . .and other official
records, materials in the supervisor’s building file, Including Letters of
Expectation, shall be removed when the supervisor or the professional
educator is transferred.

This provision protects educators, not students. If an issue is worth
documenting in the building file, it is relevant to the educator’s employment and a
change of supervisors oré change of teaching assignment does not mitigate its
relevance. The issue being documented {e.g., the behavior of the educator, or the
educator’s response to being counseled for inappropriat-e behavior) remains a
historical fact for that educator. It does not logically follow that a transfer of either
the'su\pervisor or the educator abruptly erases it, and at least as it bears on sexual
conduct, it certainly does not protect students. It prevents the District from
discovering a pattern of inappropriate behavior that may only become visible over

time after multiple incidents, perhaps each one too minor to rise to a level of
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grieve-able discipline, but in the aggregate become worthy of discipline. This
includes behavior such as sexual harassment, boundary violations and grooming
behavior. Similarly, a letter of expectation®® which documents that the educator
was made aware of certain District policies, directives or procedures should not be
discarded and allow that educator to escape discipline the next time that educator
engages in behavior similar to what led to the initial letter of expectation,

The District has many educators who make é life-long career of teaching at
Portland Public Schools. Due to promotions, budget cuts, unassignments, transfers,
seniority, residential neighborhood moves and other personal decisions, they often
—and, in some cases, frequently — move from one schoof to another. Many do not
remain at one building during their career, nor is there any expectation they will do
s0. Supervisors similarly move among the schools for numerous reasons. Properly
documented building files contain valuable information that should be passed on
to all future supervisors who are required to manage the educator’s performance,
whether it occurs in the same or a different building.

Retaining or removing materials from the building files should be the

District’s choice {assuming what the District seeks to remove is not prohibited by

3% according to the District’s contract with PAT, a letter of expectation “is a written notice of an
expectation, standard, policy or procedure. It is not a finding of fault or misconduct and is not a
disciplinary action.” See Article 19.H.1.
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law), and not a contractual requirement that prioritizes an educator’'s employment
over the students’ safety and well-being. The building file should always follow the

educator and remain intact when a new supervisor takes over.

2.  ARTICLE 22.G, PERSONNEL FILES:

‘A professional educator may reguest and have granted that any
materials in the District personnel file (excluding evaluations and letter
stating final disciplinary action) be removed from his/her file if after
three (3) years of being written no subsequent similar entries have been
made into the professional educator’s personnel file.”

“Letters of Expectation shall be removed from a professional educator’s
building file three (3) years after the date of the Letter of Expectation.”

For most of the same reasons, this provision protects educators, not
students. Similar to removing materials from the building files, Article 22.G cleans
the state for an educator who may, bver time, exhibit a pattern of inappropriate
conduct with students. Conduct that is perhaps considered by an administrator as
not serious enough to rise to the level of discipline for one occurrence but is
nevertheless documented should remain in the educator’s files so that if that
educator engages in similar conduct in the future, a pattern can be detected and
appropriate disciplinary action can be taken. Materials relating to allegations of an
educator’s sexual conduct with students should not ever be removed from any

files.
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In the case of Mr. Whitehurst's employment, PPS employees who reviewed
his personnel file found it void of any references to inappropriate conduct with
students. The employees who made recommendations and decisions regarding his

employment took his clean file into consideration when determining that there

was not enough evidence to formally discipline him—
I 2 the PPS police reports regarding Mr. Whitehurst from the

1980's and 1990’s been in his personnel file, Maureen Sloane would have seena
persistent pattern of sexual conduct and had sufficient evidence to justify

discipline or termination in 2001 and again in 2008.

3. ARTICLE 19.H, PROFESSIONAL EDUCATOR RIGHTS AND JUST CAUSE:

Letter of Expectation

1- * ¥ *

2 “.. Letters of expectation may be placed in the building
file. ... Letters in the Letter of Expectation file shall be
organized District-wide by school year and shall be
removed from the fife after three (3) years.”

This provision also protects educators, not students. First, letters of
expectation in the building file will, for most of the same reasons, have a short
shelf life of three years or less. The letter is removed sooner than three years if the

supervisor or educator transfers, a common scenario. Second, letters of
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expectation are maintained at the District office not by name of educator but
rather, by school year so that they may be expeditiously purged. This further
impairs the District’s ability to detect any pattern of behavior for any particular
educator. A system that tracked letters of expectation by individual employee and
did not remave these notices would improve the District’s ability to adequately

address complaints of educator sexual conduct.

4.  ARTICLE 21, COMPLAINT PROCEDURE:

The complaint procedure presumes that the educator’s supervisor will
conduct the investigation of a complaint. qu the reasons set forth in the
preceding section in our report, all invéstiga-tions into sexual conduct complaints
should be led by a qualified, experienced investigator trained to identify
employee/student sexual conduct {including obviously inappropriate behavior as
well as grooming behavior and adult/student- boundary violations), and not led by
the school administrators. Consultation with the éducator’s supervisor may be
appropriate, and certainly the educator’s supervisor should be cénsulted inany

investigation, but that administrator should not be in charge of the investigation.
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5. ARTICLE 21.C, COMPLAINT PROCEDURE:

“If the supervisor decides to proceed further with the written complaint.
it shall be processed within ten (10) workdays of receipt under the
following circumstances...”

The process outlined in the complaint procedure has the potential to be
rushed by the supervisor in order to meet this deadline. In cases of sexual conduct,
the District may not have a sufficient amount of time to process a complaint within
ten days. We understand this provision to mean that the supervisor will notify the
educator of a complaint in detail within 10 days, not that the complaint itself will
be investigated within 10 days.

Being fully prepared for this meeting and having specific detailed examples
of the a(;tions complained of may from time to time require more than ten
workdays. PAT should not be permitted to argue that the District has ]ost its
opportunity to proceed further with a complaint of educator sexual conduct —and
has theref.ore lost its ability to make a record of the complaint or investigate and
possible discipline or dismiss a badly-behaved educator — because of the contract’s
ten-day complaint processing deadline. At a minimum, the parties should agree
that this deadline is aspirational and not enforceable for a complaint of educator
sexual conduct, and agree that the District does not waive its ability to proceed

with a complaint of educator sexual conduct after the ten-day deadline, provided
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the District is diligently pursuing the complaint and provides a detailed description

of the complaint within a reasonable time period.

6.  ARTICLE 21.D, COMPLAINT PROCEDURE:

If the complaint is used in any manner to support actual or
recommended discipline, administrative transfer, nonrenewal or
dismissal, such record shall be placed in the personnel file and the
complainant’s name shall be disclosed if the unit member so requests.

Some parents who participated in the investigation expressed concerns that
the requirement that a complainant’s name be disclosed upon the educator’s
request leads to under-reporting of complaints and fear of retaliation by the
educator accused of misconduct. A few parent witnesses voiced criticism of the
District after they were cautioned about coming forward with a bullying complaint
against an educator because their identities would be revealed, “and did they
really want that.” They interpreted this caution as a warning, and believed there
could be retaliation once the parents’ — and by extension, their students’ -
identities were disclosed. Whether intended or not, this message was not
well-received and made these parents feel unsupported by the District even when
they were prepared to offer examples of behavior that could have (and in their
minds, should have) resulted in discipline of an educator. Some chose not to

proceed with their complaint as a result.
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Per the current contract, if the District intends to formally reprimand the
educator based on a confidential complaint, the complainant’s identity must be
revealed upon request. Given this limitation to confidential complaints, it would be
beneficial for the District to train on and strictly enforce the non-retaliation
provisions of its complaint policies, so that complaints are not under-reported due
to concerns of retaliation.

Some parents also criticized the District for not encouraging anonymous
complaints. Anonymous complaints can have the effect of obstructing a thorough
investigation and/or infringing on an educator’s due process rights. We note that
ORS 339.356(2) requires each school district to adopt a policy prohibiting
harassment and include in that policy a procedure that allows a student or
volunteer to report an act of harassment anonymously to the appropriate
administrator. However, the statute expressly cautions that this requirement does
not “permit remedial action solely on the basis of an anonymous report.” See ORS
339.356(2){fHD). In other words, more evidence is needed than merely the

anonymous report before corrective action may be taken by the District,
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7. MULTIPLE FILES FOR MISCONDUCT:

The union contract sets forth five separate files that could house documents

pertaining to misconduct by an educator:

1.

Investigation File: Article 19.G.8 states, “The written notice of [a
meeting that could result in disciplinary action or termination] shall
not be placed in the professional educator’s building file or personnel
file but may be kept in an investigation file.” Article 19.1.4 states, “The
District shall place paid administrative leave letters in the investigation
file, not in the professional educator’s personnel file.”

Letter of Expectation File: Article 19.H.2 states, “Letters of
Expectation may be placed in the building file. Letters of Expectation
shall be placed in a District ‘Letter of Expectation” file maintained by
the Human Resources Department.”

Building File: Articles 21 and 22 refer to the supervisor’s building file
and the constraints currently put upon maintaining documents in that
file for any length of time.

Personnel File: Article 22.A states, “There shall be one official District
personnel file, which shall be maintained by the Human Resources

Department.”

Grievance File: Article 26.C.8 states, “All documents, communications
and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shali be filed in
a separate grievance file which shall constitute a ‘personnel file,
within the meaning of the confidentiality provisions of ORS 342.850.
Access to those files shall be limited to those with a valid business
interest in the case.”

The multiple files, even if vigilantly maintained, make it difficult to track a

complaint or concern from start to finish. They also give rise to the possibility that
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some relevant documents will be overlooked. The District apparently did not
provide all documents in a timely manner pursuant to one or more public records
requests for documents regarding allegations of Mr. Whitehurst’s sexual conduct.
This was due in part to the manner in which documents regarding Mr. Whitehurst
were maintained (or not) by PPS.

We are concerned that a file scheme requiring portions of related
documents regarding a complaint of sexual conduct to go to five separate locations
will make it challenging for the District to “connect the dots” because no file will
have all the necessary information or put the educator’s current and subsequent
supervisors on notice of the educator’s history. Moreover, in the event of future
budget cuts that result in significant layoffs, transitions and turnover in the HR
Department, the District could once again face the systemic issue of poor
document management, which could lead again to an inadequate response to a
complaint of educator sexual conduct.

Lastly, but no less important, maintaining documents in five separate
locations will make it more difficult for the public to gain access to files they may

be entitled to see.
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We recommend that the District and PAT agree to move forward to change
the provisions in the PAT-PPS contract to better protect stludents. We understand
that the current three-year contract (2016-2019) has been ratified and cannot be
re-opened except in exigent economic circumstances. The District is essentially
locked in to the current provisions until it negotiates the next three-year contract.

We advise the District and PAT to negotiate and implement changes to the

contract at its earliest opportunity.

We note that the union contract analyzed above is not the only union

contract that may have provisions that impact the District’s ability to adequately

address complaints. The District has a total of five unions:

e PAT, Portland Association of Teachers: teachers, counselors, school
psychaologists, librarians and substitutes;

o PFSP, Portland Federation of School Professionals: secretaries,
educational assistants, paraeducators and clerks;

e SEIU, Service Employees International Union: custodians and nutrition
services workers;
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¢ DCU, District Council of Unions: maintenance and construction crafts
workers; and

e ATU, Amalgamated Transit Union: bus drivers.
We did not review any union contracts other than the current PAT agreement. To
the extent any other contracts have similar provisions that protect employees over
students, require the removal of documents from files, present unrealistic time
frames for investigating complaints, or make document management of
complaints difficult, we recommend the District make similar changes in its other

contracts.
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Are there other complaints about sexual misconduct by other employees or agents
of the District that have not been adequately addressed?

During our investigation, we did not learn of any complaints about sexual
conduct or abuse by any current PPS employees or agents of the District that had

not been or were not being adequately addressed.
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Do PPS employees receive adequate training in recognizing possible predatory -
behavior and how to respond appropriately?

It is a challenge to assess whether the training PPS employees receive is
“adequate,” as there is no clear way to determine the extent to which employees
have (or have not) applied what they have learned. Educators and other school
staff who worked with Mr. Whitehurst did not report him for inappropriate
conduct, although high school students found him to be inappropriately flirtatious
at their schools in an obvious way, and rumors abounded about him dating and
trying to hit on students, We do not know whether the failure to report was due to
a failure to recognize possible predatory behavior, a cultural failure of PPS
employees not viewing it as their responsibility to repaort another educator for

misconduct, or some other failure.

The current training could certainly be improved.

CURRENT PPS TRAINING:

As of 2009, PPS employees have received training that meets the legal
requirements of ORS 339.400, which requires annual training “on the prevention
and identification of abuse and sexual conduct and on the obligations of school

employees under [Oregon law] and under policies adopted by the school board to
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report abuse and sexual conduct.” PPS employees are required to take this annual
online training, and they do so.

While that training may be legally compliant, it is not robust. The online
mandatory training provided by the District could be greatly improved.® Currently,
PPS employees are required to watch a still-slide, reading-based presentation that
has no sound. Until a few years ago, there was a quiz at the end; this
comprehension component has been removed. The less-than-10-minute, silent
training on educator sexual conduct prevention comes after the child abuse
prevention training slides. While we cannot assess the level of engagement of a
PPS educator who has already watched 34 minutes of silent slides regarding their
mandatory child abuse reporting requirements, and who now has to sit through 10
more minutes of slides displaying text and irrelevant stock photos in a rudimentary
PowerPoint presentation, we imagine the level of enthusiasm for watching this
second segment of the module is low. In sum, this 44-minute experience is not
engaging, and it may not be effective.

The training may send a message that prevention and identification of

sexual conduct and abuse of students by PPS employees is not a priority; rather, it

3* Note that for purposes of the investigation, we watched the online training available to
parents and guardians: https://www.pps.net/Page/1957. We were advised by multiple District
employees that the employee training was identical.
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is merely a statutory requirement and an afterthought.

In addition to not being particularly engaging, the current PPS employee
sexual conduct training misses multiple opportunities to educate its employees
about this important subject. For example, thé»training opens with a slide intended
to illustrate real-life examples of sexual conduct. Unfortunately, the examples only
identify educators in other school districts in Oregon and the training does not
acknowledge that sexual conduct is an issue for this district, as well. All of the
exampies involve arrests for iflegal behavior and none involve examples of
common inappropriate behavior, such as boundary violétions. Boundary violations
are significant issues worth emphasizing.

The introduction acknowledges that sexual conduct and abuse can be
perpetrated by adults in all job categories within schools, and then calls out
teachers (the most common category of suspects) and other specific job
categories, but does not mention coaches —the second most common category.

The slides later set forth the four-part statutory definition of “sexual
conduct” in an ambiguous manner that does not make it clear that all four
elements must be met for the conduct to meet the statutory definition of “sexual

conduct,” or that violation of only the first two elements could result in formal
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discipline up to and including termination but would not trigger the obligations of
the educator sexual conduct statute.

The training also does not adequately emphasize the role of social media in
grooming and boundary violations, though this is a growing issue that needs to be

addressed.

A STUDY IN CONTRAST — SEATTLE PUBLIC SCHOOLS:

In stark contrast to the current training provided to PPS employees, Seattle
Public Schools provides an engaging online training that the District should
consider emulating. The training can be found here:

https://www.seattleschools.org/cms/one.aspx?pageld=9291816 (approximately

35-minute training for staff) or here: www.seattleschools.org/misconductvideo

(17-minute training for volunteers). The interactive training is the result of a grant
from the Department of Education. It contains videos and narration, including
interviews of various experts and administrators. To actively engage the viewer,
there are vignettes of realistic examples of borderline conduct with a self-paced
quiz after each scenario, compelling the viewer to consider how “gray” some
situations may be and how easy it is to overlook or misjudge grooming behavior or

boundary violations. It also sends the message that the district takes sexual
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conduct seriously and that the responsibility for protecting students from sexual
conduct is shared by the school board, the superintendent, all school employees,
volunteers, parents, state agencies, and law enforcement. The training is required
for all staff members as well as volunteers, and is available for parents and other

community members as well.

PROPOSED CONTENT FOR EFFECTIVE TRAINING:

A Training Guide for Administrators and Educators on Addressing Adult
Sexual Misconduct in the School Setting (“Training Guide”), guidance recently
published by the Readiness and Emergency Management for Schools (REMS)
Technical Assistance Center of the U.S. Department of Education, Washington,
D.C., 2017, includes extensive guidance on sexual conduct and abuse awareness
and prevention training. The entire training guide can be found here:

https://rems.ed.gov/docs/ASMTrainingGuide.pdf.

The Training Guide recommends that an all-staff training on sexual conduct
and abuse cover the following topics:

v" Include a working definition of sexual conduct and abuse.

v" Explain the school’s policies, underscoring the fact that some behaviors
(e.g., those meeting the legal definition of child sexual abuse) are
criminal acts. Therefore, certain behaviors may lead to termination of
employment and punishment under the law.
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|dentify the warning signs of the effects of sexual conduct and abuse on
children, providing examples, when possible, from reported cases.

Explain the role and legal responsibilities of mandatory reporters and the
school’s internal reporting procedures.

Point out the consequences for failing to report sexual conduct and
abuse, as well as protections for those who report in good faith when
incidents of suspected sexual conduct or abuse turn out to be
unsubstantiated.

Describe how schoo! policy prohibits the making of intentionally false
complaints and the repercussions for doing so. Emphasize that protecting
the reputation of innocent employees is a high priority for the school.

|dentify perpetrator patterns of behavior, providing examples from local
and national media accounts or case studies that are relevant to the
school setting.

Describe policies and procedures involving transportation, the physical
school environment, toileting, and electronic communications, including
social media.

Take time to address questionable, but not criminal behaviors (i.e., the
“gray areas”) in both in-person and electronic interactions with students.

Include information about which students are likely to be targets of
sexual conduct and abuse and what school personnel can do to protect
these at-risk students.

Identify a district Title IX coordinator(s) and describe their roles, pointing
out the location of their office(s) in the school or district and providing
contact information.

Discuss the steps school personnel are expected to take to reduce the
risk of sexual conduct and abuse in the physical environment.
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v" Consider distributing a handout during training that describes the
school’s policies and asking employees to sign it.

v" Conduct a post-training assessment mechanism, such as a survey, to
gauge the impact of the training and determine the need for adjustments
in content, approach, or format.

See A Training Guide for Administrators and Educators on Addressing Adult Sexual
Misconduct in the School Setting, page 30.

In addition to the requisite mandatory training for all PPS employees, the .
District should provide additional training to its administrators and HR staff, as well
as specialized training to its Title IX coordinator, about how to respond to and
investigate reports of sexual conduct. The Training Guide recommends that
additional administrator training cover the following topics:

v’ State laws and mandates specific to sexual conduct and abuse prevention
and response.

v' Title IX policies and procedures pertaining to sexual conduct and abuse.
v" Oversight of the Title iX coordinator.

v" Strategies for ensuring prevention and response compliance by other
school personnel.

v" Complaint processes and critical communication protocols within the
school and the District.

v" The threat-specific and hazard-specific annex(es) relating to sexual
conduct and abuse.
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v" Policies for placing alleged perpetrators on administrative leave, and
maintaining confidentiality during internal and external investigations.

v’ Guidelines for working with local law enforcement.
v Measures to promote school recovery after an incident.

v" Recordkeeping, data management, and accountability related to
complaints or reports of sexual conduct and abuse.

See A Training Guide for Administrators and Educators on Addressing Adult Sexual
Misconduct in the School Setting, pages 30-31.

In conclusion, thre District has legally compliant training but it could and
should improve ité online module to create comprehensive, high-quality training to
help its employees prevent, identify and report sexual conduct. Live face-to-face
training or table-top conversations at leadership meetings, where employees can
actively participate and ask questions, is also recommended, though this type of

training is not legally required.

As explained in more detail above, we recommend a wholesale revamping of
online training. The District should allot more time to training in an effective,
interactive, and meaningful manner. The current PAT union contract calls for four

hours of mandatory online training. (See Article 5.C.10.c.} The current sexual
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conduct training runs just less than 10 minutes, which means only 4% of the

mandatory online training is allocated to educator sexual conduct.

RECOMMENDATION: REQUIRE SEXUAL CONDUCT PREVENTION AND
IDENTIFICATION TRAINING FOR PPS VOLUNTEERS AND CONTRACTORS.

Other school districts require their contractors and volunteers to take the
same training as their employees. If the District is serious about identifying and
preventing sexual conduct, it should consider adding this requirement. This
recommendation would apply, for example, to the volunteer coaches who
routinely come in contact with PPS students. (Coaches are the second most

common perpetrators of sexual conduct with students.)

RECOMMENDATION: IMPROVE THE SEXUAL CONDUCT PREVENTION AND
IDENTIFICATION TRAINING PROVIDED TO PPS STUDENTS.

ORS 339.400(3) requires the District to make training that is designed to
prevent abuse and sexual conduct available to its students each school year.*®
While the District should not rely on the students to self-report, it should teach its
students to use their voices and to speak up when something is not right, and to

report their concerns without fear of retaliation or of being disbelieved.

** ORS 339.400(3) states, “An education provider shall make training that is designed to prevent
abuse and sexual conduct available each school year to children who attend a school operated
by the education provider.”
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Age-appropriate training can play a role in prevention. Training can teach
students about appropriate boundaries with PPS employees, when to be
concerned about something they see or hear involving themselves or their peers,
and how to report inappropriate or illegal behavior. Training for students should
also emphasize that the District takes student complaints seriously and intends to
respond to any complaints with a full and fair, documented investigation. Students
should also know of their right to notification by the District about any actions
taken by the District based on the student’s report of sexual conduct. We advise
the District implement additional training in home room or health class, or provide
some other age-appropriate, centralized curriculum that is designed to prevent
abuse and sexual conduct. The District should consider translating its materials for

students for whom English is a second language.

5.10.063-AD (“Prohibition Against Employee Child Abuse and Sexual Conduct

with Students”) states that the District will require annual training for district
employees and provides, “Procedures and resource materials are available and are

on the website.” Currently, there are inconsistencies in the materials on the
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website. It would be helpful to ensure thaft all references to the timing of the
required training are consistent.

The “Child Abuse and Sexual Conduct Reporting Procedures and Resource
Materials,” a pdf available on the PPS website,*® sets forth timing requirements for
annual training that conflict with other information on the PPS website. On page
15, the materials state:

Principals and department supervisors are responsible to ensure that
each employee under their supervision completes this annual training
in a timely manner.

e Central office employees by August 31, each year

e School-based employees by September 30, each year

e  New employees within 30 days of hire date.

However, other references to the training on the PPS website have different
timing requirements. For example, under the tab for Student Support, Health &
Wellness/Child Abuse Prevention Training, the website provides “District
guidelines are for this training to be completed by October 31 for the 2017/18

school year or within 30 days of hire date.” https://www.pps.net/Page/1957

(emphasis added). This date is later than what is laid out in the other materials. We

*® These resource materials should be updated to revise the general counsel contact. Currently,
the materials list Jollee Patterson as one of the two contacts for questions about child abuse and
sexual conduct legal issues, even though Ms. Patterson left the District in July 2016. See pdf at
page 3 (“Introduction and Who to Contact”).
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further recommend that PPS relabel this tab “Child Abuse Prevention and Sexual
Conduct Training” so it is clear where to find this information.

Under the tab for HR/Substituting/Substitute Secretaries/Child Abuse
Prevention and Sexual Conduct Training, the website states:

e FEvery year all administrators are directed by the Superintendent to
have child abuse reporting procedures presentations and sexual
conduct, including taking the online video training, for all Portland
Public School employees.

e All school district employees are required to take the training every

year.
e Any new public school employee hired shall, within six months of

their employment, complete the training.

https://www.pps.net/Page/1688 (emphasis added). This timeframe differs from

the 30-day deadline for new employees to complete the training and should be
consistent with other references on the website. We further recommend that PPS
re-locate this information so it is not buried in a remote section pertaining only to

substitute secretaries.
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VI. -~ FORMER PPS EMPLOYEE NORMAN SCOTT

In February 2018, the Board requested that our investigation be informed by
the District’s response to allegations raised about inappropriate conduct by former
PPS educator Norman “Norm” Scott, including the agreements entered into
between the District and Mr. Scott and employment references provided by the
District to other education providers. In the course of our investigation, we
reviewed Mr. Scott’s personnel records, grievance records, and HR files. We also
conducted severat interviews specific to Mr. Scott. However, we did not
investigate Mr. Scott as a comprehensive separate subject of our investigation
because we understood the Board did not expect a full review of his‘employment
(as with Mr. Whitehurst) and desired that we focus on the post-employment
agreements. The information we gathered is not, and should not be construed as,
comprehensive or exhaustive,

We found similarities between the two educators and how their sexual
misconduct was addressed (or not) by the District. Both educators ogled female
students or made inappropriate verbal comments, for which they received verbal
counseling but rarely had written documentation of any inappropriate conduct of a

sexual nature placed in their files. Like Mr. Whitehurst, Mr. Scott had a reputation
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among female students for being “creepy” and gave certain attractive female
students unwanted attention. Some female students complained that they were
uncomfortable around him and did not like the attention. Students felt unheard or
dishelieved when they brought subjective complaints {for example, about being
leered at by their PE teacher) to the attention of administrators, and did not get an
adequate response to their complaints.

Both educators had the benefit of a fresh start when they moved to a
different school and started a new building file from scratch, leaving behind any
previous supervisor's documented concerns. Administrators rarely had enough
evidence to issue formal discipline due to the union contract’s “just cause”
requirements, and the few investigations that were conducted were not robust.
The District had no centralized method to track all the complaints and concerns, so
it did not detect or respond to the pattern of misconduct.

Both educators engaged in boundary violations with students that were
inappropriate but not clearly prohibited by any PPS policy (Mr. Whitehurst tried to
engage Faubion students on Facebook, while Mr. Scott texted and left voicemails
on his TAs’ personal cell phones and gave them inappropriately personal gifts).

And both educators ended their long careers by resigning with favorable

terms in their agreements such that no one would know there was concern about
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their inappropriate behavior around female students.

Mr. Scott taught for 36 years in the Portland Public Schools as a health and
PE teacher. He started in 1976 at Sellwood Middle School as a PE teacher, taught
PE briefly at Beaumont Middle School for a year in the 1990’s, and then returned
to Sellwood from 1995-2006 {except in 2004-05, when he taught half-time at
Franklin High School). tn 2006, Mr. Scott moved to Grant High School, where he
taught until his employment ended in 2012.

From time to time throughout his long career at the District, Mr. Scott had
performance and conduct issues, Many of these issues did not arise from
inappropriate conduct of a sexual nature with students, but they involved a
|

While Mr. Scott was a teacher at Sellwood, parents and students
complained that his conduct made female students uncomfortable. Female
students complained he was “creepy” and would brush against them and touch
them inappropriately, purportedly to assist them, when they were stretching or
exercising in PE class. He was also known to occasionally walk into the girls’ locker
room when he knew the students were changing. A student complained that Mr.
Scott was ogling her as he made multiple trips to his car one day (she was seated

outside the school). Students at Sellwood felt their concerns went unheeded.
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Although the principal {Frank Scotto, who later joined the HR Department) verbally
counseled Mr. Scott about his behavior, the District was not consistently
responsive to the students’ concerns. Sometimes it was quite the reverse. One
student was forced to apologize to Mr. Scott after she was caught writing a note
complaining about how creepy he was and in it called him “Molester Scott.”

As a side gig, Mr. Scott led trips to the East Coast. These trips were not
sponsored by PPS but they were heavily advertised to Sellwood students, and
many 8™ graders tended to go on them as a graduation trip. Two yearsin arow, in
the summers of 1999 and 2000, there were complaints about Mr. Scott’s poor
judgment and inappropriate behavior on these trips. The District attempted to rein
in Mr. Scott’s ability to coordinate his trips on school premises and use school

resources to organize them,
I 1 cafter, Mr. Scott continued to recruit PPS

students for his trips, though he apparently abided by the new restrictions. One
student recalled that after he was not allowed to recruit students at school, he

came to her home uninvited to provide information about an upcoming trip.

] INVESTIGATION REPORT ~ Page 171



In 2001, principal Scotto received a complaint from another Sellwood

educator that something had taken place in Mr. Scott’s office that could potentially

fse to the definition of child abuse. [ G

Mr. Scott transferred to Grant High School in 2006, where he taught Health.
There is nothing in his files to indicate the transfer was a deliberate effort to move
an offending educator to avoid issuing discipline. At Grant, many parents and
students continued to complain about his conduct and performance. Some
students had issues with his teaching style and asked to be switched out of his
| classes. Some female students complained he was “creepy” and they were

uncomfortable being in his class. He offended some students when he called them
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”beautiful” or told them they would “make good wives,” Mr. Scott was verbally
counseled from time to time regarding his inappropriate conduct in the classroom.
"In December 2011, Mr. Scott’s student TAs (all females) complained to the
vice principal that Mr. Scott had asked for their personal cell phone numbers‘and
they were receiving unwanted texts and voicemails from him. As a Christmas gift,
he had given at least two of the TAs body lotion. They were offended and found

this gift from a teacher disturbingly personal.’’

(see exrioiT 21,

3 When asked about these gifts, Mr. Scott explained they were not intended to be sexual in
nature.

INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 173



The “Retirement Agreement,” as it was titled, was negotiated by the union’s
outside counsel and the District’s Legal Department. The terms of the agreement
included the District providing only basic employment information if contacted
about his employment. Other than dates of employment, position(s) held; and the
fact that Mr. Scott had retired, the District agreed not to provide other
information. The District also agreed to put “any and all discipline issued to Mr.
Scott over the course of his [36-year] District employment in a sealed file in Mr.
Scott’s personnel file, to be opened only by the superintendent or his/her
representative, Mr. Scott or his/her representative, or a representative of the
Portland Association of Teachers, unless required by law.” {See EXHIBIT 22.)

In 2013, Mr. Scott applied to work for the Archdiocese of Portland as a
substitute teacher in the Catholic schools. The Archdiocese sent an inquiry to the

District asking whether Mr. Scott had a substantiated report of child abuse or

sexual conduct while employed at PPS. ||| R

] INVESTIGATION REPORT — Page 174




B /s Viurphy checked “yes” on the form, and attached

the warning letter itself to the form so the Archdiocese could see the reprimand
for sexual conduct and decide for itself if it wanted to hire Mr. Scott. {See EXHIBIT
23.) |

In 2012, when the District—, the
District did not yet have internal formal protocols in place to fulfill the procedural
requirements of the sexual conduct statute, such as formal notice to the educator
of the substantiated report and his/her right to appeal. Mr. Scott therefore had not
been provided the notice that is due an educator when there is a substantiated
- report of sexual conduct reportable to education providers who may later inquire
about the educator’'s employment.

When Mr, Scptt learned from the Archdiocese in late 2013 that the District
had disclosed that Mr. Scott was the subject of a substantiated report of child
abuse or sexual conduct, he asked the District to promptly remedy what he
considered to be an error. He then hired a lawyer who threatened to sue the

District for breach of the Retirement Agreement. Through his counsel, Mr, Scott

38 Mr. Fish had already responded affirmatively and attached the letter of warning to a prior
inquiry by an education service district. Ms. Murphy may have simply referred to this prior form
and checked the same box on the inquiry from the Archdiocese.
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demanded $5,500, written acknowledgment of the breach, and a letter retracting
the “erroneous information” communicated to the Archdidcese.

HR legal counsel Stephanie Harper received the correspondence from
Mr. Scott’s attorney and sought advice from Miller Nash {specifically, Michael
Porter). Ms. Harper had joined the District earlier that year and had no prior

involvement in the negotiation of the Retirement Agreement,

Mr. Porter advised Ms. Harper that ||| G
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The District faced potential additional liability for two reasons: (1) the
District had not followed the statutory protocols proscribed in ORS 339.388(9) but
had indicated in response to an inquiry that Mr. Scott had been the subject of a
substantiated report of sexual conduct, and (2) the District had entered into a
resignation agreement that restricted its ability to disclose anything more than
basic employment information in response to inquiries about Mr. Scott.

Had the District refused to retract the disclosure it could have faced a
challenging legal dispute that would result, win or lose, in significant legal fees. The

District was defending multiple lawsuits in 2013 and was under scrutiny for its high

egal fees. To Mr. Porter I
Ms. Harper, also acutely aware of the resource-constrained environment in which
she worked and engaged in all-consuming bargaining mediation with PAT in an
effort to stave off a teachers’ strike, apparently agreed with him.*

The District entered into an Agreement and Release in which it paid Mr,

Scott $3,500 and issued a letter of retraction to the Archdiocese; in exchange, Mr.

> I
e D———
I o cver, we note that Ms, Murphy later signed a

Medford School District Sexual Misconduct Disclosure Release in March 2014 indicating that
Mr. Scott was not the subject of a substantiated report of child abuse or sexual conduct.
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Scott released the District from all claims.*® (See EXHIBIT 24.) The retraction letter

read as follows:

Due to an administrative error, the form indicates that Norm Scott was
the subject of a substantiated report of child abuse or sexual conduct.
That information is incorrect, and instead the correct entries should
indicate that Mr. Scott has not been the subject of a substantiated
report of child abuse or sexual conduct and that he is not the subject
of an ongoing investigation related to a report of suspected child
abuse or sexual conduct. Mr. Scott retired from Portland Public
Schools, effective June 30, 2012, '

(See EXHIBIT 25.} This language was proposed by Miller Nash and sent to
Stephanie Harper. The agreement was approved and the letter signed by chief HR
officer Sean Murray,

From the perspective that the right thing to do is to keep all students safe
from potential harm, it was not appropriate for the District to issue a retraction if
in fact it had determined Mr. Scott engaged in conduct of a sexual nature. (It is not
clear whé;cher this conclusion was reached in the January 2012 fetter of warning, or

whether the District was merely concerned about boundary violations by Mr. Scott

* Indeed, Mr. Scott did later sue the District, just not over the affirmative responses to the ESD
inquiries. He contended that the District’s report to the TSPC, made soon after he signed the
Retirement Agreement but before he signed the Agreement and Release, violated the terms of
his Retirement Agreement. PPS denied it violated the terms of the Retirement Agreement
because the District did not — and never intended to — waive its obligation to report conduct to
the TSPC and argued Mr. Scott had released all claims against the District in the subsequent
Agreement and Release. Miller Nash represented PPS and won this case on summary judgment.
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that fell below the threshold for a “substantiated report of sexual conduct.”) The
District would have been hard pressed to re-open the investigation into the
Janu'ary 2012 allegations that resulted in his letter of warning or belatedly issue the
notice required by the sexual conduct statute. Furthermore, the decision to defend
a lawsuit for breach of contract and defamation in lieu of settling for nuisance
value and a retraction would probably have been questioned, if not roundly
criticized, by the Board at the time. The District appears to have made its decision
to agree to issue a retraction in the face of circumstances that on balance weighed
in favor of an expedient and cost-effective resolution.

Mr. Scott’s post-employment complaints appear to be the result of two
separate issues: first, the District agreed —as it agreed in Mr. Whitehurst’_s
resignation agreement - to restrict what it would disclose about an educator’s
employment, including his past issues of inappropriate sexual behavior. The
District should not have agreed to suppress this information. Second, the District |
did not have the protocols in place that are prescribed in ORS 339.370-.400 and
did not provide Mr. Scott with the appropriate notice and appeal rights when it

delivered his letter of warning,
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We understand that both of these issues have been addressed by the
District such that these issues should not occur in the future if the District’s
protocols are followed.

In a lamentable turn of events, PPS’s affirmative disclosure of sexual conduct
apparently did not deter another school district from hiring Mr. Scott as a
substitute teacher, Mr. Scott was found guilty in October 2017 of sexually abusing
six girls while working in 2015 as a substitute PE teacher at Gardiner Middle School
in Oregon City. It appears the Oregon City school district was on notice of the same
sexual conduct that had caused a controversy at PPS after Mr. Scott’s resignation.
Although the disclosure to the Archdiocese was retracted, the other disclosures
that had already been made were not.

The Clackamas Education Service District {CESD) acts as a clearinghouse for
HB 2062 disclosure inguiries on behalf of the Clackamas County public school
districts. In 2012, CESD sent a disclosure release to the District and was given an
affirmative response that Mr. Scott was the subject of a substantiated report of
child abuse or sexual conduct (the letter of warning was sent along with the
disclosure). CESD loaded this information into its database and provided this

information to any Clackamas County school district that inquired about Mr. Scott.
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As of February 2015, the CESD also uploaded to Mr. Scott’s file a letter from
the TSPC dismissing an investigation into Mr. Scott’s conduct. in May 2012, PPS
had reported to the TSPC that Mr. Scott “may have violated adult/student
boundaries.” The TSPC did not investigate the concern until October 2014. [t
dismissed the matter without taking any action four months later after it did not
find evidence sufficient to charge Mr. Scott with professional misconduct.

Mr. Scott walked the TSPC’s dismissal ietter into the CESD in February 2015 and
requested that it be added to his file.

Mr. Scott worked as a substitute at Gardiner Middle School on October 5,
2015. Based on complaints of inappropriate touching by female students in his PE
classes, he was removed from the school before the end of the day and later
charged for his criminal conduct. Mr. Scott was convicted of multiple counts of
sexual abuse in the third degree and harassment in November 2017.** He has.

appealed his conviction.

VIl  ADDITIONALRECOMMENDATIONS

U Mr. Scott was sentenced to six months’ incarceration in the county jail, plus a five year period
of supervised probation that requires him to register as a sexual offender; have no contact with
minors or the victims’ families; be financially responsible for all counseling costs incurred by the
victims; not teach or be present on any school property; not be involved in any organizations
that would place him in direct contact with children; and surrender his teaching license.
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An educator suspected of sexual conduct is a challenge to any school
district. If a district fires the educator, it may face a very costly legal battle with the
educator’s union and, if the termination is not upheld, may have to return the
educator to the school. Putting-an educator on paid leave while the TSPC
investigates the complaint is also costly because the TSPC can take months or even
years to complete ité investigation due to internal and external factors; meanwhile,
the school district pays the educator’s salary plus the salary of a substitute teacher.
Resignation agreements inked before an investigation is completed provide an
expedient, final, and usually much less expensive way for a district to get an
offending educator out of its schools.

But at what cost? In exchange for protecting a school! district from draining
its resources to defend arbitrations and lawsuits, resignation agreements with
problem educators can put at serious risk the safety of students in other districts.

ORS 338.392, part of the statutory scheme passed in 2009 to prevent and
report substantiated sexual conduct, was intended to curb this practice. It states,

in part (emphasis added):
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(1) An education provider may not enter into a collective bargaining.
agreement, an employment contract, an agreement for resignation or
termination, a severance agreement or any other contract or agreement that:

(a) Has the effect of suppressing information relating to an
ongoing investigation related to a report of suspected abuse or
sexual conduct or relating to a substantiated report of abuse or
sexual conduct by a current or former employee;

(b) Affects the duties of the education provider to report
suspected abuse or sexual conduct or to discipline a current or
former employee for a substantiated report of abuse or sexual
conduct; |

(c) Impairs the ability of the education provider to discipline an
employee for a substantiated report of abuse or sexual
conduct; or

(d) Requires the education provider to expunge substantiated
information about abuse or sexual ‘conduct from any documents
maintained by an education provider.

Mr. Whitehurst was not the subject of an ongoing investigation related to a
report of suspected abuse or sexual conduct at the time of his resignation. Nor was
there ever a substantiated report made about Mr. Whitehurst alleging sexual
conduct against students, in part because reports of suspected sexual conduct to
the District were inadequately investigated and hence, never substantiated. We do
not find that the District violated ORS 339.392 when it negotiated a resignation

agreement with Mr, Whitehurst.
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There have been othrer educators, however, who left the District with
resignation agreements thalt restricted the District’s ability to share information
refating to that employee’s conduct with other education providers that requested
such information.

Historically, PPS has taken the legal position that ORS 339,392 prohibits the
District from covering up substantiated sexual conduct through an agreemeht, but
does allow the District to negotiate a resignation agreement before the conduct is
substantiated {for example, before a detailed investigation can be completed that
includes an interview of the educator accused of sexual conduct), so long as the
agreement does not suppress information.

While the District’s past practice may meet the letter of the law, it appears
to violate the law’s spirit —that is, to prevent sexual conduct from occurring in
other districts by being forthcoming about past misconduct. In our review of some
resignation agreements entered intc between 2011-2016 with PPS educators
accused of inappropriate sexual behavior and/or boundary violations, we found
restrictive terms in resignation agreements negotiated between the HR and/or
Legal Departments and counsel for the union that protected the educator and put

students in other districts at risk. They include:
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o Agreeing to limit HR inquiry responses to only basic employment
information such as the employee’s position, dates of employment,
the fact he/she resigned, and his/her salary at the time of resignation.

. Agreeing to remove from the personnel file and maintainin a
separate location all investigatory information relating to allegations
of inappropriate behavior of a sexual nature.

. Agreeing to place all discipline issued to the educator over the course
of his/her employment in a sealed file within the educator’s personnel
file, to be opened only by specified individuals or as required by law.

. Agreeing to respond, if asked whether the educator’s employment
included any sexual misconduct, that there was an investigation into
allegations of sexual misconduct that the educator denied, no findings
were made, and the educator resigned before the conclusion of the

investigation.

The District made the expedient choice to agree to these terms in an effort
to move the educator out of the District in a resource-efficient, timely manner.*
Other districts may be agreeing to similar terms in their resignation agreements.
However, expediehcy disserves the longer term goal of protection of all children.

The District has been unwilling to take on the union in difficult dismissal
cases but we encourage it to do just that — even if the District loses from time to
time, and even if it is costly. There is a mission-critical reason to go through the

dismissal process and terminate the employment of educators who violate

* The lack of uniform direction and support from past Boards regarding recommended educator
terminations may also have been a factor in the decision to enter into a resignation agreement.
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impaortant policies and neglect their duty to their students; it reinforces the
message educators are first and foremast employees of the District who have a
responsibility to PPS students to keep them safe.

If the District deems it too costly or too risky to fight a dismissal case and
resignation is a more desirable a.lternative, then any resignation agreement that
the District enters into should allow the District the discretion to disclose
information freely. Entering into a resignhation agreement that restricts the
District’s ability to disclose reports of suspected sexual conduct puts PPS’s risks
ahead of the potential for future harm to other students.

We recommend the District handle the departure of these occasional
problematic educators differently. The District should be accurate, honest and
transparent in response to inquiries about employees who have left the District.
PPS should not enter into any more resignation agreements that prevent the
disclosure of sexual_conduct that potentially could have been substantiated if only
a complete and thorough investigation had taken place before the employee
resigned. We are concerned about the scenario where an employee resigns in the
middle of an ongoing investigation into potential sexual conduct that has yet to be
substantiated (or not) because the investigation has not been completed. Itis not

appropriate to end the investigation prematurely and agree in a resignation
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agreement not to disclose any details regarding the allegations, unless the District
has concluded that sexual conduct did not in fact occur.

We also have concerns about a scenario in which an employee resigns and
then at a later date, evidence surfaces of the employee’s sexual conduct with
students during the time period the employee was employed by PPS. ®* If there is a
resignation agreement restricﬁng the District from disclosing any details about the
employee’s employment, then disclosure.of the sexual conduct could lead to
litigation (specifically, a breach of contract claim by the employee). If the District
enters into a resignation agreement with a seemingly ethical PPS employee, it
should include a reservation by the District to disclose any known sexual conduct
and not provide a neutral reference should any credible complaints come to light,

Open transparency and full disclosure is the only way all school districts will
be able to root out employees who engage in sexual conduct or abuse and stop
“passing the trash” by allowing an employee accused of sexual conduct to leave a
school through a resignation agreement or other means and quietly seek
employment at another school district without the new school district being
alerted to the allegation. We understand that the District with support from a new

superintendent and new Board has recently changed its approach and is currently

“ 1t is entirely possible — as was the case with Mr. Whitehurst's employment — that additional
details regarding an educator’s conduct can surface after the educator leaves the District.
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refusing to enter into any agreements that prevent full disclosure of suspected or

substantiated sexual conduct, and we endorse this approach.

RECOMMENDATION: IMPLEMENT AN ADULT/STUDENT BOUNDARIES POLICY.

We recommend the District adopt a policy to provide its employees with
information to increase an awareness of their role in protecting students from
inappropriate conduct by adults and to ensure that contact and communication
with students occur in a professional manner.

The District currently has some of the precepts of an adult/student
boundaries policy in various other current and draft policies and administrative
directives. For example, the District already has a sexual harassment policy
(5.10.62-P) that prohibits staff-to-student harassment. It also has an administrative
directive (5.10.063-AD) that prohibits sexual conduct with students, as that term is
defined under the Oregon statutory scheme. Furthermore, the District is in the
process of rolling out a social media administrative directive that is intended to
address proper electronic communications between employees and students. And
in the PPS School Staff Handbook for 2017-18, there is an ethics policy that
reminds licensed educators of their obligation to meet the TSPC’s professional,

moral and ethical standards in their interactions with students. The District quotes
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the TSPC’s “Ethical Fducator” standards {OAR 584-020-0035), including in relevant

part:

1. The ethical educator, in fulfilling obligations to the student, will:

a. Keep the confidence entrusted in the profession as it relates to
confidential information concerning a student and the student’s

family;

b. Refrain from exploiting professional relationships with any
student for personal gain, or in support of persons or issues; and

c. Maintain an ‘appropriate  professional  student-teacher
relationship by:

i Not demonstrating or expressing professionally
inappropriate interest in a student’s personal life;

i, Not accepting or giving or exchanging romantic or
overly personal gifts or notes with a student;

iii. Reporting to the educator’s supervisor if the educator
has reason to believe a student is or may be becoming
romantically attached to the educator; and

iv. Honoring appropriate adult boundaries with students
in conduct and conversations at all times.

" We recommend that the Board create a policy and, if necessary, the District
staff develop a complementary administrative directive that directly addresses
interactions between all PPS employees and students. The policy should address a

range of behaviors that include not only unlawful or improper interactions with
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students, but also boundary-blurring and grooming behaviors that undermine the
professibnal adult/student relationship and lead to actual or apparent impropriety.

The policy should define and give examples of boundary violations and
appearances of impropriety that the District expects its employees to avoid. It
should- also cover in detail the District’s expectations for staff/student electronic
communications. Finally, like the administrative directive prohibiting employee
sexual conduct with students, the policy should include an expectation that any
employee who observes or haé knowledge of another employee’s violation of this
policy will immediately report the information to the principal, who shall report the
information to the Title IX coordinator (or other clearly-designated HR intake point
person who routes the information to the Title IX coordinator). And finally, if the
employee suspects child abuse, the employee must also follow the District’s child
abuse reporting policy and immediately make a mandatory report to law

enforcement.

The problem of sexual conduct with students is not unique to PPS. ltis a

problem state-wide and nation-wide. As Oregon’s largest school district, PPS

should lobby the legislature to amend the definition of “sexual conduct” in
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ORS 339.370-.400, the statutory scheme intended to assure the prevention,
identification and reporting of sexual conduct. The definition currently reqﬁires
conduct by a school employee that is sexual in nature and directed toward any
prekindergarten through grade 12 student not only to unreasonably interfere with
a student’s educational performance but also to create an intimidating, hostile or
offensive educational environment before it is deemed to be “substantiated séxual
conduct” that must be reported to other education providers inquiring about the
employee’s past record. This bar is too high, as it does not focus on preventing
sexual conduct by the employee. Instead, it only catches sexual conduct has
already occurred and was not prevented by the employee’s former school district.

The current definition also does not address the situation where the student
is groomed and flattered by the attention, not appreciating {yet) that the sexual |
attention the student is receiving is causing damage to their mental health, or the
situation where the student is academically resilient and does not objectively
manifest poor grade's, spotty attendance, or some other indicator of an

unreasonable interference in educational performance.** The employee’s conduct

“ Query also why the legislature requires an “unreasonable” interference in a student’s
educational performance and why any interference in a student’s educational performance due
to an employee’s inappropriate sexual conduct shouldn’t be enough to satisfy the definition.
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is these scenarios is no less unethical, and should be disclosed to future
educational providers conducting a background check,

PPS should lobby to align the statutory definition of sexual conduct with the
TSPC’s definition of sexual conduct. Given that the TSPC deems any sexual conduct
{using its own regulatory definition) with a student by an educator to be evidence
of gross neglect of duty and grounds for TSPC disciplinary action, including
suspension or revocation of the educator’s license (see OAR 584-020-0040(4)(f)),
there is no reason the state statute that applies to all employees of educational
providers should have a separate definition with a higher bar. Meeting the TSPC’s
“lesser” definition of sexual conduct is enough to end an educator’s career, and
the same standard should apply for disclosures of substantiated sexual conduct to
subsequent education providers.

“Sexual conduct” as defined by the TSPC is any conduct with a student which
includes but is not limited to:

(a) The intentional touching of the breast or sexual or other
intimate parts of a student;

(b)  Causing, encouraging, or permitting a student to touch the
breasts or sexual or other intimate parts of a student;

(c})  Sexual advances or requests for sexual favors directed towards
a student;
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{d)  Verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when directed
toward a student or when such conduct has the effect of
unreasonably interfering with a- student’'s educational
performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive
educational environment; or

{(e)  Verbal or physical conduct which has the effect of unreasonably
interfering with a student’s educational performance or creates
an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment.

See OAR 584-020-0005(5).

In addition to changing the Oregon statute’s definition of “sexual conduct”
for purposes of the reporting statute, PPS should lobby to shorten the TSPC's
timelines for investigating educators. It should not take years for the Commission
to investigate sexual conduct complaints brought to their attention. During the
time period that an educator is being investigated, there is no public
acknowledgment by the TSPC that the educator is under investigation. Nothing
prevents that educator from finding another teaching job while under investigation
(unless the educator candidly discloses this fact to potential employers). We
recommend that the District advocate for shorter timelines in order to keep

students safe from unethical educators.
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We recommend the District add a line to the definitions section of its

administrative directive, 5.10.063--AD (“Prohibition Against Employee Child Abuse
and Sexual Conduct With Students”). That section currently reads:

I, Definitions

Sexual conduct and child abuse by district/school employees
will not be tolerated. All district employees are subject to the
guidelines of this administrative directive.

(1}  “Sexual conduct” is any verbal, physical, or other conduct
by a school employee that is sexual in nature; directed
toward any prekindergarten through grade 12 student;
unreasonably interferes with a student’s educational
performance; and creates an intimidating, hostile or
offensive educational environment.

(2)  “Child abuse or neglect” is any form of abuse, including
abuse through neglect and abuse or neglect by a third
party, of a person under age 18.

The District should consider clarifying that the first two elements of the definition
of “sexual conduct” will be considered sufficient cause for taking disciplinary
action. As written, it sounds like all four elements must be met before sexual
conduct will not be tolerated. We realize this AD wa's probably written in response

to the statute (which contains the four-part definition). However, the District
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should be taking steps to address an employee’s misconduct before it causes an
unreasonable interference with a student’s educational performance or creates

and intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment.

The District does not currently have a policy restricting its employees from .

giving recommendations and serving as a reference for other employees, Given the
confidential nature of persohne! investigations, most PPS employees are unaware
of the reasons another employee has left the District. In the case of Mr.
Whitehurst’'s departure, for example, Mr. Wilhelmi was unaware of any reason not
to provide a positive reference when Mr. Whitehurst requested one.

The District should have a process by which any employee wanting to give a
reference to a former employee is required to check with the HR Department to
confirm that a reference can be given freely. This process would only preclude
individuals from providing such references if the HR Department informs them that

restrictions exist.
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We recommend that PPS meet with the PPB and the District Attorney’s

Office and designate a person within each organization who will be responsible to
record, review and monitor every case against a PPS employee that is presented to
local law enforcement. Steps should also be taken within each organization to
ensure that these designated individuals are made aware of each case of sexual
conduct involving PPS employees. The records of all such monitoring should be
reported to a designated official at a high level in each organization on a regular

basis.
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VIl SUMMARY OF ALL RECOMMENDATIONS - . .

> Adopt the following procedures to investigate sexual conduct complaints
" (see pages 130-142);

1. Train and require building administrators and HR Department staff
who receive complaints to document every complaint or concern of
sexual conduct and report them all to the Title IX coordinator or a
similar designee.

2. Have a specialized trained investigator with expertise in investigating
employee/student sexual conduct complaints investigate each
complaint thoroughly and fairly.

3. Have a core group of multi-disciplinary administrators (the employee’s
supervisor, HR legal counsel, Title IX coordinator, and investigator if
different from the Title IX coordinator) make credibility decisions and
agree regarding what level of discipline to impose, if any.

4. implement a centralized tracking mechanism to document all
complaints, including their outcome.

» Work with PAT to change certain contract provisions in the District’s union
contract to adequately address sexual conduct complaints and ensure the
protection of students. Specific provisions of the PAT contract include Article
22 (Personnel Files), Article 19 (Professional Educator Rights and Just Cause},
and Article 21 (Complaint Procedure). (See pages 143-153.)

» Review and change the District’s other union contracts, as appropriate, to
adequately address sexual conduct complaints and to ensure the protection

of students. (See pagel53-154.)

> Improve the District’s sexual conduct training in the following ways (see
pages 160-167):
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1. Improve the sexual conduct prevention and identification training
provided to PPS employees.

2. Require sexual conduct prevention and identification training for PPS
volunteers and contractors.

3. Improve the sexual conduct prevention and identification training
provided to PPS students.

4. Correct and update the materials regarding sexual conduct on the PPS
website.

Exercise transparency with employee separations and do not enter into
resignation agreements that restrict the disclosure of possible sexual
conduct (see pages 182-188).

Implement an adult/student boundaries policy (see pages 188-190).

Lobhy for changes outside the District to make Oregon safer for students
(see pages 190-193).

Revise the administrative directive entitled “Prohibition Against Employee
Child Abuse and Sexual Conduct With Students” to clarify that the District
has cause to issue corrective action even if all four statutory elements of
sexual conduct are not met (see pages 194-195).

Require PPS employees to check with the HR Department before providing a
reference for a former PPS employee {see page 195).

Designate a liaison between the PPB and the District to monitor cases
involving allegations of sexual conduct by a PPS employee (see page 196).
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IX.  ISSUES BEYOND THE SCOPE OF THE INVESTIGATION

Certain issues came to the attention of the investigation team but were not
pursued because they were beyond the original scope of the investigation or could
not be completed within the timeline and budget approved by the Board. The

Board may want to consider pursuing these topics, as they deem appropriate.

Consequences for Mr. Whitehurst. One question often asked by witnesses in
our investigation was whether there could be legal consequences for Mr,
Whitehurst for his past sexual conduct with students. The scope of our
investigation was limited to what employee or systemic failures resulted in Mr.
Whitehurst never being disciplined. We did not explore possible recourse against
Mr. Whitehurst. Pursuant to his resignation agreement, Mr. Whitehurst received
early retirement benefits. He is also collecting pension benefits of $2,984/month
from the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (see

https://gov.oregonlive.com/pers). Mr. Whitehurst’s PERS benefit is beyond the

District’s control. However, the District may want to refer our investigation report
to its general counsel to evaluate whether there is any other recourse for the
District. Our report could also be given to the District Attorney’s Office to evaluate

whether there is any criminal conduct that can still be prosecuted.
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Caprice’s Retaliation Claim. During the investigation, Caprice {the student

who notified the District in 2008 and 2012 about allegations of Mr. Whitehurst's

| sexual conduct with Franklin students in 1984) made a formal complaint that she
had been retaliated against on two occasions: (1) after she brought her allegations
to the District’s attention in 2012, she believed she was blackballed from working
at Faubion as a substitute teacher; and (2) after she indicated to outside counsel
defending the Thompson v. PPS lawsuit that she was sympathetic to the plaintiff
and had spoken to the plaintiff’s counsel, she believed she was threatened by the
District’s outside counsel. Because this retaliation complaint involved a current
employee, it was deemed to be outside the scope of our investigation and referred
to the District, where the complaint was investigated internally and responded to
by a letter dated February 9, 2018. To the extent the evidence in our investigation
overlapped with that investigation, we have no reason to disagree with the

District’s findings.

Past Employment Issues Involving Former Employee Norm Scott. The Board
expanded the original scope of our investigation to include certain aspects of Norm
Scott’s employment. We investigated issues relating to Mr. Scott’s resignation

agreement and post-employment inquiries about sexual conduct, as these issues
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were similar to the analysis we were already conducting for Mr. Whitehurst. We
did not exhaustively investigate Mr. Scott’s employment history, as the
investigation scope, timeline, and budget had been se;c by the Boérd. From the
evidence we did gather, however, there seemed to be a pattern in Mr. Scott’s
employment similar to Mr. Whitehurst’s history, where allegations were not
vigorously investigated and where full information about the employee’s overall
conduct was not known by all administrators who had to deal with him.

One additional issue that the Board should also address is its policy for field
trips and out-of-town travel. Mr. Scott led trips to the east coast that led to parent
and student complaints about his conduct during those trips. The most serious
incident was arguably sexual in nature and was the subject of testimony at his
sentencing hearing in Clackamas County last year-. Althou-gh the trips were actually
not sponsored by PPS, they involved PPS students and teachers ahd the perception
by students and their families was that these trips were promoted by or related to
PPS even though they were independent. When Mr. Scott led other local field trips
that were District-sponsored, he appeared to have exercised poor judgment. The
Board may be well served to tighten up its policies relating to all trips, both

District-sponsored and independent but led by District employees.
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The Role of Student Teaching Assistants. In both Mr. Whitehurst’'s career and
Mr. Scott’s career, student TAs made complaints about the educators. Both
teachers’ selections of their TAs appeared to be highly subjective and involve
attractive female students who would later report that the teacher gave them
unwanted and inappropriate attention. The District may want to re-evaluate (1} its
method of TA selection, which appears to be heavily influenced by the individual
educator; and (2) whether there is a way to supervise TAs to keep them safe from

opportunistic educators.

Aduit Sexual Harassment. Our investigation di'd not analyze the District’s
response to any adult harassment by Mr. Whitehurst, including the EAs who
complained in December 2012 that Mr. Whitehurst called them “Baby” and “Girl.”
During our investigation, some witnesses voiced concerns that PPS had tolerated
adult-to-adult sexual harassment in the schools, but noted that the environment

was improving and the recent sexual harassment training had been helpful,

Substantiated Reports of Sexual Conduct by Other PPS Educators. During our
investigation, we came across various other educators who had resigned or been

disciplined or terminated due to issues relating to inappropriate conduct of a
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sexual nature. We did not analyze whether the District correctly followed -

ORS 339.388 or made the appropriate disclosures under ORS 339.378.

Thompson v. PPS. We did not investigate the legal advice provided by

outside or in-house counsel regarding settlement of Rory Thompsen’s lawsuit

against the District.

Public Records Requests. There have been numerous public records
requests to the District regarding Mr. Whitehurst. We did not investigate the

response to or opposition of these requests by the District or its agents.

The District’s Other Union Contracts and non-represented employees. We
did not review any collective bargaining agréements other than the PAT contract,
nof the policies and practices applicable to non-represented employees. However,
our recommendations regarding preventing, reporting and investigating sexual
conduct with students apply to all PPS employees. Any other policies, practices or
union contracts with impediments to protecting students should be changed at the

District’s earliest opportunity.

(5B:9400953.3
01168862.v1
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L/Iemomndmn

Tor Mol Whittharst n:)
Feomy  Gireg Walleck

Dafer  Nuvembae 17, 2000
R Stedend Complaint

On Friday, Novembeor 2, 2001, the Dindet renslved o conglnbae S g studeng aleghng that vou
engaged ia cortatn dnsppraprists conduct tomard bor.

Yoo wore placed ae pakd adminlstestive leave whike the Distel Inwsetigatod the allegatlions, Om
Widunsday, Wovensoe T, 2001 the I¥isdes questionnd you about the sliepations, "You duiod puy
{nagpropstate behavior, Vou described cortadn stidasoniz thit yon Y made which could fuws been
mistrlerprstef by the studant. Yiou specifically dextied bty attvacted & dhis seudont or vnakdng sy

mmpt toodate B

Both the sindent’s nitegations mad youy devdal aes onodibles, _
I - reviewod yoix sutiss omploymsmt veconth s Portland Poblic Schools, Other
shin the complatus kel thers was no sdditional cvidencs that you copaged In any loappropcise

behavior toward that siwden or any other shident, ‘Chavefons, the Distdot vetmed gom & your
anxtgmont on Thiwsday, Hovowber B, 2004,
Pisiod o your dosceiption of svants, it Js cortainly possible tak the sturdoet in qusstion nienadotsiood

your astions and identions, Duriog onr weeting, we discussed how lopaesant it 5 o bdoacaton go b
catious about suh possibla misundsrsmmndings In thelr interactlons with stedears. X koo that the

yuu

onmplidnt diabudsed you greatly and balk;pg that dn (e Getan you wilk bo extomandy caatiois sind will
tiy to avoid any similor siiuations. 16X canda of ay nditional aasistaves, please Yot ma keow.

1oL, PLe2

nvestigative Report - Exhibit3 Thompson v, PP3-Priv_000069
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Memorandum Postiand Public Schools

Tor File

From:  Mauvrgen Sioane
Data:  Yonuvary 23, 2008
(1104 Mitch Whitebuest

Gﬂpﬁca_Wmne 10 500 190 today. She had been a studont ot Foklin Bigh School and
graduate She reported that she had an incident in which Mr, Whitehurst bad asked her to

suck lis (dick or cock). She refused, M

fopk down the detats and agrood thal 1 wo 1o it {
1ade no promises and told her that {wonld not be calling her 10 teli hor whiat had happened. She
apread that wae 2 oot decision,
T first verified that onr cirent employee, Mitch Whiichvrst, had been o falrly now ereployes and was

a connselor, assighed to Frankhin¥igh Schoot in 1984, (He was actunlly in Integration ‘f‘pmci‘;iisi) I
then resenrch whether we had any old records on him, We did, In 2002 we seceived a co

ity INAPDILRE :
eport im to TSPC and wrote a reprhmmd TSPC rofused to

’ nply
mke any and dism:ssui ma re;mn
There atie no other indications of any inappropuiate hehavior since fhen, Althongh fi is possible that

Mr. Whitehurst was saaking inappropriaie statoments to students, the lssse was Investigated i 2002
By both tive Distoot and TEPC, T will tako 0o fmther action on this matier,

westigative Report - Exhibit 4
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APPROVAL = 3
ROUTE School Police | Print Form
) PORTLAND PAGEIOF
O CASE NUMBER REFER CASE NUMBER CLASSIFICATION CLR
% 10-086679 10-82896
7 DATE / TIME REPORTED DATE /TIME OCCURRED (START) DATE / TIME OCCURRED (END) R RACIOR) [ 61(8)
< 10/18/10 1030 10/07/10 1945 10/07/10 1950 [] PHONE-N (P)
LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE
Jefferson HS, 5210 N Kerby Ave, Portland, OR
PREMISE TYPE PRECINCT OF OCCURRENCE
220 - Publie, School/College North Precinct
ONE SENTENGE SUMMARY OF INCIDENT
E Alleged inappropriate texts sent to juvenile high school student by a school administrator
gg PERSONS U - Business Complsinant KN - Farsan wikiewiodge OW - Owner PF - Properly Fiader S8 - Sutject RP - Reporing Person VI-Vigim WI-Witness __Add Person_ |
COPIES CODE NAME (Lost, First Middio) CRN SEX RACE ooB X
CJoeT RP  |Yelma, Aznegashe F |B
HOME ADDRESS CITY STATE 2P HOME PHONE
[JCENTRAL
[JEAST BUSINESS/SCHOOL ADDRESS
Jefferson HS, 5210 N Kerby Ave, Portland, OR
INORTH  [Z55E 9 : o) CAN
ONE SB
HOME ADDRESS oY STATE
[JSE
CJCAT BUSINESS/SCHOOL ADDRESS [CIWORK PHONE [_]MSG. PHONE |MOBILE PHONE
Jefferson HS, 5210 N Kerby Ave, Portland, OR UNK UNK.
[CIDHSICHS
X1,X2, - X9 - SUSPECTS M - Missing RW - Runaway DK-Qrunk DE - Doceased AS - Atiomg! Suicida ME - Mantal SB - Sukject __Add Subiect |
DvD :
o CODE | NAME (Last, First Midcla) CRN SEX  |RACE
cowru  |SB Whitehurst, Mitch M B
[CJECRT HOME ADDRESS oy STATE fald HEIGHT |WEIGHT |[HAIR EYES CUSYTE%BY'I
UNK 60 |10 [BLK [BRO |Ke
(JJDH AKAVMONIKER |_JWRK PHN [ MISG PHONE |MOBILE PHONE HOME PHONE
QJuv
OTHER DESCRIPTION
rics ‘
[Cioves VEHICLE &-Sioten R-Recovered L-Locats A- Abandoned T-Towod V- Victim's Vahicle X - Sussert Vehiclo | - Informational M -Missing __Add Vehicle |
0 IDENTIFICATION DIVISIONNOTIFIED?  [JYas  [C]No
OQUTSIDE AGENCY NCTFIED/REFERRED T0O?
O
o PROPERTY RECEIPT NUMBER|S)
— 1199005
“ | PROPERTY S-STOLEN  L-LOST F-FOUND D-OAMAGED  K-SAFEKEEPING  R-RECOVERED  E-EVIDENCE Add Property |
a CODE ary. |ImeEM s X
a 3 Samsung Cell Phone - T-Mobile
BRAND MODEL/ STYLE SERIAL NUMBER COLOR
COMPUTER|ENGRAVINGS / PECULIARITIES SIZE VALUE
ENTRY
] Desk NARRATIVE-The arder of appearance for additional infarmalicn will ba:
ITEM 1: NJA ITEM 5: N/A
ITEM 2: N'A ITEM 6: ADDITIONAL OFFICERS - List alt offi tand identify ther invaly twih
s ickioct B rociorad. sta icers prasent and identily T invalvement w
[ Persen ITEM 3. N/A ITEM 7: SUMMARY - A shart summary is nacessary H Ihe namatve is more than ane full page
inlength.
ITEM 4: ADCITIONAL WORTHLESS DOCUMENTS - Record multpla worthless documents on ITEM 8: NARRATIVE - List in chronalogreal arder, all of Ihe refevant detalls of the Incidant ond/
DPSST a fraud supplemantal form. Record in the narrative the total number of worthless or eloments of the crime ef violation.
Entry/ documents wriltan.
2l
a Vehicle
NARRATIVE
rssr—| S On 101510 [ was contacted telephonically by Aznegashe Yelma, a Jefferson HS assistant volleyball
Cbistibution| €0Ach, who related that she found cell phones containing inappropriate texts from who
REPORTING OFFICER(S) DESST PREC/ DIV RLF / SHIFT | ASSN DIST SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE
TOPSST | Ross Scott 37329 | NO/SP M/M [ 1690/1690 | Delton Stroh (39607)
PPB-G-1-10/84 767 (OBMT)
Print Form Remote Print | [

Investigative Report - Exhibit 6
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o - School Palice | Print Form
N PAGEIOF
| | PoLiCE BUREAU INVESTIGATION REPORT 2 /2
O she believes is the Jefterson 1S Athletic Director (AD). Ms. Yelma related that after a Jefterson Volleyball
% match on 100710 at approximately 1945, she found a cell phone without any outward identification ar SIM
- card, She explained that the next morning while attempting to ID the owner, she observed several texts
= from "Mitch" who she assumed, based on the name "Mitch" and the context of the messages, was Jefferson
Athletic Director, Mitch Whitehurst.
betonged to [N
She related that she became particularly concerned for the following reasons: #1 an adult administrator
o having contact with a a juvenile student outside the school, #2 the number of texts and the time of night texts
Lfé were received from "Mitch” (as late as 2300) and #3 the content and context of the texts. She related the
<2 . . n . . - ~ 1 r N
9z two most disturbing texts from "Mitch" stated something ta the effect of: #1 "Women do you want to talk?".
COPIES |42 %Joe wants to know if you're coming over to his house after practice."
(JoET '
DICENTRAL I Mg, Yelma
OEAST
[INORTH
ONE
Ose
[ICAT Moselle Lewis because she runs track and he is a track coach. Furthermore, they are often seen doing track
Oonsicrs | workouts together.
Cjovp
[JOVRU
OecRT | Ms. Yelma
[1JDH
CJJuy
Qcs
joves
& EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST Add Addressee
D —_—
O
a
a
a
COMPUTER
ENTRY
] Oesk
DPSST
7] Person
DPSST
Entry /
O Vehicle
T OPSST
[Distribution
REPORTING OFFICER(S) DFS3T PREC/ OV RLF  SHIFT | ASSN /DIST SUPERVISORS SIGNATURE
—BPs5T | Ross Scott 37329 [NO/SP M/M | 169071690 |Delton Stroh (39607)
PPB-C-1-10/84 767 (0807)
Print Form Remote Print I [

Investigalive Report - Exhibit 6
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APPROVAL . i
lRou TE School Police I Print Form

N PORTLAND PAREIF
TYPE: 3
O CASE NUMBER -+ | REFER CASE NUMBER CLASSIFICATION
00 10-086679 10-82896
o. STATUS ORIGINAL REFORT DATE  TIVE THIS REPORT DATE TIME
9 l. Unfounded 10718710 1030 10/21/10 1355
LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE FRECINCT OF OCCURRENCE
Jefferson HS, 5210 N Kerby Ave, Portland, OR North Precinet
x
w % SUBJECT OF THIS REPORT CAD INCIDENT NUMBER
a3 Follow-up to alleged inappropriate texts
COPIES |PERSON co- comglainent S8 -Subject Sl - Sickuinjured/Garad For PE - Park Exclusion VI- Vicim RP - Reporling Party KN - Person wiknowledge Add Parson
CJDET OW - Owner WI-Wilnass BU - Businass PF - Property Findar  MI - Musing RW - Runaway AR« Arrested
CODE NAME; (Lost, Firs! Midd'e) CRN SEX RACE nos l(_
[JCENTRAL | p F B
CJEAST ADDRESS cmy STATE ZIP
Jefferson HS, 5210 N Kerby Ave Portland Qregon 97217
CINORTH " TWORK PHONE [ ] MESSAGE PHONE [MOBILE PHONE HOME PHONE
CINE
NAME: (Last, First Middie) CRN Isex __ lrack DO3 X
CISE X
CIcAT ADDRESS oY STATE 2P
Portland Qregon
[JOHSICHS P T/GRIC PHONE [ ] MESSAGE PHONE MOBILE PHONE HOME PHONE
0ovo
CODE NAME: (Lost, First Middie) M SEX RACE 0O X
OovRU | o .
SB Whitehurst, Mitch M B
[JECRT ADDRESS Y STATE Zip
UNK
[JJDH | - = YA - - - - 2
i WORK PHONE I iMEbSA()E PHONZ MOBHE PHONE HOME PHONE
v
0cs VEHICLE t-tocate A-Abandoned T-Tovwed V-VicimisVenice X-SuspectVehicle |-information M - Misiag _A_m_]
PRO.PERT}‘ RECEIPTNO,
gOoves (835015
O PROPERTY sS-STOLEN L-LOST D-DAMAGED F.FOUNS K-SAFEKEEPING R-RECOVERED E - EVIDENGE __AddPropery |t
c NARRAT}VE (COMMENTS)
———16. OFC F Wiechmann 30431 (Computer Forensics)
O OFC C Lavell 41706 (Jefferson HS SRQO)
0 8. On 102110 at approximately 0930 [ met OFC Wiechman at his East Precinct office to review the text
——— |messages on the cell phone that | seized as evidence on 101810 (See [nvestigation Report Same Case #). 1
U reviewed the texts and observed that several were from a contact displayed as "Mitch” from phone #
The context of the messages were somewhat romantically inclined, however, not sexually
cowpuTer|suggestive. OFC Wiechmann burmed the text messages onto a CD-R and I took possession of the CD for
ENTRY | further review.
£ Desk | proceeded to North Precinet where | met with OFC Lovell who has been the Jefferson HS School Resource
— Officer for five years. OFC Lovell and | reviewed the text messages and 3
] Person Additionally, OFC Lovell maintains Mitch
Whitehurst's phone # in his PPB Nextel and the numbers did not match.
TTDPSST
R
- Vehicle 1
TTOPSST
[C0stributicn
Based on the lack of a matching phone number and the known [
TTOPSST
REPORTING OFFICER(S) DPSST PREC/DIV RLF / SHIFT | ASSN/ DIST SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE
Ross Scott 37329 |[NO/SP M/M l 1690/1690 [Dclton Stroh (39607)
PPB-SSD-TH A23(C8/H7)
Print Form Remote Print J l J

Investigative Report - Exhibit 6
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PPROVAL . "
oUTE School Police

Print Form [

PORTLAND
POLICE BUREAU

10-086679

ASE
UMBER

SPECIAL REPORT

TYPE:

[ returned the Samsung phone to [ 1d the placed the CD-R cantaining a burned copy of the
text messages into the NO Precinct property oom. [ contacted the PPS Security Services supervisor and
gz related to him that the allegations of inappropriate texts was highly unlikely

COPIES [EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST

Add Addressee

[JoET
TJCENTRAL
[JEAST
CINORTH
CINE

CISE
CJCAT
[IDHS/CHS
[JoVD
[JDVRU
[JECRT
[]J0H
CJuv

Ocs

COMPUTER
ENTRY

[ Desk

DPSET
[3 Person

DPSST

Entry /
O vehicie

DPSST
[[IDistribution

DPSST

REPORTING OFFICER(S)
Ross Scott

DPSST
37329

PREC/ QIV

NO/SP

RLF / SHIFT

M/ I\/‘

ASSNTDIST
1690/1690

SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE
Delton Stroh (39607)

PPB-S5D-TH

Print Form J

Remote Print E

Investigative Repori - Exhibit 6

Page 4
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alleged

A |
ARE NOT ALONE
Please report
your informaltion o
the police

VA
us 5!0p
- a
now-—-our children
deserve sale &
schoois!

Mitch

Whitehurst

young

_must be
§ stopped! He has
been violating

girls for

over 20 years in

his ma

ny

positions as a
teacher, coach,
administrator
for Portland
Schools. Please
don't let it
continue. We
have to protect
our children

from t

alleged

1S

pedop.

Investigative Report - Exhibit 7
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roure " School Police i Print Form
A PORTLAND PAGEIOF
7| | POCE BureAu INVESTIGATION REPORT Wi
& CASE NUMBER REFER CASE NUMBER CLASSIFICATION CIR
= 10-106059
f DATE / TIME REPORTED DATE /TIME OCCURRED (START) DATE / TIME OCCURRED (END) A0 (R) [ 1(5)
—t 12/28/10 0900 12/27/10 1530 12/28/10 0600 [] PHONEAN (©)
LOGATION OF OCCURRENCE
5210 N. KERBY AVE JEFFERSON HIGH SCHOOL
PREMISE TYPE PRECINGT OF OCCURRENCE
220 - Public, School/College North Precinet
ONE SENTENCE SUMMARY OF INCIDENT
& VI HAD SLANDEROUS FLIERS PLACED AROUND THE JEFFERSON GYM DOORS.
g; PERSONS U - Business Comptzinant KN - Persion wiknowledge OW - Owner PF - Property Finder SB - Subject RP - Repoding Person V- Vicim W1-Winess __Add Person |
COPIES |COPE  [NAME (Last, First Mickdio) CRN SEX
QoeT VI WHITEHURST, MITCHELL M
HOME ADDRESS CITY STATE 2P
OceNTRAL |C/O JEFFERSON AD Portland Oregon 97212 E
CIEAST BUSINESS/SCHOOL ADDRESS [CIWORK PHONE [_JMSG. PHONE |MOBILE PHONE
5210 N KERBY AVE
GNORTH CcoDE NAME (Loat, Firct Middla) CRN SEX RACE
CINE Wi ALLEN, RICKEY M B
HOME ADDRESS cY STATE 2P
Ose C/O JEFFERSON HS VP Portland Qregon 97212
CJCAT BUSINESS/SCHOOL ADDRESS [_IWORK PHONE [_]MSG. PHONE |MOBILE PHONE
5210 N KERBY AVE
e T LT (Last, First Mcllla) CRN SEX |RACE  |DOB X
ovp Wi SHEPPARD, VINCYNTHYA F B
HOME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZP
s 'c:/o JEFFERSON CUSTODIAN Portland Oregon 97212
CJECRT  [BUSINESS/SCHOOL ADDRESS ["JWORK PHONE [_]M3G. PHONE | MOBILE PHONE
C1IDH
CODE | NAME (Last, Firat Midkdio) CRN SEX |RACE  |DOB X
Oy
fcs HOME ADDRESS cY STATE 7IP HOME PHONE
Oovcs BUSINESS/SGHOOL ADDRESS [ZIJWORK PHONE [ ]MSG. PHONE | MOBILE PHONE
O
o X1,X2, -X0 - SUSPECTS M| - Mssing RW - Runsiwsy DK - Drunk DE- Deceased AS - Akarpt Suicide ME - Mental 8B - Subjest __Add Subject |
——]CODE | NAME (Last, First Middie) CRN SEX [RACE  [poB X
O X1 |ATWOOD,JAY M B
- HOME ADDRESS ’cm« E HEIGHT |WEIGHT |RAIR EYES ﬁs\)gm
e NO
o | AIAMONIKER CTwrK PN J PHONE| MOBILE PHONE HOME PHONE
o___ | OTHER DESCRIFTION
COEDf‘F.’rlé'LER VEHICLE & -giolon R-Rocovared L-Locate A -Abandoned T- Tewed V- Vidiown Vehicla X - Suspect Vohicke | - Informational M - Missing Add\lgﬂléle 1
{7 Desk IDENTIFICATION DIVISION NOTIFIED?  [(JYES  [JNO
OUTSIDE AGENCY NOTIFIED/REFERRED T0?
bl RECEIPT NUMBER(S)
[ Person
BESST PROPERTY §-STOLEN L-LOST F-FOUND  D-DAMAGED  K-SAFEKEEPING R-RECOVERED  E-EVIDENGE __Add Property |
Entry/
O Vggz,lo
TTOPSST |
[Joistribution
REPORTING OFFICER(S) DPSST | PREG/ OV ALF /SHIFT | ASSN/DIST | SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE
TOPSST | Spencer Sheldon 36880 [NO/SRO  |U/M | 1688 Steven Morinville (37145)
PPB-C-1-10/84 767 (08/07)
Print Form Remote Print J I

Investigative Report - Exhibit 8
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IQZ?@VM School Police | Print Form
=2 PORTLAND PAGEIOF
O NARRATIVE-The order of appearance for additienol infermation will be:
o ITEM 1: NIA ITEM 5: N/A
— 1TEM 2: N/A ITEM G: ADDITIONAL OFFICERS - List afl afficars prasent ant identily their invoivamant wih
| the incident being reporled
2 ITEM 3: NIA ITEMT: ?Umt,!\tﬂv A shart summaory I necossary if fha narrative is mora than one full page
ITEM 4: ADDITIONAL WORTHLESS DOCUMENTS - Record multiple worthiess documents on TTEM B: NARRATIVE - List in chronological order, all of tha relevant dotatls of tha incidant ard/
a fraud supplemantal form. Record in tha narrative Uha folal number of warthless or alements of tha crime or violation.
doouments wrilten,
NARRATIVE

{4

gg 1 was standing outside of North Precinct, when Mr WHITEHURST and Mr ALLEN approached me. Mr

c—i)ma = WHITEHURST wanted to make a Police report regarding a harassment that is occurring to him. Mr
o WHITEHURST handed me a letter with his picture on it. The top of the page had “"alleged MOLESTER!"
o and also a summary about alleged violations. Refer to a copy of the note sent with this report.

CICENTRAL

CEAsT Mr WHITEHURST told me that the custodian at Jefferson high school found a bunch of these notes on

Onort | the doors to the big gyni. The custodian, Vincynthya SHEPPARD, took them all done as soon as they were

CINE found. Mr WHITEHURST also had a voicemail with the same type of information from a male. Mr

- WHITEHURST told me that it was Jay ATWOOQD's voice on the cellphone. Mr ALLEN was standing next
to us as the recording was playing. He told me that the voice was the voice of Jay ATWOOD. | asked how

OICAT  1he knew that and he told me that Mr ATWOOD's son used to go to Jefferson and Mr ATWOOD would

Dioksicks | leave messages on his phone that the voice sounded the same.

[JovD

[Jovey Mr WHITEHURST believes that this is all over an ex-girlfiiend of his. He thinks that Jay ATWOOD is
upset over his ex-girlfriend not wanting to have a relationship with him because of Mr WHITEHURST. Mr

QECRT | WHITEHURST told me that he really doesn't know what the real reason is. He told me that he also found

(14DH those fliers on the porch of his home and that some neighbors came to him with copy’s of them also. Mr

Clowv WHITEHURST is very upset and wants it to stop.

Qce ; —_— X ; ‘

vcs I spoke with Mrs SHEPPARD at Jefferson High school and she told me that when she got to work at
o 0600 hours this moming, the fliers were already on the school gym doors. She went around the building and
O took all of them down. She told me that the fliers were not on the doors yesterday at 1530 hours. She does
] not know who put them up.

(]

——{ I was able to get Mr ATWOOD!'s number from Tiffany SMITH and gave him a call. 1 asked Mr
B__ JATWOOD if he knew anything about the fliers left on the doors of the school and he told me that it wasn't
O | him and when 1 asked about the voice message on the cell phone, he told me he has no recollection of that. [
O informed him that a Jefferson administrator LD his voice and he told me that it wasn't him.

[cOMPUTER

ENTRY |EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST Add Addresses
[] Desk
PSS
[[] Person
T DPSST

Entry /

a Vahrlyr.‘a

DPSS

[CDistribution
REPORTING OFFICER(S) DF33T PREC 1 DIV RLF [ SEIFT | ASEN/ DIST SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE
TTOPSST | Spencer Sheldon 36880 [NO/SRO UM | 1688 Steven Morinville (37145)

PPB-C-1-10/34

767 (03i07)

Print Form Remote Print I r J

Investigative Report - Exhibit 8
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5 t .
PORTLAND PUBLIC SCHOOQLS
S210 Nowrth Werby Awonei / Porthnd, Qregon 97217
Phone: (503) 916-3180 AN (303) 916-2698

N—m

JEFFERSON RIGH SCHOOL

January 28,2011

Loretts Benjarin Sanmuels
Dirgctor

Human Resources
Portland Public Schoals

Ms. Benjamin Samuels on Decermber 21, 2010 at approximately 7:30 am Mr. Mikch Widtehurst called my
cell phohe to tell me about a situation, Our custodian Cindy Sheppard had calied him to tell him that
someone put posters up all around the gym painting him b a very nagative lights He eventually came over
ta my house ta show ma the poster at approximately 7:45am. He also shared that someone had left o
poster on his front door, The poster accused Mr, Whitehurst of being a padophile and had a picture of his

face on it 1t was quite shocking.

He asked me what | thaught he should do about this because b had some ideas of who he thought it
might be. | immediately told him to go to the authoritles and reportit, He asked if | would go with him
{approximately B:30 am) | agraed, we both went over to the Northeast Praciinet and reported it to Officer
Sheldon and a couple of other officers standing outside the prednct, Afterwards he and § went to
breakfast and that was the end of our encountar,

Sincerely,
. ey
SR, (e
‘ RickyA‘l!eZ
Vice Principal

defferson High Schaot
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Loratta Benjamin-Samuels ~ Jstch Whitehurst (

t .o . r

From: Bennis Tung

Toi Loreita Benjamin-Samuels
Date: 2512041 3155 PM
Subject:  Mitch Whitehurst

Lorelta,
1 apologize for the delay in providing your with written notes on the Mitch Whitehurst Information,

The Incldent began when an unknown subject left handouts/flyers at Jefferson Righ School and at Mitch's home,

The flyers accusstt M, Whitehurst of Inappropriate conduct with studetits.

The Portland Poliée were contacted and they did an invastigation.

M, Whitehurst betteved the flvars were left by a disgruntled parent, { there are additional personnel matters between the
pargnt andt Whiteburst).

Partland Pollce officers dit contact tha g}arant, wha dended any involvement or knowledge of the Ingident. Additonally
there no fyers or Fandouts appeared alter the parent was contacted,

There 15 a pollee report on flle for review,

“There i no avidence or otier allegations that Mitch Whitghurst had any mappmprlate contack oy conduct,

Dernis Tune

Dlrector Securily Services
Fortiand Public Schools
503-916-3000

diune@pps.dd 2. or.u8
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Caprice Piacenti and Mitch Whitehurst Page 1 of |

From: Jeff Fish

Date: December 14, 2012 9:55:48 AM {-08)

To: Jollee Patterson; Siobhan Murphy

Cet Sean Murray

Sublect: N
Attachments:

Jollee and Siobhan:

Jeff Fish

HR Legal Counsel

Portland Public Schaols

501 N. Dixon Street | Porttand, Oregon 97227

Direct: 503-916-3246 | Qffice: 503-916-3544 | Fox: 503-916-3107

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail message may contain confidential or privileged nformation. If you have recelved
this message by mistake, please do not review, disclose, copy, or distribute the e-mail, instead; please notify me
Immediately by replying to this message or telephoning me. Thank you,

Investigative Repori - Exhibit 10
Paga 1 of 1
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From: Jollee Patterson

Dater December 19, 2012 6:30:51 PM (-D8)
To: Siobhan Murphy; Sean Murray
Subject: RE: '

Altachments:

| agrea,

I

Thanks.

lollse

Jollee Patterson, General Counsel/Board Secretary
Portland Publlc Schools

501 N. Dixon 5t.

Portiand, OR 97208-3107

{(503}915-3570 (phone)

{508)916-2724 (fax)

jpatters@pps.net

From: Siobhan Murphy

Sent: Wednesday, December 19, 2012 4:08 PM
Tos Sean Murray; Jollee Patterson -

Sabject: RE:

Sean and Jolies,

Thanks,

Siobhan Murphy
Phone: (503) 916-3850
KErail: gmurphy2@@pos.ner

Confideniiatity notise: This avreed miessage vy oontedn prividged and{ or sonfidentied information. I yaw have rensimd ibe massage by
agstattis, plratse NotEfy us imuvedialely by rapluing o thiv messape or tedphoning PPS Hrean Resurces, end de not revizi, disslos,

copy or distribaite . Thavk yois.
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From: Sean Murray

Sent: Sunday, December 16, 2012 2:18 PM
To: Siobhan Murphy; Jollee Patterson
Subjecis RE:

Thanks Siobhar.

From: Siobhan Murphy
Sent: Friday, December 14, 2012 4126 PM
To: Jollee Paiterson; Sean Murray

subject: Re: [
I

Thanks,

Siobhan Muiphy

Phone: (503) 916-3550

Hroail: smuphy2@ppsnet

Confedentiality notice: "Thir el message gy contet privihged and/ or confidontiol Snformention, Ifyou hao reveived Bhe message by

Helstaks, please wollly us Snmedianedy by roping to this wetsage or slephoning PPS Humen Resoreses, and do wot sevéom, didase,
_ vapy or distribute i, "Thank yon.

From: Jeff Figh

Sent: Friday, December 14, 2012 2:56 AM
Tor Jollee Patierson; Slobhan Murphy

Cer Sean Muriay

subject: [N

Joltee and Siobhan:

Jeff

Irivestigative Repart - Exhibit 11
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leff Fish

HA Legal Counsel

Portland Public Schools

501 N. Dixen Street | Portland, Oregon 87227

Direct; 503-916-3246 | Offfce; 503-915-3544 | Feoor: 503-816-3107

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail message may contain confidential or privileged information, if you have received
this message by mistake, please do not review, disclose, copy, or distribute the e-mail. Instead, please notify me
fmmediately by replying to this message or telephoning me. Thank you,

Investigative Repart - Exhibit 11
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RE: Caprice ] and Mitch Whitehurst Page 1 of 2

From: Sean Murray

Date: December 19, 2012 7:07:01 PM (-08)

To: Slobhan Murphy; Jollee Patterson

sbfect: e [
Attachments:
Siabhan,

Thanks, $ean

From: Siobhan Murphy
Sent: Wednesday, December 19, 2012 4:08 PM
To: Sean Murray; Jollee Patterson

subject: Rc:

Sean and Jollee,

Thanks,

Slobhan Muphy
Phioaes (505} 916-3550
Hronik smurphy2@ppe.net

Cofideniialsty noticn This crsnid swsseqge mugy contean prvinibyged wadd or conficdemtid infprveation. 1f you fues received d seesuage by
ik, plose waldly v Fmmisdiaiedy by spdiiug io thiv mevege o delphoning PRS Dl Resonoes, and oy not vevion, divcbare,
eafyy o siestvibante #. T handz yor,

From: Sean Murray
Sent: Sunday, December 16, 2012 2:18 PM
To: Slobhan Murphy; Jollee Palterson

subject: <¢: [N

Thanks Siobhan,

From: Siobhan Murphy
Sent: Friday, December 14, 2012 4:26 PM
To: Jollee Patterson; Sean Murray

subject: RE: G

investigative Report - Exhibit 11
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RE: Caprice JJR and Miteh Whitehurst Page 2 of 2

Thanks,

Siohhan Murphy
TFhone: (503} $16-3550

Funall: stvtphy2@@pps.net

Conlideniindify noties: " This enid imassge may contuin pivihged and) ov confidsmsicd infirmmiion Wyie bave soctdved e rmsssy by
wdstkoe, Plase worify s opmdiaredy by veplving to this messuer or telipbosing PPS FHanen Ravoisees, wnd do not veviom, dindose,
capy o viviribute i "Thand, you,

Fromt: Jeff Fish

Bent: Friday, Dacember 14, 2012 9:56 AM
Tar Jollee Patterson; Slobhan Murphy

€z Sean Murray

Subject: [N

Jolleg and Siabhon:

Jeff

Jeff Fish

HR Legal Counsel

Portiand Public Schools

501 N, Dixon Street | Portland, Oregon 97227

Dlrect: 503-816-3246 | Cffice: 508-916-3544 | Fax: 503-916-3107

CONFIRENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mall message may contaln confidential or privileged information. if you have recetved
this message by mistake, please do not review, disclose, copy, or distribute the e-mall, Instead, please notify me
Immediately by replying to this message or telephoning me, Thank you.

Investigalive Report - Extibii 11
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From: Jollee: Patterson

Date: January 06, 2013 4:56:10 PM (-08) .

To Sean Murray
Subject: FW: Coach Mitch Whitehurst ~ attorney client communication
Attachments:

Hi Sean ~- I fust nobieed you weren't on this email string. Just FYI,
Hopa you had 4 good weekend,
Jolles

Jolles Patterson, General Counsel/Board Secretary
Portland Public Sdhooly

501 N, Dimon St.

" Poxtland, OR 97208-3107

(503) 916-3570 (phone)

(503)916-2724 (fax)

JpattersBpps et

== Qi ginal. Muggnge-———-

Fromi Jolled Patterson

Sentt Sunday, Januaky 06, 2013 4151 PM

To: LaShawn A Lee; Traok Scotbto: Botonle Lopex; Siobhan Murphy
Car Jennifer Mecalley ‘ e :
Subject: RBE: Coach Mitch Whitehuyst -~ attorney client commund cation,.

Thanks .

Jolles

Jollee Patterson, General Counsel/Board Sacretary Portland Public Schools
501 ¥, Dimon St.

bortland, OR 97208-3107

{5031916-3570 {phonse)

{503 916-2724 (fak)

dpatters@pps.net

meeeeQriginal Message--—---

From: Lashawn A Lee

Sent: Sunday, Jamuary 06, 2013 12:32 BM

Tor Jollee Patterson: Frank Scotto; Antonic Loper: Siobhan Murphy
Cot Jennifer Mocalley

Bubjack: Coach Mitch Whitehyrst

Good Sunday Morning Team,

tnvestigalive Report - Exhibit 13
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I've aspent this entirze weekend procesaing this unsettling situaticn in reference t
© Coach Whitehurst and I'm extremely conflicted about the declalon te allow him to
remain on campus during our investigation. For the past 30 years, there have bes
n rumblings about Coach Whitehurst and his "over friendliness” with his female stu
dents and staff members. Some of thege rumors were posted all over the Jefferson

School, the community, and via emall two years ago. Now, these complaints are bein
g rzeported by younger female students and their parents, Az much as I'm satisfied
with Coach Whitehurst's performance as a PE teacher, I'm extremely concernad about
this bacoming a "Penn State University" scandal....which could happen with a ging
le text or facebook message. My goal is not to become overly dramatic, but cautiou
s about the decisions thalt we make as a school district. 7Thersfore, I would like
to gimply ask the team to review thils siltuation once again and I will fully suppor
t the decision.

As always, thank you for your valuable support...it means the world to me!

LaShawn A. Lee, Principal
Portland Publie Schools
Faubion FR-8 School

3038 NE Rosa Parks Way
Portland, OrR 37211

Jent from my iPad

Investigative Repart - Exhibit 13
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R

Name:

1. Do you like PE?
2. What do you like about PE?
3. What do you not like about PE?

4. What makes you feel uncomfortable?

5. What have you done because you feel uncomfortable?

6. Have youtold your parents

7. Have you ever been alone with Mr. Whitehurst?

8. Has he ever touched you?

Investigative Report - Exhibit 14
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PORTLAND PUBLIC SCHOOLS

501 Novth Dikon Street / Portland, Oregon 97227 .
Muiling Address: P.O. Box 3107 / Portland, Oregon 97208-3107
Tolephone: (503) 936-3544 « FAX: (503) 916.3107

L

TO: Miteh Whitehurst
FROM: LaShawn Lee, Principal and Jen MeCalley, Assistant Principal

DATE: Jamuary 7, 2013

Dear Mitch,

Please be advised that we have received oomp]mms of inappropriate conduct that we are reguied

to investigate. During this investigation-you are dirested not o have any discuzsion with studenis
ot stalf regarding this conduct and not to have mny conversation inovolving this fnvestigation.

Failure to do so could result in discipline in and of itself.

& meeting will be schednled with you in the neat futute and you are reminded of your tight to
asgociation representation.

In the meantime if you have any ﬁmﬂgﬁiﬁm please contact me directly.

Ce: . Loretta Benjarain-Samuels, HR Regional Ditector
Frank Scotto '
Building File

hwestigative Report - Exhibit 15
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PORTLAND PUBLIC SCHOOLS

501 North Dixon Street / Poriland, Oregon 972247
Mailing Address: P.O, Box 3107 / Portland, Oregon 97208-3107
Telephene: (503) 916-3544 » FAX: (503) 916-3107

TO: Miteh Whitehurst

FROM: T.aShawn Lee, Principal and Jen McCalley, Assistant Principal

DATE: January 11, 2013
RE: Mesting Notice
Dear Mitch,

This meme s to notify you that » mesting has been seheduled For Tnesday, Jomuary 15, 2013
at 2:00 pom, at Faubion is the principal’s office. "This meeting is to discnsy concerny about
inappropriate condnct,

Trank Scotto from Human Resources may be a participant at the meeting,

Vou are entitled to be representod at this mecting by Portland Association of Teachory, If you
have questions regarding the meeting ot if you are anable to meet during the above scheduled
teeting time please have your widon representative call, Frank Scotto, at 503-916-5884 twendy-
four hours prior to the meeting to reschedule,

Ce;  Frank Scotto
Building File

tnvestigative Report - Exhibit 16
Page 1ot 1



RE: Matrix
Frorm; Jennifer Mecalley
Daten January 15, 2013 12:41:34 PM (-08)
To! Franlc Scotto
Subject: RE: Matrix
Attachments:
Greatd

Fram: Frank Seotto

Sent: Tuasday, January 15, 2013 12:26 PM
To: Jennifer Mcealley

Subjact: RE: Matrlx

No need for matrix,

Frank

From: Jennifer Mecalley

Sant: Tuesday, January 15, 2013 12:25 PM
Tor Frank Scotho

Subjoct; Matsix

Hi Franlk,

Page 1 of 1

Since there wasn't a huge finding an Mitch, do | still need to make a matrix? | have all the answers from the

kids.
Thanks,
len

Investigative Report - Exhibit 17
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From: Frank Scotto

Date: January 21, 2013 7:29:02 AM (-08)

Tor LaShawn A Lee

Ce: Jennifer Mccalley

supject: R Mitch [
Attachments:

Hi Ladhawn,

That's good news about Mitch,

¥rank

Sent from my LPad

on Jan 20, 2013, ab 8:5%4 PM, "Lashawn A Lee" wrobe:

> Hi Frank,
> . .
5 Jen and 1 met with Mitch on Friday about this situation. He approached me abouk
wanting bo maet as soon ae pessible. Based on the informabion that we were able b
o gather, thie was probably o widdlae school rumox. In the peantime, we are golng b
o keep a shagp eye on him. Jen wlll type wp the notes ad send to you and Mitch w
hen we return from the mxtended weskeod. '

e

o

o

1. o

Thanks!!

»
)
>

LV IRVIRV)

LaShawn A. Les, Principal

Investigative Report - Exhibit 18
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Fortland Public¢ Schools
Faubion PK-8 School
3039 NE Rosa Parks Way
Fortland, OR 97211

Jent from my iPad

On Jan 18, 2013, at 2:34 PM, "Frank Scatto" wrote:

MV VWV Y VY Y VY

W

Hi IaShawn and Jen,

-5

>> Has there been g meeting time confirmed for Mitch yet?
>

>> Frank

>

>> Sent from my 1lPad

Investigative Report - Exhibit 18
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09 CONTRACT N, SR bl 8188

RESIGNATION AGREMENT

 School District #1], Multnomah County Oregon (“Distilet”), Mitch Whitehuest (“Binployee®),

and Portlaind Assootation of Teachers (“Assoctation”) heveby entor into the following sgreement
(*Agrosment™ for the putpose of sotting Forll the terme and conditions of Braployeo’s
rosignation fom smployment witk fho District, In exehauge for the mutnat promises and other
constderation desaribed below, the partiss agres to the following:

L

Eunployee will voluntaily rosign from the District and rotire so hat his rosignation date is
offective March 20, 2015 and his first day of setbrement is Apil 1, 2013, The Distedot
acoepts Employee’s resignation and waives its right to 60 days’ notive of Braployce's
reslgnation under ORS 342,553, Employed has made his own nguirtes with the Public
Employes Retliement System (FERS) vogarding tils rotivemont ofipibility, The parties
acknowledge that the Disteiot has no authority to make and hag mace no representations
on which Hiployee relics, regarding Bmployee's efigibility to retive yuder PERS cofes.

Employse will remnin on paid admin Istrative leave thiough February 27, 2015 snd will
be on unpaid admintstrative leave until the reslgnation effective date of March 20, 20135,

ecause Whitelurst beteby provides the Distlet with written notice of hts resignation
(¥ixhibl A) prior to Pebruary 13, 2015, the District will pay Whitehwst the early
patiramont Inoentive of 1250, as set forth in Article 15(B)(1) of the omrrent Colleotive

Baigainlng Agreement,

within 1 week of the vesignation effective dato, the Distiicl will pay Bmployee all earned
bt as-yet unpald salary, less customaty withholdings and deduetions,

Oues Bmployee hoa retived, he is eligible for the early retirement gtipend a8 gof forth in
Astiche F2(B) (2) In the cuvent Distict-Associntion Colloctive Bargatning Agresment,
fust as other retirees ave, In addition, once ratired, Buployee can make slections
regarding henlth inswrance contiibutions on the ssme texns and conditions ag other
sefitees under the carrent Distrioh-Association collestive bargsining agreement.

Hmployee will not attend any Distelet sponsored retirement avete,

e Distelot will make reasonable efforts fo collect reoords in Dishict’s possession -
ineluding but not timited to, conespondence, totes, reports, aud clectrondc records -~
retated to or menHontng the outrent complaint abowt Braployee in a separate condidential
fils, The letter placing Employes on pald administative leave and Bmployee's
vesignation paperwoik witt be placed in Biployes's personnol file, The District will
nieke this file acoessible only to Whitelurst, his legal counsel or agent, the District's
Superintendent or hor agont, the Distriot's Chief Human Regources Officor or hig agent,
or the Distriot's Legal Coungel or her ngont, untess required by lawful subpoena or order
to be produced in a civil or eriminal fegal proceeding or Ityvestigation suoh a6 the Teacher
Standards and Practices Comutisston, In addition, Bmployee undorstands that shch
records may be suljeot to disclosure under the Oregon Public Records Law.

Investigative Report - Exhibit 19
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7

Broployee will divect Inquirlos rogarding his employment to the Distriet’s Fuman
Rasouroes Department, The Dstuiot will provide only the followlng Information in
response o such inquirles; Dates of eniployment, position(s) held, last day of
omployment, levol of compansation, sud that employee reslpnad,

Employao agrees ho has no further right to employment or reemployment with the
Distriet in any capacity, including as a retives, substitute, temporary employee op
contractor, and walves the vight to bring any common law, fedoral or state law cavse of
eetlon In any jurlsdiction or before any forum If denled employment with the Distriet in

a0y capaclty,

'.IISm.pone;e agress noi to apply for unemployment, ¥ contacted by the Oregon
Bmployment Department, the Distict svlll respond that Employee voluntaclly resigned in

_order to retive during a porsonuel investigation,

10. In conslderation for the promises sot fourth above, Bmployee and his representatives

completely walve and velease any and all olaims agalns! the Disirlot and its board
mombers, agents, employees or voluntaers acting in thelr officlal or wnotficlal sapacity
{eollectively, “Released Pasties™) thet have or msy have acerued up to the date of signing
o this Agroement ralated to Bsployee's employment and his separation from
employment with the District, Specifically included in this waiver and relssse are ull
local, state and federal oladis, lawsuits, grlevances or agenoy complaints, including
alieged violations of Title VIl of the Clvil Rlghts Act of 1964 and as amended, fhe
Amerleans with Disabllitios Act and a8 amended, the Age Disortmination In Boployment
Adl, any allsged violations of the Oregon or United States Constitution, all wrongful

discliarge complainis or other alleged violatlons of local or state employment

diserimination laws, and all alleged violatlons of state or federal wage and hour laws,
Also Inoluded ave any and all dlaims of intentional forts, including but not lnvited to
defamation, breach of conttact, frand and Intentional inflietion of émotional distross,
Furthermors, Bmployes watves any and all grievances or complaints arlstog under (he
solieotive hargaining agreement, nifuly labor practice elaims, any Board of Hducaton
hoarlug of other appeal, and any claiins befbro the Falr Disndssal Appoals Board,
Bmployee and Assoolation agres to withdiaw sy outstanding grievances or complaints
that have been filed on Bmployee’s behal?, agalnst the Distiict,

. This Agreement does not walve nor extend Employee's rights and remedies concerning

the District's obligatlons to defond and indemnify him with vegard. to any elvil olahn filed
against him arising out of an alleged act or omission cectirng {n the performance of duty
for puzposes of the Oregon Tost Claims Act (ORS 30,285 et seq,),

12, In accordance with the Age Diserimination in Hmploywent Act and the Older Warker

Benefit Protection Act, Bmployes acknowledgas and agrees that:

a Employes intends to knowingly and volontarily walve any tights that she nay
have under the ADEA and intends (o release tho Distetos from any and all olaims

Investigative Report - Exhibit 19
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for damages or other renedics that BEmployoe may baye undor the ADEA,

b. Braployee noknowledges that she is horeby advised I welting to gongsult with an
attornoy boforo signing the Agrecment,

Hmployee uaderstands that lio may considet this release of cluims undar the
ADREA for a poriod of wonty-one (21) salendar days from recelpt of the
Agreemont, 1f Bployeo doos not sign the Agreument within the 21-day period,
the offer will be withdiwn, Bmployee ynderstaids thet e may sige the
Agreonent befors he explration of the 21-day period, By signing the Agreement
on the date next o Buployes's signature bolow; Bmployee has knowlngly and

voluntarily walved the batanzo of that perlod, i any,

d. "Fhe partios agece that changes to the Agrcoment, whether materd al or imanpterlal,
dlo not restart the mnning of the 21-day period,

13, Employes nnderstands he may rovoke this Agrecment wiiting attytim within scven ()
enlehdar days foltowing signing the Agrecment (the *Revacation Pordod"). The
Aggeament shall not become eifzotive untif the Revocation Perlod has pxpived, Fora

 revasation {o be effpdive, it st be provided in wrlting divectly to Stephanie Herpor,
Labor and Bmployment Legal Counsel, ot Portland Public Schools, 501 Noith Disen
Strect Portland, Ovagon, 972271 807 and received within the seven (7) duy padlod,

14, This Agtocment.should not bovonstored as uy adwission of finbility, misconduot o
Inndoguate performance by any pordy. '

15, This Agreoment is nogotiated within tho nigue elroumetoness of this brse and sots 1o
pracedent for any other purjose, .

15, "the Dishiiot wilt swork with Employeo or his tepresentative to rston Employes’s pasonal
property to hins,  Any arcanguinents or contects regarding personad propetty ske o by
made throngh Senfor Human Resowess Manager Mary-Blizabeth Huper or Stephanis
Harper, Labor mued Bmploymeont Kegal Counsel.

17, Bmployee ageess not to onter Frablon School propaty during school bhowrs or have sny
controt with Fanbion School sinfe on Favkion School property dering sohool hours,

18, The parties nzroo that this Ageoement represonts the extent of any promdses or obligations

made by tho parties, and that both partlos have had tho opportunity to consult with legal
counsel betove entoring Into it

" o N r . N N - _
o e WM w9 /130

For the District: R
{ h P
Seon -Mureaf /" ) #Datd MUTCH WHITBHURST "Dalk

Chilef Humn;ylféanmi:es(Ofﬁcer

,A,ZJi VED AS TO FORM

Pt m———

Attoptey for Sohoo! Distdet No, 1
Mulinomah Geunity, Dragon
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Stephiante Harpor Dty Noah Barish Date

Labor and Bn:ap}oymeut Logal Coungel Aftorney for Porfland Association of
ot _ _ Teachers

ol (oo of

Emity Courtnago aio f

Traputy Clerk
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BEFORE THE TEACHER STANDARDS AND PRACTICES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF OREGON

in the Matter of the ] STIPULATION OF FACTS AND FINAL
Educator License of ) ORDER OF SURRENDER AND
MITCHELL A, WHITEHURST } REVOCATION OF LICENSURE

On or about Noverber 21, 2014, the Teacher Standards and Practices Commigsion
(Commission) learned that Heensed educator, Mitchell A, Whitehurst (Whitehurst}, had
committed acts of unprofessional conduct. Specifically, Whitehurst had physically harassed
another teacher and was under investigation by law enforcement for the same. On August 10,
2015, additional information was learned during the course investigating the November 21, 2014
complaint. This new information resulted in a new, additional investigation into the conduct of
Whitehurst that oceurred on or about the school year of 1983-84, Both investigations will be
addressed in this Stipulation and Final Order,

After veview of the matters alleged, Whitehurst and the Commission agree that their
respective inferests, together with the public interest, ave best sérved by a stipulation to certain
facts and the surrender and permanent revocation of Whitehurst’s Oregon educator License,

By signing below, Whitehurst acknowledges, understands, stipulates, and agrees o the
following: (i) he has been fully advised of his rights to notice and a hearing to contest the
findings of fact, conclusions of law, and order set forth hetow, and fully and Gnally watves all
such rights and any rights to appeal or otherwise challenge this Stipulation of Facts and Final
drder of Surrender and Permanent Revocation of Licensure (Stipulation and Final Order); (il)
this Stipulation and Final Order is a public document and disclosed to the public upon reguest
by the Commisston; (iif) this Stipulation and Final Order is contingent upon and subject to
approval and adoption by the Commission. If the Commission does not approve and adopt this
Stipulation and Final Order, then neither Whitehurst nor the Commission are bound by the

terms herein; (iv) he has fully read this Stipulation and Final Oxder, and understands it

Page 1 STIPULATION OF FACTS. ORDER OF SURENDER AND REVOCATION - MITCHELL A,
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completely; (v) he voluntarily, without any force or duress, enters into this Stipulation and Hinal
Order and consents to lssuance and entry of the Stipulated Final Orderbelow; (v} he states that
no promises or representation has been made to induce him to sign this St pulation and Final
Order; and (vil) he has consulted with an attorney rogarding this Stipulation and Final Order
and has been fully advised with regard to his rights thereto, or waives any and all ¥ights to
consult with zm.attorney prior to entering into this Stipulation and Final Order and issuance and
entry of the Stipulated Final Qrder below,

This Order sets forth the facts upon which the parties have agreed and the sancton to he
imposed. Whitehurst stipulates that there are sufficient facts contained in the Commission’s
files and records to support the findings of fact and conelusions of law set forth below. In
entering into this stipulation, Whitehurst waives the right to a hearing to contest the findings of
fact, conclusions of law and order set forth helow.

STIFULATION OF FACTS

L. The Commission has licensed Whitehurst sinee Jannary 19, 1082, Whitehurst holds a
Standard Teaching License with an endorsement in Standard Physical Education {018),
valld February 5, 2014, through February 4, 2019. Druring all relevant times, Whitehuxst
was employed by the Portland Public School Distriet.,

2, On November 21, 2014, the Commission learned that Whitehuzst had hsen placed on
administrative leave while the subject of both a school district and a law enforcement
investigation regarding Whitehuist physteally harassing another teacher, On December
22, 2014, Whitehuyst plead guilty to one count of Harassment, & class B mlsdemeanor.
Aninvestigation determined that Whitehurst’s condnet Jeading up to the conviction
included Whitehurst striking another teacher on the huttocks with a rolled up bunch of
papers or other object,

3. On April 1, 2015, Whitehurst retired from the Portland Public Schools District,

Page 2 STIPULATION OF FACTS, ORDER OF SURENDER AND REVOCATION ~MITCHELL A,
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4. While investigating the November 14, 2014, reported incident, Investigators discovered
possible additional professional misconduct on the part of Whitehurst during the school
year of 1983-84, with 18 year old female students | and o, including sexual conduct
as defined in ORS 339.370(9) and QAR 584-020-0005(5). Whitehurst denies any such

professional misconduct oconrred,

ITIs SO STIPULATED:

QJ{MJ 18 - §-3018
FEryy Date
7 1/ tpadit B . VALY A A
mctmia Clwﬂt: setlain, Executive Director Date
Teacher Standatds and Practices Commission
CONCLUSION OF LAW

Mitchell A, Whitehurst engaged in unprofessional conduct as deseribed in section two
{2) above, This conduct constitutes Gross Neglect of Duty in violation of ORS 842 w7st0hy
DAR 584-020-0040(4)(n) as it incorporates DAR 584-0r0-0010{1) (Recognise the worth and
dignity of all persons and vespect for each indiﬁiduaﬂ, QAR 584-020-0010(5) (Use
piofessional fudgment); OAR 584-020-0040{4){0) as it incorporates OAR 584-020-0035(3){(n)
{Maintain the dignity of the profession by respecting and obeying the law, exemplifying
personal integrity and honesty}; and OAR 584-020-0040{4)(0) {Unreusonable physical force

against students, fellow employses, or visitors to the school, excepl as permitted under ORS

399.250). 'This conduct also constitutes gross unfitness in viclation of ORS 342.175(1)(e); OAR
584-020-0040(5){(c) {Conviction of vielating any federal, state, or local law. A corpicHon
includes any final judgment of conviction by a court whether as the result of guilty plea, no
coniest plea or any other means), and OAR 584-020-0 o40(5)(e) (Admission of or engaging in

acts constituting criminal conduct, even in the absence of a conviction).

Page 3 STIPULATION OF FACTS, ORDER OF SURENDER AND REVOCATION ~ MITCHELL A,
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Mitchell A, Whitehurst engaged in unprofessional conduct as deseribed in section four
(4) above, This conduct constitutes Gross Neglect of Duty in violation of ORS 342.143(2); ORS
342.175(1)(b); OAR 584-020-0040(4)(n) as it incorporates OAR 584-020-0010(5) (Use
professional judgment); OAR 584-020-0040(4)0) as Is incorporates OAR 584-020-
0035(1){b)(Refrain from explotting professional relationships with any student for personal
gain, or in support of persons or issues), OAR 584-020-0035(1)(c){A)(Not demonsirating or
expressing prafessionally inappropriate interest in a student's personal life), OAR 584-020-
0035(1)(eX{ D) Honoring appropriate adult boundaries with students in conduct and
conversation at all times); and QAR 584-020-0040(4)(f) (Any sexual conduct with o student),
The Commission may rely on the definitions of sexual conduct in ORS 339,570(g) and OAR 584-
020-0005(5). Whitehuest's conduct establishes that he does not possess good moral character

or mental and physical fitness as requived to hold a license under ORS 342.143(2).

The Commission’s authority to impose disciphine in this matter is based upon ORS

34R.175.
ORDER

The Commission adopts the above Stipulation of Facty, avcepts the livensure sarrender

and permanently revokes the educator lrense of Mitchell A, Whitehurst,
- 2" -
ITIS SO ORDERED this pd2  day of (# 2 29&.
TEACHER STANDARDS AND PRACTICES COMMISSION

By N _gfHAeettel
Victoma Cham 3e1]ai‘na Executive Diveclor
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

| HEREBY CERTIFY that ! served the Foregoing Stipulation of Facts and Final Order of Surrender and
Revocation of Licensure, ceriified by me as such, by mailing U.S. First Class Mail and U.8, Certified
Mail — Return Receipt Requested, addressed to:

Mitchell A, Whitchurst
4940 NE 38% Ave
Portland, OR 97211-8123

DATED this ___/ X‘ﬁﬁ llay of February, 2016,

By: Qfm; et

PatpySheidon
InvEstipative Assistant

Certificate of Mailing — Mitchell A, Whitehurst

Data Classification Lavel § — Published
DO Sheldon
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PPS CONTRACT No, 84l S 113

RETIREMENT AGREEMANT

School Disteiet 1J, Multnomah County Oregon (“Distriot™) and Nomm Scott (“Me. Scott”) hereby
enter into the following agreement (“Agreement”) for the purpose of setting forth the terms and
conditions of Mr. Scott’s retivement from bis employment with the Distrlet, In exchange for the
mutual promises and other eonsideration described below, the paties agree to the followlng;

I Mr. Scott retlres from his employment with the Distvict through a resignation, effective at
the end of the work day on June 30, 2012, the final day of the 2011-2012 school year,
M, Seotl’s retivement-based resignation is irrevocable once this Agreement has been

fully executed.
2, M, Beott will remain on paid administrative leave until June 30, 2012,

3. The District will continue to pay its share of Mr, Scott’s health-insurance-benefit
premivms in order to maintain current coverage theough the end of September, 2012,

4. The Disirict will reimburse Mr, Scott for the three days of pay that were deducted from
his payeheck for the unpatd suspension he received this school year,

5. Upon his retirement, Mr. Scott will be entitled to all contractual resignation and
retirement benefits for which he s eligible. This includes, but is not limited to, the early-
retivee health-insurance benefits outlined in Article 14 of the collective bargaining
agreement, under which the District Is obligated to pay for the full cost of the retiree and,
if enrolled, half the cost of the retiree’s spouse for medical and presertption coverage,
unlil the refiree’s Medicare-eligibility age, which is usually until age 65 unless disabled,
This also includes the Artlele 22 retirement incentive, which is a monthly stipend of $425
wniil the retiree reaches 62 years of age,

6. Inconsideration for the promises set forth above, Mz, Scott and the District hereby waive
any and all claims and complaints against each other that have acorued up to the date of
the signing of tliis agreement related to Mr. Scolt’s employntent and the subsequent
resignation of Mz, Scott from his employment with the District. Specifically included in
this waiver are all state and federal olaims, lawsuits, grievances or agency complaints,
Including alleged violations of Title VIT of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans
with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, any alleged violations
of the Oregon or United States Constitution, all wrongful discharge camplatnis or other
alleged violations of state employment discrimination laws, and ail alleged violations of
state or federal wage and hour laws, Also included are any and all elaims of intentional
torty, including but not limited to defamation, breach of contract, fraud and intentional
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infliction of emotional distress, Furthermore, Mr, Scott walves any and all grievances
arising under the licensed collective bargalning agreement, unfabe labor practice dlaims,
and claims before the Fair Dismissal Appeals Board, Mr. Seoll agrees fo withdraw any
ontstanding grievances or complainis he has filed, or that have been filed on his behalf,
agatnst the Distriet. M. Scott, by signing this Agreement, agrees that he has beon
encouraged and has had the opportunity to consult legal counsel regarding this waiver and
has entered into It knowingly and willingly. Notwithstanding this provision, sither party
may take action 10 enforce the terms of this Agreement,

7. Inquiries regarding Mz, Scolt’s employment with the District will be dirested to Joff Fish
or his suceessor, Information provided by the District regrarding Mr. Scott’s employmet
shall be limited fo dates of employment, position(s) held, and the fact that M, Scott
retired,

8, With regard to Mz, Scott’s retitement, the Distvict waives any right to the pre-resignation
or pre-retirement notice outlined in ORS 342,353 or the collective bargaining agreement.

9. The District wiil work with My, Scott and/or his representative to artange a reasonable
process by which My, Scott or his representative retrieves Mr. Scott's personal propety
from Distriet premises, ’ '

10. The District will place any and all discipling issued to Mr. Scott over the course of his
District employment in a sealed file in Mr. Seott’s personnel file, to be apened only by
the supetintendent ot his/ler representaiive, My, Scott or histher representative, or a
representative of the Portland Association of Teachers, unless otherwise required by law.

11, With regard to the curtent inquiry info an allegation of misconduct ~ an allegation tha(
M. Scott refivtes — the Disirict will seal all investigation materlals, and materials
mentioning such investigation, in a file to be opened only by the supetintendent or his/her
representative, Mr, Scott or hisfher reptesentative, or a representative of the Portland
Association of Teachers, unless ofherwise requived by law, The Distriet acknowledges
that no formal investigation-findings of recommendations were reached, and no diseipline

issued,

12, Mr. Scott will he allowed to attend the graduation ceremony et the end of the 2011-2012
school year, the end-of-year faculty luncheon, and other events. The administiative-leave
restrictions are hereby lifted. Me. Scott will keep the details of this seftlement agreement
and the events leading up to it confidential, staiing only that he has chosen to retie after
taking a short leave of absence, M, Scott agrees to not disparage the District or school
administrators, Likewise, the District agrees to not disparage Mr. Scott.
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13, This Agreement should not be construed as an admission of Hability, misconduet, or
inadequate performance by any parly.

For School Distifct 14
Multnomah County Oregon: 7/ /
L0 [ e £ Lo 5/
anpry 4; i m;lg “ Pate Norm Seatl yy Date
. RIS T
EBEEN SN
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I b %ﬁg;ﬁ&nn Archdiocese of Portland in Oregon

AUTHORIZATION ¥YOR DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
. "APPINCANT: Complote Seation 1, ¥ applicuble, complete Sectom 2 using oxto Authorization for each o

eneront and former omploymedusation provider, ;ém
RECTIN | & |
Applieant Newie (Fivet, Midilo, 7.458) [inctodo any othor names previonsly used durlng stplovinent) Plepss print, ;%
o
Nospadong A ld St _ w4
L3 1 hnve nevor worked for an education provider {omptoyer providing eduvationsl sorvices to minnig),
OR

@ﬁmhmim the follewlog omploysrfoduontion providar to refease to the Archdtonese of Portland In
Orogen, wll informntion telatod fo any substutintod reports of chitd buss, soxusl sonductor stlmes lisied
In ORS 342,143, Twofenss the Sottowing ewnptoyer mnd smployees acking on bebnlt of the sieploper Hom

s SAbility for providiog information dpseribed in {his document. _
emnnmis € ,«ﬁaﬂ}f ‘?f/‘ﬁf»':/‘?wm LE
H

igmatuics o

FROTON
Coveent/Porraey Buployer/Eiduention Providor

The applisant semed aliove Is waider conslderation For emplaymont as u substiute teachar in 8 Catholis sehool, This
individual his praviousty beon smployed with your onsontzation, As i former Cployer, W roguast you peovids the |
information sequested e this farm within 20 bustioss days pursuant to ORS 339,37,

Rducation Provider; FZ» I -‘—#Qé @m é (ec. Méa&'

| At Persormel Dapactoasnt _ o] seg.
{ Addveny: s 4 Iy, LIGAED vt . J‘%.ﬁ, ??Tff_ s ?mfﬂf"?““
| Dintes of Bmployments % s 2 R ) T S men U, -
| Posithon(s) Held: om0 2

Applicantt

. 10 BR COMPLETED BY CURRENTRORMER EMPLOYER ONLY
E Applivnegy

3 Mg not tiesn the wibject of s subutantinted ropou of child abrse or suxual ondagt,
L3 ¥ not tha subjort of an angaing hreeatipstion rotated 10 o veport of suspectod ohild abuse or sevamd comduot,

A%t Has beon s sublost of s substansiabed yepont of child shuse or swxual sufsoonduct. _ N

* Diateq of sny substantintod sopoia: LRI, Mﬁ%&é}ﬁf{;ﬁgfm&mf greLy” ﬁm #, f}’i Lﬂ d
»  Tionso wtinch the Sufinitions of ¢liid sbust and gnxenl conduet used whon the eduoatish provides deterained ]
ihatany rauonts were eibstunisted and the standards vsad by the educutfor providar to determing whathse
by veporks weeh sutrinntinted,
»  Ifthe rmployes wak convicted of n orims Hsfert b ORS 342,143, plowno cond tho employoe's dsuiplinsey

, wenorls us rogquled by ORS 349,388 ().

[} (3 Bsployor bus wo vevord of spplictntts smplagment, Plouss explain:
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Archdiocede of Portland In Oregon
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PES CONTRACE No 7P Lot 2t

AGREEMENT AND RELEASE
PARTIES .
The pagtias to this Agrecment and Release (*Agroement") are Normon Soott
("Seott™) and Portand Publis Sehool Distiot {the "Tyisteiot'),
RECELALS

1 Eeott is » former employes of the Distriot. On May 7, 2012, Soott exocuted 2
vetirement agrectnent with the Distriot. Seott retived from his employment with the D Isteiot
wffeotive Juna 30, 2012,

2. The Distrdot receivad a Notice of Demand from Seott on December 2, 2013, Ja
which Scott made elalms concerning s dlleged violation of the fersas of his retiemont

agregment,

3 The Distriot has disputed and eontinues to dispuis Soott's elaims and ailegations?
end denies alk liability to hin.

4. The parties to this Agreement have devided to tesolve all disputes between them
thraugh this Agreemient,

5, Consideration for this Agresmont is the covenants descrived hereln,

THE PARTIES THEREFORK AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

A Paymend,

1, Tho Digtelot wilt pay to Scott a cheek payabla to him in the amount of
$3,500. '
2, Soult expressly acknowledgos that neither the Distriet hor ite attorpeys

. watzant or represont the taxability or tonfuability of the sum patd (o Soolt under Section Al
pusuant to this Agresment. The payment ofany and all taxes that may be imposed s solely the

responsibility of Soott.

-1
PRNDOTSR022492 1
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. Letter to Archdiocese of Partland,

The Distriot will fssue o fotter of retraction to the Arohdiccsso of Poriland stating
that an administrative orror resulied in the ralenso of incorrect information concoming Seott’s
omployment with the Distiet, & copy of which is attached as Bxhibit A,

€. Relsose of AR Clabmg,

Seott on behalf of himsalf and his tepeesentatives, Lielrs, sucoessors, and nesigns
oompletely reledses nid Jorevor discharges the Disteiot, and its respeative past, prosoiat, and
futte officors, direotors, agonts, stployees, sucosssors, insuras, and assigns {vollectivaly,
"Released Partles”) from any and all olabms, tights, dewnands, actions, labilitlss, and cousos of
aetion of every kind and character, known ar unknown, mtarod or upimatimed, specifically
inchading, bui not tmited to, claimy for attornoy foes and sosts, which Soott way now haveg o
lins evor had, whether bosed on tort, contaet {exproes or haplled), or auy fedorn, siate, or local
stainte, rogiiation, ordingnse, or other favw based on iy act or omission prior 0 the execution of
this Agreemsnt by Soot,

B Effect of Thiv Agroement,

Thiy Agrosmont canstitntes the entive agroament of the partics conosmdng its
subjoct mntter, which Is resolving post-onmployment issnos betwoeh Soof e the District, Al
the agrocments, tavenants, representations, ond warrantlos, exprossed or inplied, oral or wiition,
vonerning the subject matter of this Agrosmont ave vontained in this Agreament, The partles
agree that they sontnug to bo bovnd by the tarme of the rotizemiont aprovimen z!esar‘ii&m‘j in
Raoital parageaph | and a copy of vhich is attached as Bxhilit B,

oy
. 'Jj/ o eesiiin
Dated: 8, BLf o B £ /W&Mw‘»«mﬂfm& £ WW

* Norm Seoft

PORTLAND PURLIC SCHOOL,

DISTRIG Ny
- ! (a‘\\‘ u - f

Detod:_g""" g //{i’z By, M“?nfm',f{/r:%{.m e
4

Sena Mbiray é;,’f J,)?‘
Cﬁ"/ -

wolor0 ey
.‘:ﬁ“w . . *:"““"""““W 1 0N Iyl ;é\!lo,}a i) Ay
sV Slion! Pifief g -
Mﬂli{s&ﬁﬁ}: Doty n,mmf;: .1

2 RI0R OJAY IMOUELY

\
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PORTYLARD PERLC HOHDNLE
Wuniin Ragonrees

501 N Dixon Steost » Porfland, OR 97227
50391 6-3544 ¢ Tz 303:916-3007
www.pps.nes | facebook.com/PortlandPublic

fsrland Publin Sehoode b i cqual opportunily edicilor nud enployes,

Decombep 23, 2013

VIAMAIL,
Archidiocose of Portinnd Oregon
Department of Catholle Schools
2838 1, Burnside Bt
Portland, OR 97214

RE: Seott, Norm - Child Alwse and Sexval Condust Discloames Fonmn

To Whorn it May Conaern, , .

Dug to an administative ooty ho form Indicates that Nown Seats was e subjeot of g substaniisted report of
child abuse or sexuat conduct, That Information is hneorrecs, and lostend the vortoct eattios shonld indieato that
M. Soott has not beer the subjest of o substantlated repent of child abugs or soxuat oonduct and that he ds nit
the subject of an onpoing nvestigation rolated to o ropont of suspeoted child abuse or soxunl conduet, Mr, Seott
votived from Portiand Public Schools, effeottve Juns 30, 2012, ‘

Sinwm%y,

Sean L. Mutray
Chief Human Resowroes Offlecr

R Lt AR P AR R

L e S X P e el A WPLRTH RN SUMRN Y B 2 SR Y

[ PRI

JEMAN ESSOURCHS PATCINITER WITH IISYTCT LRATRNS T IO DECEU, BEVELAE, AFG BUSEDRT A CUPTHRALLY TAVITSH WOLRTORCH DECIOATRITH IIRINCIMEY BTAHBARDS 08
HGOITY AND-ACTUBYEAERT YHAFCHITAYES AR BHVINGHAMIT OF ORIV RIGARRT AN UOCRRS SRH QUR ST, EAELOVENS, AYDTIR COMRUNITRE WE NERNE.

EXHIBIT A TO SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
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PPS CONTRACT Mo, F'vie 9 113y

RETIREMENT AGREEMENT

School Distriet 1J, Multnomah County Oregon (“District™) and Nown Scoit (“Mr, Bcott”) hereby
enter into the following agreement (“Agreement™) for the purpose of setting forth the terms and
coditions of Mr. Scott’s retivement from his employment with the Distelet. Tn exchange for the
mutual promises and other consideration described below, the parties agree to the following:

1. Mr, Scott retires from his employment with the District through a tesignation, effective at
the end of the work day on June 30, 2012, the final day of the 2011-2012 school year.
Mr. Scott’s retitement-based restgnation is irrevocable once this Agreement has been

fully executed,
2. M, Scott will remaln on paid administrative leave until Tune 30, 2012,

3. The District will continue to pay its shate of Mr. Scoti’s health-insurance-benefit
prenthums in order to maintain current coverage through the end of September, 2012,

4. The Distriet will relmbuise Mr. Scott for the three days of pay that were deducted from
his paycheok for the unpaid suspension ho recelved this school year,

3. Upon his retirement, Mr., Scott will be entitled to all contractual resignation and
retirement benefits for which he is eligible. This includes, but Is not limited 10, the early-
rotiree herlth-insurance benefits outlined in Axticle 14 of the collective bargaining
agrevment, under which the District is obligated to pay for the fall cost of the refiree and,
if enrolled, half the cost of the retires’s spouse for medical and preseription coverage,
until the retires’s Medicare-eligibility age, which is usirally until age 65 unless disabled.
This also includes the Artlele 22 retirement incentive, which is a monthly stipend of $425
until the retiree reaches 62 years of age.

6. Inconsideration for the promises set forth above, Mr. Scott and the District hereby walve
any and all elalms and complaints against each other that have acorued up to the date of
the signing of this agreement related to Mr., Scott’s employment and the subsequent
resignation of Mr, Scott from his employment with the District, Specifically included in
this waiver are all state and federal claims, lawsuits, grievances or agency complaints,
including alleged violations of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans
with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination in Bm ployment Act, any alleged violations
of the Oregon or United States Constitution, all wrongful discharge complaints or other
alleged violations of state emplayment diserimination laws, and all alleged violations of
state or federal wage and hour laws, Also included are any and all claims of intentional
torts, including but not limited to defamation, breach of contract, fraud and intentional

EXHIRIT B TO
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infliction of emotional distress, Furthermore, My, Scott walves any and all grievances
atising under the licensed collective bargaining agreement, unfair labor practice claims,
and claims before the Fair Dismissal Appeals Board, M, Scott agrees fo withdraw any
outstanding grievances or complaints he has filed, or that have been filed on his behalf,
against the Disteict, M, Scott, by signing this Agreement, agrees that he has been
encouraged and has had the opportunlty to eonsult logal counsel regarding this waiver aud
has entered into it knowingly and willingly. Notwithstanding this provision, either parly
may take action to enforce the terms of this Agreement,

7, Inquitles regarding Mr. Scott’s employment with the Distriet will be directed to Jeff Fish
or liis suceessor, Tnformation provided by the Distriet regarding M. Scott's employment
shall be limited to dates of eraployment, position(s) held, and the Fact that My, Scoit

retived,

8, With regatd to Mr, Scott's retirement, the District walves any right to the pre-resighation
or pre-retirement notice outlined in ORS 342.353 or the collective bargaining agreement.

0. The District will work with Mr. Scott and/or his representative to attange 4 reasonable
process by which Mr. Scotf or his representative retrieves Mr. Scoit’s personal propetty
from Distriot premises. :

10, The District will pace any and all discipline lssued to Mr. Scott over the course of his
Distrlet employment in a sealed file in Mr, Scolt’s personnel file, to be opened only by
the superintendent or his/her representative, M, Scott or hisfher reprosentative, ora
representative of the Portland Association of Teachers, unless otherwise required by law,

11. With regard to the current fnquiry into an allegation of misconduct ~ an allegation that
Mr. Scott refutes ~ the Distriot will seal all investigation materials, and materials
mentloning such investigation, in a file o be opened only by the superintendent ot histher

“representative, Mr. Scott o his/her representative, or a representative of the Portland
Assoclation of Teacher$, unless otherwise required by law, The Distriot acknowledgoes
that no formal investigation-findings or recommendations were reached, and no discipline

jssued,

172, Mr. Scott will be allowed to attend the graduation ceremony at the end of the 2011-2012
svhool year, the end-of-year faculty luncheor, and other events. The administrative-leave
restrictions ate heyeby lifted, M, Scott will keep the details of this settlement agreement
and the events leading up fo it confidential, stating only that he has chosen to retive afler
taking a shoit leava of absence. My, Scott agrees to not disparage the District ot schaol
administeators. Likewise, the District agrees to not disparage Mr. Scott.

EXHIBIT B TO
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13. This Agreement should not be construed as an admission of Hability, misconduct, or
inadequate performance by any party.

For School Distriet tJ, .

Multmomah County Oregon:
sconrO/) S0 e MY 10,0012  fyrneves 4»( M:ZM 2 7/3,@/&
Rt Oy tﬂv ﬁ@ﬁfﬂﬂ@ " Date Norm Seoll /ﬁate

Depilly Clark |
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PEOMUTE AN PURLIC 5O S
Puman Resonvees

301 N Dixon Street » Portland, OR 97227
503-916-3544 » Fax: 503-916-3107
www.pps.oet | facehook, com/PortlandPublic

Porttand Pobilic Schools is un squal oppaosunity edueaior and oy,

December 23, 2013
V1A MAIL

Archdiocese of Portland Oregon
Department of Catholic Schools
2838 E. Bunside St.
Portland, OR 97214

RE: Scott, Norm ~ Child Abuse and Sexual Conduct Disclosure Form

To Whom it May Concern,

Due to an administeative error, the form indicates that Norm Scott was the subject of a substantiated report of
child abuse or sexual conduct, That information is incorrect, and instead the correct entries should indicate that
Mir. Scott has not been the subject of & substantiated report of ehild abuse or sexual conduet and that he is not
the subject of an ongoing investigation related to & repott of suspected child abuse or sexual conduet, Mr. Scoit
vetired from Portland Public Schools, effective June 30, 2012,

Sincerely,

Sean L. Murray
Chief Human Resources Officer

W Rl ] e Ry 3 (s RS 1} LR 2ic )

HAUMAN RESOURCES PARTNERS WITH DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TO RECRUET, DEVELOP, AND SUPRORT A CULTURALLY DIVERSE WORKPORUE DEDICATED TO THE HIGHEST BTANDARDS OF
EQUITY AND ACHIEVEMENT THAT CREATES AN SHVIRONMENT OF EMPOWHRMANT AND SUCCESS FOR CUR STUDENTS, EMILOYERS, AND TRE COMMUNITIES WE SERVE,
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